
0895.0008: 1098047 
 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING & AGENDA OF  
MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1 & 2 

AND 
NOTICE OF ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING & AGENDA 

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-8 
Wednesday, January 20, 2021 

1:00 P.M. 
 

Due to Executive Orders issued by Governor Polis and Public Health Orders implementing the 
Executive Orders issued by the Colorado Department of Health and Environment, and the threat 
posed by the COVID-19 coronavirus, public attendance will be via teleconferencing. The meeting 

can be joined through the directions below: 
 

https://zoom.us/j/96626288689?pwd=ditza3lQa0ozNlJ6dFpMaDBLMVBMdz09 
Meeting ID: 966 2628 8689 

Passcode: 121983 
Call In Number: 1-253-215-8782 

 
Lee Merritt, President/Treasurer    District 1 & 3-8 - Term to May 2023 District 2 – Term to May 2022 
VACANT  District 1 & 3-8 - Term to May 2023 District 2 – Term to May 2022 
VACANT District 1 & 3-8 - Term to May 2022 District 2 – Term to May 2023 
VACANT District 1 & 3-8 - Term to May 2022 District 2 – Term to May 2023 
VACANT District 1 - Term to May 2022 District 2-8 – Term to May 2023 
 

1. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
a. Call to Order 
b. Declaration of Quorum and Confirmation of Director Qualifications 
c. Reaffirmation of Disclosures of Potential or Existing Conflicts of Interest 
d. Approval of Agenda 

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items not on the Agenda; Comments limited to three minutes per person) 

 
3. DIRECTOR MATTERS 

a. Consider Appointment of Directors and Administration of Oaths of Office 
b. Election of Officers 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (These items are considered to be routine and will be approved by one 
motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested, in which event, the 
item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in the Regular Agenda.  Enclosures 
included in electronic packets; hard copies available upon request.) 
a. Approval of Minutes from the November 12, 2020 Joint Special Meeting (District Nos. 1 & 2) 

(enclosure) 
b. Adoption of Resolution 2021-01-01: 2021 Joint Annual Administrative Resolution (District Nos. 

3-8) (enclosure) 
c. Adoption of Resolution 2021-01-02: Joint Resolution Extending Emergency Procedures and 

Authorizing Teleconferencing for Regular Meetings (District Nos. 3-8) (enclosure) 
d. Adoption of Resolution 2021-01-03: Joint Resolution Establishing an Electronic Signature 

(District Nos. 3-8) (enclosure) 
e. Adoption of Joint Resolution No. 2021-01-04: Providing for the Defense and Indemnification of 

Directors and Employees of the Districts (District Nos. 3-8) (enclosure) 

https://zoom.us/j/96626288689?pwd=ditza3lQa0ozNlJ6dFpMaDBLMVBMdz09


Mayberry, Colorado Springs MD Nos. 1-8 
January 20, 2021 Special Meeting Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 
 

0895.0008: 1062551 

f. Adoption of Joint Resolution No. 2021-01-05: Adopting Colorado Special District Records 
Retention Schedule (District Nos. 3-8) (enclosure) 

g. Adoption of Joint Resolution No. 2021-01-06: Adopting Public Records Request Policy (District 
Nos. 3-8) (enclosure) 

h. Adoption of Joint Resolution No. 2021-01-07: Concerning the Location of Special and Regular 
Meetings (District Nos. 1-8) (enclosure) 

i. Adoption of Joint Resolution No. 2021-01-08: Designating the Location of Regular and Special 
Meetings Outside the District Boundaries (enclosure) 

j. Approval of SDA Memberships and Intergovernmental Agreement with Colorado Special 
Districts Property and Liability Pool (District Nos. 3-8) (to be distributed) 

k. Approval of Insurance and Limits for Same (District Nos. 3-8) (to be distributed) 
l. Approval of Agency Fee Agreement with T. Charles Wilson for Insurance Broker Services 

(District Nos. 3-8) (to be distributed) 
m. Ratification of Claims ($32,732.19) (District No. 1) (enclosure) 
n. Acceptance of Unaudited Financial Statements as of December 31, 2020 (District No. 1) 

(enclosure) 
o. Approval of Transaction Based Consent Letter as between District No. 1 and District Nos. 2-8 

(District Nos. 1-8) (enclosure) 
p. Approval of Waiver of Conflict of Interest for Limited Representation of Ellicott Utilities 

Commission Related to Benton Well #2 Change Case and Related Matters for White & 
Jankowski, LLP 

 
5. CONSULTANT MATTERS 

a. Approval of Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON as General Counsel 
(District Nos. 3-8) (enclosure) 

b. Approval of Engagement of Spencer Fane, LLP as Special Counsel for Operating Agreement 
(District Nos. 3-8) (enclosure) 

c. Approval of Independent Contractor Agreement with MMI Water Engineers, LLC for District 
Engineer Services (District Nos. 3-8) (enclosure) 

d. Approval of Engagement Letter with White & Jankowksi, LLP, for Water Rights Legal Counsel  
(District Nos. 3-8) (enclosure) 

e. Approval of Engagement Letter with CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP, for Accounting Services (District 
Nos. 3-8) (enclosure) 

 
6. FINANCIAL MATTERS 

a. Public Hearings on 2021 Budgets and Consider Adoption of Resolution Nos. 2021-01-09 
(District No. 3), 2021-01-10 (District No. 4), 2021-01-11 (District No. 5), 2021-01-12 (District 
No. 6), 2021-01-13 (District No. 7), 2021-01-14 (District No. 8): Adopting Budget, Imposing 
Mill Levy and Appropriating Funds (enclosures) 

b. Discuss Issuance of 2021 Bonds 
 

7. DEVELOPMENT, ASSET, AND WATER MATTERS 
a. Review and Discuss Mayberry Pump Testing Proposal and Funding Request (enclosure) 
b. Discuss Status of District No. 2’s conveyance of certain water infrastructure, water rights and 

sewer infrastructure to District 
c. Update Regarding Discussions with Cherokee Metropolitan District  

i. Water and wastewater coordination 
ii. Chlorine analyzer at the Viewpoint tank site 



Mayberry, Colorado Springs MD Nos. 1-8 
January 20, 2021 Special Meeting Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 
 

0895.0008: 1062551 

iii. SCADA alarms for lift stations 
d. Discussion Regarding Development Activities 

i. Lots 71 and 72 of the Viewpoint Estates subdivision 
ii. Mayberry Colorado Springs filings, including infrastructure inspection and testing 

iii. Sunset Village, including wastewater collection, conveyance, and treatment 
 

8. OTHER BUSINESS  
a. Next Regular Meeting – November 11, 2021 at 9:00 am.  

  
9. ADJOURNMENT 



 

0895.0006; 1085532  P a g e  | 1 
 

 MINUTES OF A JOINT SPEICAL MEETING OF THE 
BOARDS OF DIRECTORS 

 
 OF THE 
 
 MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN 

DISTRICT NOS. 1 & 2 
 
 Held: Thursday, November 12, 2020, at 9:00 A.M. 
 

Due to Executive Orders issued by Governor Polis and Public 
Health Orders implementing the Executive Orders, issued by the 
Colorado Department of Health and Environment (CDPHE), 
and the threat posed by the COVID-19 coronavirus, the meeting 
was held via teleconference. 
 

 
ATTENDANCE The meeting was held in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Colorado. The following directors were in attendance: 
 

Lee Merritt 
 

Also present were: Jennifer Gruber Tanaka, Esq., White Bear 
Ankele Tanaka & Waldron, Attorneys at Law, District General 
Counsel; Carrie Bartow and Seef LeRoux, CliftonLarsonAllen, 
LLP, District Accountant; and Brad Simons, PE, MMI Water 
Engineers, LLC, District Engineer. 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
MATTERS 

 

Call to Order  The meeting was called to order. 
  
Declaration of Quorum and 
Confirmation of Director 
Qualifications 
 

Ms. Tanaka noted that a quorum for each of the Boards was 
present and that the directors had confirmed their qualification to 
serve.  
  

Reaffirmation of Disclosures of 
Potential or Existing Conflicts 
of Interest 

Ms. Tanaka advised the Boards that, pursuant to Colorado law, 
certain disclosures might be required prior to taking official 
action at the meeting.  Ms. Tanaka reported that disclosures for 
those directors with potential or existing conflicts of interest 
were filed with the Secretary of State’s Office and the Boards at 
least 72 hours prior to the meeting, in accordance with Colorado 
law, and those disclosures were acknowledged by the Boards.  
Ms. Tanaka noted that a quorum was present and inquired into 
whether members of the Boards had any additional disclosures 
of potential or existing conflicts of interest with regard to any 
matters scheduled for discussion at the meeting. No additional 
disclosures were noted.  The Boards determined that the 



 

0895.0006; 1085532  P a g e  | 2 
 

participation of the members present was necessary to obtain a 
quorum or to otherwise enable the Boards to act.   
 

Combined Meetings The Districts are meeting in a combined Board meeting.  Unless 
otherwise noted below, the matters set forth below shall be 
deemed to be the actions of the Mayberry, Colorado Springs 
Metropolitan District Nos. 1 and 2, collectively.  
 

Approval of Agenda Ms. Tanaka presented the Boards with the proposed agenda for 
the meeting.  Upon motion, duly seconded, the Boards 
unanimously approved the agenda as presented. 
  

PUBLIC COMMENT None. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

The Boards were presented with the consent agenda items. Upon 
motion, duly seconded, the Boards unanimously took the 
following actions: 
 

a. Approval of Minutes from the April 9, 2020 Joint Special 
Meeting  

b. Adoption of Resolution 2020-11-01: 2021 Joint Annual 
Administrative Resolution  

c. Adoption of Resolution 2020-11-02: Joint Resolution 
Extending Emergency Procedures and Authorizing 
Teleconferencing for Regular Meetings  

d. Ratification of Claims ($7,745.15) (April 2020)  
e. Ratification of Claims ($44,320.62) (July 2020) 
f. Ratification of Claims ($23,947.23) (October 2020)  
g. Ratification of Claims ($61,210,02) (November 2020)  
h. Acceptance of Unaudited Financial Statements as of 

September 30, 2020  
i. Ratification of Independent Contractor Agreement with 

Bishop-Brogden Associates, Inc., d/b/a BBA Water 
Consultants, Inc., for Water Engineering Services dated 
July 14, 2020 

j. Approval of First Amendment to Funding and 
Reimbursement Agreement with Mayberry Colorado 
Springs, LLC for Operations and Maintenance Costs 
(District No. 1)  

k. Approval of Public Improvements Acquisition and 
Reimbursement Agreement with Ellicott Utilities 
Company, LLC (District No. 1)  

l. Approval and Renewal of Consultant and Contractor 
Agreements for 2021 Services:  

i. WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON, 
Attorneys at Law, for General Counsel Services 

ii. CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP for Accounting Services 



 

0895.0006; 1085532  P a g e  | 3 
 

iii. MMI Water Engineers, LLC for Engineering 
Services (updated fees for 2021) (District No. 2) 

iv. Brogden Associates, Inc. for Water Engineering 
Services (updated fees for 2021) (District No. 2) 

v. Spencer Fane LLP for Special Litigation Counsel 
Services (District No. 2) 

vi. White & Jankowksi, LLC for Water Counsel 
Services (District Nos. 1 and 2) 

vii. Colorado Water Systems Corp. for Water Sampling 
and Analysis Services (District No. 1) 

 
FINANCIAL MATTERS  
Public Hearing on 2020 
Budget Amendment and 
Adoption of Resolution No. 
2020-11-03 (District No. 1) 
 

Mr. Merritt opened the public hearing on the 2020 budget 
amendment for District No. 1.  Ms. Tanaka reported that notice 
of the public hearing was provided in accordance with Colorado 
law and no objections were received prior to the hearing.  Ms. 
Bartow reviewed the budget amendment with the Board.  There 
being no public comment, the hearing was closed. 
 
Upon motion, duly seconded, the Board of District No. 1 
unanimously approved the budget amendment and adopted 
Resolution No. 2020-11-03. 
 

Public Hearings on 2021 
Budgets and Adoption of 
Resolution No. 2020-10-04 
(District No. 1) and 2020-11-
05 (District No. 2): Adopting 
Budget, Imposing Mill Levy 
and Appropriating Funds 
 

Mr. Merritt opened the public hearings on the 2021 budgets.  
Ms. Tanaka reported that notices of the public hearings were 
provided in accordance with Colorado law and no objections 
were received prior to the hearings.  Ms. Bartow reviewed the 
budgets with the Boards.  There being no public comment, the 
hearings were closed. 
 
Upon motion, duly seconded, the Boards unanimously approved 
the budgets and adopted Resolution No. 2020-10-04 (District 
No. 1) and 2020-11-05 (District No. 2): Adopting Budget, 
Imposing Mill Levy and Appropriating Funds. 
 

Discuss Processing and 
Timing for Payment of 
Claims 
 

The Boards discussed the outstanding payables and need to have 
invoices brought current and paid timely. Ms. Bartow will work 
with Mr. Goodson and Mr. Hope to coordinate these. 

LEGAL MATTERS 
 

 

Update Regarding District 
Website and Consider 
Engagement of Heatherly 
Creative, LLC for Website 
Design Services  
 

Ms. Tanaka noted that the Statewide Internet Portal Authority 
(“SIPA”) has been inundated with websites and has not yet created 
a website for the Districts.  Ms. Tanaka presented the Boards with 
a proposal from Heatherly Creative, LLC for website design 
services as an alternative.  The initial cost to set up the website, 
including hosting services, is approximately $2,200.  Afterwards, 



 

0895.0006; 1085532  P a g e  | 4 
 

the costs are minimal for any updates and maintenance. 
  

The Boards determined to defer discussion of this matter to a 
future meeting. 
 

DEVELOPMENT, ASSET, 
AND WATER MATTERS 

 

Review and Discuss 
Mayberry Pump Testing 
Proposal and Cost Estimate 
Request 
 

Mr. Simons reviewed the proposed project with the Boards and 
noted a request for proposal will be prepared.  Mr. Simons noted 
he will coordinate with Chris Sanchez at Bishop-Brogden for the 
proposal.  The project is intended to evaluate 2 existing wells, 
remove the existing equipment, assess the equipment to 
determine whether it needs to be replaced, monitor water levels, 
and test the well production capacity.  Overall there will be 28 
hours of pump testing.  Currently it is estimated that the project 
would be approximately $15,000.  Upon motion, duly seconded 
by the Boards approved the engagement of a company to do the 
work in an amount not-to-exceed $15,000, subject to receipt of 
developer funding. 
 

Discuss Status of District No. 
2’s conveyance of certain 
water infrastructure, water 
rights and sewer 
infrastructure to District 
 

Mr. Simons reported that he has worked on getting a good 
understanding of the existing infrastructure, water rights, and 
assets, which entities currently own these assets, and which will 
be required to serve the initial filings within the Districts.   
 
Mr. Simons noted some properties located to the southeast of the 
Districts which currently receive services from the Ellicott 
Utilities Company.  Mr. Simons will provide further information 
on this property. 
 

Update Regarding 
Discussions with Cherokee 
Metropolitan District  

 

Mr. Simons provide a brief update regarding discussions with 
Cherokee Metropolitan District. 

Water and wastewater 
coordination 
 

Mr. Simons provide a brief update regarding discussions with 
Cherokee Metropolitan District for the coordination of water and 
wastewater services in the area. 
 

Chlorine analyzer at the 
Viewpoint tank site 
 

Cherokee Metropolitan District requested permission to install a 
chlorine analyzer at the Viewpoint tank site so they can properly 
analyze the water they are delivering.  The analyzer has been 
installed at no cost to the Districts. 
 

SCADA alarms for lift 
stations 
 

Cherokee Metropolitan District advised the Districts that they 
are currently monitoring 2 alarms for the lift stations which are 
currently owned and operated by the Ellicott Utilities Company.  
They would like alarms to be communicated to the Districts’ 



 

0895.0006; 1085532  P a g e  | 5 
 

operators instead of to Cherokee Metropolitan District.  Mr. 
Simons will provide additional information as it becomes 
available. 
 

Discussion Regarding 
Development Activities  
 

 

Lots 71 and 72 of the 
Viewpoint Estates 
subdivision 
 

Mr. Simons reported that the developer has been approached 
regarding the development of property within the Districts’ 
service area.  It is anticipated that this will be developed for 
residential lots as opposed to commercial, which is the current 
zoning.  The Districts will want to monitor this from the stand 
point of water demands. 
 

Mayberry Colorado 
Springs filings and 
Sunset Village 
  

Mr. Simons reported that there are 4 filings, 2 have been 
approved, 2 are in process.   
 
Mr. Simons reported that the Sunset Village community is 
growing and will have demands on the Districts’ system(s) that 
need to be accounted for. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 

Next Joint Regular Meeting The next joint regular meeting is scheduled for November 11, 
2021, at 9:00 A.M. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

There being no further business to come before the Boards, upon 
motion, second and unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned.   
   
The foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of the minutes of 
the above-referenced meeting. 
 
 
 

          
Secretary for the Districts 

 
 

 
 



0895.0007; 1099661 

Resolution No. 2021-01-01 
 

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-8 
JOINT ANNUAL ADMINISTRATIVE RESOLUTION 

(2021) 
      

WHEREAS, Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 (each reference 
to a “District” herein shall mean a reference to each of the Districts individually) was organized 
as a special district pursuant to an Order and Decree of the District Court in and for the County of 
El Paso, Colorado (the “County”); and 

WHEREAS, the Boards of Directors (the “Board”) of the Districts (each reference to a 
“Board” herein shall mean a reference to each of the Boards individually) has a duty to perform 
certain obligations in order to assure the efficient operation of the District and hereby directs its 
consultants to take the following actions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Board directs legal counsel to cause an accurate map of the District’s 
boundaries to be prepared in accordance with the standards specified by the Division of Local 
Government (“Division”) and to be filed in accordance with § 32-1-306, C.R.S. 

2. The Board directs legal counsel to notify the Board of County Commissioners, the 
County Assessor, the County Treasurer, the County Clerk and Recorder, the governing body of 
any municipality in which the District is located, and the Division of the name of the chairman of 
the Board, the contact person, telephone number and business address of the District, as required 
by § 32-1-104(2), C.R.S. 

3. The Board directs legal counsel to prepare and file with the Division, within thirty 
(30) days of a written request from the Division, an informational listing of all contracts in effect 
with other political subdivisions, in accordance with § 29-1-205, C.R.S.  

4. The Board directs the District’s accountant to cause the preparation of and to file 
with the Department of Local Affairs the annual public securities report for nonrated public 
securities issued by the District within sixty (60) days of the close of the fiscal year, as required 
by §§ 11-58-101, et seq., C.R.S. 

5. The Board directs the District’s accountant to: 1) obtain proposals for auditors to 
be presented to the Board; 2) to cause an audit of the annual financial statements of the District to 
be prepared and submitted to the Board on or before June 30; and 3) to cause the audit to be filed 
with the State Auditor by July 31st, or by the filing deadline permitted under any extension thereof, 
all in accordance with §§ 29-1-603(1) and 29-1-606, C.R.S.  Alternatively, if warranted by § 29-
1-604, C.R.S., the Board directs the District’s accountant to apply for and obtain an audit 
exemption from the State Auditor on or before March 31st in accordance with § 29-1-604, C.R.S. 

6. The Board directs the District’s accountant, if the District has authorized but 
unissued general obligation debt as of the end of the fiscal year, to cause to be submitted to the 



0895.0007; 1099661 
 

2 

Board of County Commissioners or the governing body of the municipality that adopted a 
resolution of approval of the District, the District’s audit report or a copy of its application for 
exemption from audit in accordance with § 29-1-606(7), C.R.S. 

7. The Board directs the District’s accountant to submit a proposed budget to the 
Board by October 15th, to prepare the final budget and budget message, including any amendments 
thereto, if necessary, and directs legal counsel to schedule a public hearing on the proposed budget 
and/or amendments, and to post or publish notices thereof, to prepare all budget resolutions and to 
file the budget, budget resolution and budget message with the Division on or before January 30th, 
all in accordance with §§ 29-1-101, et seq., C.R.S. 

8. The Board directs the District’s accountant to monitor expenditures and contracted 
expenditures and, if necessary, to notify legal counsel and the Board when expenditures or 
contracted expenditures are expected to exceed appropriated amounts, and directs legal counsel to 
prepare all budget amendment resolutions and directs legal counsel to schedule a public hearing 
on a proposed budget amendment and to post or publish notices thereof and to file the amended 
budget with the Division on or before the date of making such expenditure or contracting for such 
expenditure, all in accordance with §§ 29-1-101, et seq., C.R.S. 

9. The Board directs legal counsel to cause the preparation of the Unclaimed Property 
Act report and submission of the same to the State Treasurer by November 1st if there is property 
presumed abandoned and subject to custody as unclaimed property, in accordance with § 38-13-
110, C.R.S. 

10. The Board directs the District’s accountant to prepare the mill levy certification 
form and directs the District’s accountant to file the mill levy certification form with the Board of 
County Commissioners on or before December 15th, in accordance with § 39-5-128, C.R.S. 

11. The Board designates the El Paso County Advertiser and News as a newspaper of 
general circulation within the boundaries of the District and directs that all legal notices shall be 
published in accordance with § 32-1-103(15), C.R.S., in the El Paso County Advertiser and News, 
unless otherwise designated by the Board or legal counsel. 

12. The Board determines that each director may receive compensation for their 
services as directors subject to the limitations set forth in §§ 32-1-902(3)(a)(I) & (II), C.R.S. 

13. The District hereby acknowledges, in accordance with § 32-1-902, C.R.S., the 
following officers for the District: 

President:  

Secretary/Treasurer:  

Assistant Secretary:  

Recording Secretary: Legal Counsel 

14. The Board hereby determines that each member of the Board shall, for any potential 
or actual conflicts of interest, complete conflicts of interest disclosures and directs legal counsel 



0895.0007; 1099661 
 

3 

to file the conflicts of interest disclosures with the Board and with the Colorado Secretary of State 
at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to every regular and special meeting of the Board, in 
accordance with §§ 32-1-902(3)(b) and 18-8-308, C.R.S.  Written disclosures provided by Board 
members required to be filed with the governing body in accordance with § 18-8-308, C.R.S. shall 
be deemed filed with the Board when filed with the Secretary of State. Additionally, at the 
beginning of each year, each Board member shall submit information to legal counsel regarding 
any actual or potential conflicts of interest and, throughout the year, each Board member shall 
provide legal counsel with any revisions, additions, corrections or deletions to said conflicts of 
interest disclosures. 

15. The Board confirms its obligations under § 24-10-110(1), C.R.S., with regards to 
the defense and indemnification of its public employees, which, by definition, includes elected and 
appointed officers.  

16. The Board hereby appoints legal counsel as the official custodian for the 
maintenance, care and keeping of all public records of the District, in accordance with §§ 24-72-
202, et seq., C.R.S.  The Board hereby directs its legal counsel, accountant, manager and all other 
consultants to adhere to the Colorado Special District Records Retention Schedule as adopted by 
the District.  

17. The Board hereby designates the following locations where the District will post 
physical notice of meetings at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting at the northeast 
corner of each of the Districts. The Board directs legal counsel to make physical meeting postings 
within the boundaries of the District in accordance with § 32-1-903(2) and § 24-6-402(2)(c), 
C.R.S. If possible, the physical posting shall include specific agenda information. 

18. The Board determines to hold its regular meeting on November 11, 2021 at 9:00 
a.m. at 2154 East Commons Avenue, Suite 2000, Centennial, Colorado.  Notice of the time and 
place for all regular meetings shall be posted in accordance with § 24-6-402, C.R.S. 

19. In the event of an emergency, the Board may conduct a meeting outside of the 
limitations prescribed in § 24-6-402(2)(c), C.R.S., provided that any actions taken at such 
emergency meeting are ratified at the next regular meeting of the Board or at a special meeting 
conducted after proper notice has been given to the public. 

20. For the convenience of the electors of the District, and pursuant to its authority set 
forth in § 1-13.5-1101, C.R.S., the Board hereby deems that all regular and special elections of the 
District shall be conducted as independent mail ballot elections in accordance with §§ 1-13.5-1101, 
et seq., C.R.S., unless otherwise deemed necessary and expressed in a separate election resolution 
adopted by the Board. 

21. Pursuant to the authority set forth in § 1-1-111, C.R.S., the Board hereby appoints 
Ashley B. Frisbie, of the law firm of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON, Attorneys at 
Law, as the Designated Election Official (the “DEO”) of the District for any elections called by 
the Board, or called on behalf of the Board by the DEO, and hereby authorizes and directs the 
DEO to take all actions necessary for the proper conduct of the election, including, if applicable, 
cancellation of the election in accordance with § 1-13.5-513, C.R.S.   



0895.0007; 1099661 
 

4 

22. In accordance with § 1-11-103(3), C.R.S., the Board hereby directs the DEO to 
certify to the Division the results of any elections held by the District and, pursuant to § 32-1-
1101.5(1), C.R.S., to certify results of any ballot issue election to incur general obligation 
indebtedness to the Board of County Commissioners or the governing body of the municipality 
that adopted a resolution of approval of the district and file a copy of such certification with the 
Division of Securities. 

23. The Board directs legal counsel to cause a notice of authorization of or notice to 
incur general obligation debt to be recorded with the County Clerk and Recorder within thirty (30) 
days of authorizing or incurring any indebtedness, in accordance with § 32-1-1604, C.R.S. 

24. Pursuant to the authority set forth in § 24-12-103, C.R.S., the Board hereby 
designates, in addition to any officer of the District, George M. Rowley of the law firm of WHITE 
BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON, Attorneys at Law as a person with the power to administer 
all oaths or affirmations of office and other oaths or affirmations required to be taken by any person 
upon any lawful occasion. 

25. The Board directs legal counsel to cause the preparation of and filing with the Board 
of County Commissioners or the governing body of the municipality that adopted a resolution of 
approval of the District, if requested, the application for quinquennial finding of reasonable 
diligence in accordance with §§ 32-1-1101.5(1.5) and (2), C.R.S. 

26. The Board directs legal counsel to cause the preparation of and the filing with the 
Board of County Commissioners or the governing body of any municipality in which the District 
is located, the Division, the State Auditor, the County Clerk and Recorder and any interested 
parties entitled to notice pursuant to § 32-1-204(1), C.R.S., an annual report, if requested, in 
accordance with § 32-1-207(3)(c), C.R.S. 

27. The Board directs legal counsel to obtain proposals and/or renewals for insurance, 
as applicable, to insure the District against all or any part of the District’s liability, in accordance 
with §§ 24-10-115, et seq., C.R.S.  The Board directs the District’s accountant to pay the annual 
SDA membership dues, agency fees and insurance premiums, as applicable, in a timely manner.  
The Board appoints legal counsel as its proxy for the SDA Annual meeting for voting and quorum 
purposes. 

28. The Board hereby opts to include elected or appointed officials as employees within 
the meaning of § 8-40-202(1)(a)(I)(A), C.R.S., and hereby directs legal counsel to obtain workers’ 
compensation coverage for the District. 

29. The Board hereby directs legal counsel to prepare the disclosure notice required by 
§ 32-1-809, C.R.S., and to disseminate the information to the electors of the District accordingly.  
Further, the Board hereby designates the following website as the District’s official website for 
the purposes thereof: sdaco.org. 

30. The Board hereby directs the District Manager to prepare and record with the 
County Clerk and Recorder updates to the disclosure statement notice and map required by § 32-
1-104.8, C.R.S., if additional property is included within the District’s boundaries.  



0895.0007; 1099661 
 

5 

31. In accordance with § 38-35-109.5(2), C.R.S, the District hereby designates the 
President of the Board as the official who shall record any instrument conveying title of real 
property to the District within 30 days of any such conveyance.  

32. The Board directs the District’s accountant to prepare and submit the 
documentation required by any continuing disclosure obligation signed in conjunction with the 
issuance of debt by the District. 

33. The Board directs legal counsel to monitor, and inform the Board of, any legislative 
changes that may occur throughout the year.   

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank, signature page follows.] 



0895.0007; 1099661 
 

ADOPTED this 20th day of January, 2021 

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS 
METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-8 
 
 

By:  
 Officer of the Districts 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 
 
 
General Counsel to the Districts 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF RESOLUTION 

I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of the resolution of 
the Board adopted at a meeting held on January 20, 2021 via teleconference. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name this 20th day of January, 
2021. 

 
              
      Signature 
 
             
      Printed Name 
   

Attest: 
  
  
By:  
  



0895.0007: 1099677 

RESOLUTION 2021-01-02 
 

JOINT RESOLUTION 
OF THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-8 
 

DECLARING EMERGENCY PROCEDURES AND 
AUTHORIZING TELECONFERENCING FOR REGULAR AND SPECIAL MEETINGS  

     
 

WHEREAS, Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 (each reference 
to a “District” herein shall mean a reference to each of the Districts individually and each reference 
to a “Board” herein shall mean a reference to each of the Boards individually) are quasi-municipal 
corporations and political subdivisions of the State of Colorado (the “State”) organized to serve a 
public use and promote the health, safety, prosperity, security and general welfare of the residents 
of the District and the State of Colorado; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-903, C.R.S., all official business of the Board of Directors of 

the District (the “Board”) shall be conducted only during regular and special meetings at which a 
quorum is present, and all said meetings shall be open to the public; and 
 
 WHEREAS, § 32-1-1001(1)(h) C.R.S., provides the Board with the management, control and 
supervision of all the business and affairs of the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Governor of the State (the “Governor”) declared a state of emergency on 
March 10, 2020, and extended the declaration on April 8, 2020 (the “Emergency”) due to the threat 
that COVID-19 coronavirus (“COVID-19”) poses to the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of 
the State; and  

 
WHEREAS, on April 26, 2020, as directed by the Governor, the Colorado Department of 

Public Health and Environment issued Public Health Order 20-28 (the “Order”) implementing “Safer 
at Home” guidelines, effective 12:01 A.M. on April 27, 2020.  The Order limits public gatherings 
outside a residence to no more than ten (10) individuals, except for the purposes expressly permitted 
in the Order, and to the extent possible encourages compliance with Social Distancing Requirements 
(as defined in the Order); and 
 
 WHEREAS, counties, municipalities, and other local governments have issued, or may issue,  
COVID-19 related public health orders limiting public gatherings and establishing social distancing 
requirements (collectively the “Local Orders”, and together with the Order, the “Orders”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment and Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention recommend certain precautions in order to attempt to slow the spread 
of COVID-19, including minimizing close contact with large numbers of people; and 
 



0895.0007:1099677 2  

WHEREAS, in order to attempt to protect the health and safety of the residents of the District 
from COVID-19 and in order to comply with the Orders, and any subsequent orders, while at the 
same time continuing with the required business of the District, the Board wishes to have the ability 
to hold regular and special meetings via teleconferencing until such time that the Emergency is lifted 
by the State, the Orders, or any subsequent orders, are repealed, or as otherwise determined by the 
Board; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to establish certain procedures and requirements for when the 
District determines to hold regular and special meetings via teleconferencing during the Emergency 
and the time when the Orders, or any subsequent orders, are in effect. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Teleconferencing for Regular and Special Meetings.  The Board hereby authorizes 
the holding of regular and special meetings for the District by teleconferencing methods until such 
time that the Emergency and Orders, or any subsequent orders, are lifted, or as otherwise 
determined by the Board.   

2. Quorum of the Board for Teleconferenced Regular and Special Meetings.  A 
quorum of the Board for attendance and voting purposes at regular and special meetings shall be 
established by the attendance of a majority of the members of the Board on the teleconferencing 
platform.  Each Board member must be able to clearly hear and participate in any teleconferenced 
meetings. 

3. Posting of Regular and Special Meeting Notices.  The District shall continue to post 
notice of all regular and special meetings pursuant to the District’s previously adopted policies and 
State law. 

4. Public Attendance at Teleconferenced Regular and Special Meetings.  The District 
shall arrange for a dial-in-number for members of the public and the Board to utilize in order to 
attend the teleconferenced regular and special meetings of the District.  Members of the public 
may be excluded from executive sessions that are held by the Board in accordance with State law.   
The dial-in number shall be included on the agenda for the meeting. 

5. Ratification of Actions. Any actions, including, but not limited to the adoption of 
this Resolution, taken at a regular or special meeting held by teleconference platform shall be 
ratified at the first regular or special in-person Board meeting that takes place after adoption of 
this Resolution. 

6. Term. This Resolution shall remain in full force and effect until such time as the 
Board determines that the conditions necessitating its adoption no longer exist, including lifting of 
the Emergency, the repeal of the Orders, or any subsequent orders, or as otherwise determined by 
the Board. 



0895.0007:1099677 3  

The Remainder of this Page is Intentionally Left Blank 



0895.0007:1099677 4 

ADOPTED THIS 20TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2021. 

 

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS 
METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-8, a quasi-
municipal corporation and political subdivision of 
the State of Colorado  

 

             
Officer of the Districts 

ATTEST: 

 

      
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 
 
       
General Counsel to the Districts 
 

 

 

 

Signature Page to Joint Resolution Declaring Emergency Procedures Authorizing Teleconferencing for 
Special Meetings dated January 20, 2021. 

 



0895.0007:1099698 1 

Resolution No. 2021-01-03 
 

JOINT RESOLUTION 
OF THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF  

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-8 
 

ESTABLISHING AN ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE POLICY  
__________________________ 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 (each 

reference to a “District” herein shall mean a reference to each of the Districts individually and 
each reference to a “Board” herein shall mean a reference to each of the Boards individually) is 
a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(h), C.R.S., the Board of Directors of the District 

(the “Board”) is empowered with the management, control, and supervision of all the business 
and affairs of the District; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(m), C.R.S., the Board is authorized to adopt, 

amend, and enforce bylaws and rules and regulations not in conflict with the constitution and 
laws of Colorado for carrying on the business, objects, and affairs of the Board and the District; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, in 2002, the Colorado legislature enacted the Uniform Electronic 
Transactions Act, §§ 24-71.3-101, et seq., C.R.S. (the “Act”); and   
 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Act is to facilitate e-Government in Colorado by giving 
electronic signatures the same force and effect as signatures produced by non-electronic means; 
and   

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to § 24-71.3-117, C.R.S., the District, as a political subdivision of 

the State of Colorado, has the general power, in relation to the administration of the affairs of the 
District to determine the extent to which it will create and retain electronic signatures; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to § 24-71.3-118 (1), C.R.S., the District, as a political subdivision 

of the State of Colorado, has the general power, in relation to the administration of its affairs, to 
determine the extent to which it will send and accept electronic signatures to and from other 
persons and otherwise create, generate, communicate, store, process, use, and rely upon 
electronic signatures; and 
 

WHEREAS, the use of electronic signatures increases efficiency of various internal and 
external transactions that require signature or authorization; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Board desire to adopt a policy that establishes and governs the process 

for using and accepting electronic signatures for internal and external District business and 
transactions. 



0895.0007:1099698 2 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. Adoption of Electronic Signature Policy. The District hereby adopts the 

Electronic Signature Policy set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein.  

2. Preambles Incorporated.  The preambles to this Resolution are hereby 
incorporated into this Resolution as if set out fully herein.  

3. Severability.  If any part, section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Resolution or Electronic Signature Policy is for any reason held to be invalid, such invalidity 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions.  

4. Effective Date.  This Joint Resolution and Electronic Signature Policy shall take 
effect as of the date of this Resolution (the “Effective Date”) until amended, superseded or 
rescinded.   

5. Ratification of Electronic Signatures.  To the extent that any of the Districts has 
utilized or accepted Electronic Signatures (as defined in the Electronic Signature Policy) prior to 
the Effective Date, such Electronic Signatures are hereby ratified, approved and accepted by the 
Board.  

 

Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank, Signature Page Follows 

 



0895.0007:1099698 3 

ADOPTED this 20th day of January, 2021. 
 

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS 
METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-8 

 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Officer of the Districts 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON  
Attorneys at Law 
 
 
                                                                     
General Counsel to the Districts 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signature Page to Joint Resolution Establishing an Electronic Signature Policy 
 
 



0895.0007:1099698 
 

A-1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Electronic Signature Policy 
 

 
1.0 Background and Purpose  

 
Use of electronic signatures increases the efficiency of various internal and external transactions 
that require signature or authorization. This policy establishes and governs the process for using 
and accepting electronic signatures used to conduct official District business. 
 
2.0 Policy 
 
The District permits the use of Electronic Signatures for both internal and external transactions to 
conduct the official business of the District in accordance with the procedures set forth below.   
 

2.1 Where District policies, or applicable laws, regulations, or rules require a signature, that 
requirement is met if the document contains an Electronic Signature. 

 
2.2 If a law or regulation prohibits a transaction from occurring electronically, the 

transaction must occur in the manner specified by that law or regulation. 
 

2.3 This Policy shall be construed in a manner consistent with the Colorado Uniform 
Electronic Transactions Act (the “Act”).  If there is a conflict between the Act and 
this policy, the Act shall control. 

 
2.4 Nothing contained in this Policy shall be construed as requiring a person to use an 

Electronic Signature for any District business or transaction. Scanned, copied, or 
facsimiles of documents containing an original handwritten signature are not 
covered by this Resolution as such are not considered Electronic Signatures under 
the Act, and are legally acceptable without further action of the District.  

 
2.5 If an applicable policy, law, regulation or rule prohibits particular District business 

or transactions from utilizing Electronic Signatures, such business or transaction 
shall be consummated in the manner permitted by applicable law. If an applicable 
policy, law, regulation or rule requires an Electronic Signature to contain specific 
elements, notwithstanding the acceptability of the Electronic Signatures as 
described in this Policy, the Electronic Signature must contain those specific 
elements to be valid and enforceable. 

 
3.0 Procedures 
 

3.1 External Transactions 
 
3.1.1. Each party to an External Transaction must agree to conduct the transaction 

electronically. Agreement may be implied from the context and 
circumstances. 



0895.0007:1099698 
 

A-2 

3.1.2. Only an Authorized Signatory may execute an External Transaction on 
behalf of the District. 
 

3.1.3. The District may require a standard signature block or certification to be 
used for certain External Transactions. 

 
3.2 Internal Transactions 

 
3.2.1. Only an Authorized Signatory may execute an Internal Transaction on behalf of 

the District. 
 
4.0 DEFINITIONS. 
 

4.1 “Authorized Signatory” means  a director, employee, contractor, consultant or other 
person who has been authorized or delegated by the Board the authority to sign 
documents on behalf of the District 
 

4.2 “Electronic Signature” means an electronic sound, symbol, or process attached to or 
logically associated with a record and executed or adopted by a person with the intent to 
sign the record.  Electronic Signatures include, but are not limited to,  (i) a signature 
image (a computer file that is created from the scanned image of the handwritten 
signature); and (ii) a signature generated by a computer program such as Adobe, 
DocuSign or other similar software that may or may not be time and date stamped. 

 
4.3 “External Transaction” means any legally binding agreement or contract between the 

District and an individual, entity, business, or government agency. 
 

4.4 “Internal Transaction” means any internal work-flow or approval process that requires a 
signature or approval on a District form, document, memo, or other similar format. 
 

 
 
 



2137.0007; 1100049  

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-01-04 
 

JOINT RESOLUTION OF THE 
BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-8 
 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION 
OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES OF THE DISTRICT 

   
 
 

 WHEREAS, Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 (each reference to 
a “District” herein shall mean a reference to each of the Districts individually and each reference 
to a “Board” herein shall mean a reference to each of the Boards individually) is a special district 
operating as a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado, by virtue 
of organization under §§ 32-1-101, et seq., C.R.S.; and 
  
 WHEREAS, past and present directors and employees of the District may be subject, from 
time to time, to claims arising from acts or omissions occurring during the performance of their 
governmental duties; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District desires to encourage persons to serve on its Board of Directors and 
accept employment with the District by defending and indemnifying such persons against liability for 
acts or omissions occurring during the performance of their governmental duties; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the District and its inhabitants to defend and indemnify 
its directors and employees against liability for acts and omissions which occur within their Scope of 
Employment, as defined below, and for which such defense and indemnification is not otherwise 
provided by Colorado law. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD THAT: 
 
 1. Definitions.  For purposes of this resolution, the terms below shall be defined as 
follows: 
 
  a. Director:  “Director” includes former, current, and future directors of the 
District, from the date of organization, who are sued for acts or omissions occurring during their term 
as a director of the District. 
 
  b. Employee:  “Employee” includes former, current, and future employees of the 
District, from the date of organization, who are sued for acts or omissions occurring during their 
employment with the District. 
 
  c. Scope of Employment:  an act or omission of a Director or Employee of the 
District is within the “Scope of Employment” if it reasonably relates to the business or affairs of the 
District and the act was made in good faith and in a manner a reasonable person would have believed 



2137.0007; 1100049 2 

to be in the best interests of the District. 
 
 2. Tort Actions Governed by the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act. 
 
  The District shall pay, in accordance with §§ 24-10-110, et seq., C.R.S., as amended 
from time to time (the “Act”), the costs of defense of and settlements and judgments against a Director 
or Employee of the District, including reasonable attorney fees, where the action is brought by a third 
party and lies or could lie in tort or are otherwise governed by the Act.  As a prerequisite to such 
payment, the Director or Employee must furnish the District with an affidavit in the form attached 
hereto as “Exhibit A”, incorporated herein by reference, stating that:  (1) to his/her reasonable belief, 
the act or omission upon which the claim is based occurred within the Scope of Employment, as 
defined above; and (2) the act or omission was not willful or wanton.  The Director or Employee shall 
also be required to comply with all relevant provisions of the Act, including but not limited to, 
provision of timely notice to the District of claims in accordance with such Act.  The District shall 
not pay such judgments under this paragraph and shall be reimbursed by the Director or Employee 
for the reasonable costs of his/her defense under this paragraph, including reasonable attorney fees, if 
it is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction that: (1) the injuries did not arise out of an act or 
omission of the Director or Employee occurring within the Scope of Employment; or (2) the act or 
omission was willful and wanton.  
 
 3. Other Non-Criminal Acts and Omissions.  The District hereby agrees to pay the costs 
of defense and settlements and judgments against its Directors and Employees, including reasonable 
attorney fees, for all other third party actions, including but not limited to, actions which lie or could 
lie in contract, or arise under state or federal laws and are not governed by § 24-10-110, C.R.S., except 
for criminal actions, and subject to such limitations as exist in law as of the date of the claim against 
the Director or Employee.  As a prerequisite to such payment, the Director or Employee must furnish 
the District with an affidavit in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A stating that:  (1) to his/her 
reasonable belief, the act or omission upon which the claim is based occurred within the Scope of 
Employment; and (2) the act or omission was not willful or wanton.  The District shall not pay such 
judgments under this paragraph and shall be reimbursed by the Director or Employee for the 
reasonable costs of his/her defense under this paragraph, including reasonable attorney fees, where it 
is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction that: (1) the injuries did not arise out of an act or 
omission of the Director or Employee occurring within the Scope of Employment; or (2) the act or 
omission was willful and wanton. 
 
 4. Criminal Actions.  The District hereby agrees to pay the costs of defense, including 
reasonable attorney fees, and any fines or penalties assessed, where a criminal action is brought 
against its Directors or Employees for acts or omissions occurring during their term or employment 
with the District and within the Scope of Employment, to the extent allowed by law.  As a prerequisite 
to such payment, the Director or Employee must furnish the District with an affidavit in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit A stating that:  (1) to his/her reasonable belief, the act or omission upon 
which the claim is based occurred within the Scope of Employment, and (2) he/she had no reasonable 
cause to believe his/her conduct was unlawful.  The District shall not pay such fines or penalties and 
shall be reimbursed by the Director or Employee for the reasonable costs of his/her defense, including 
reasonable attorney fees, where it is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction, arbitrator, 
mediator, or other third-party binding decision maker that: (1) the injuries did not arise out of an act 



2137.0007; 1100049 3 

or omission of the Director or Employee occurring during his/her term or employment with the 
District and within the Scope of Employment; or (2) the Employee or Director had reasonable cause 
to believe his/her conduct was unlawful. 
 
 5. Miscellaneous Provisions.  The following provisions shall apply to any of the actions 
discussed in Sections 2, 3 and 4 above: 
 

a. No Waiver of Notice Requirements.  The District does not hereby waive the 
notice requirements of its Directors and Employees as set forth in § 24-10-
110(2), C.R.S. Indemnification will not be made and the District shall not be 
liable for defense costs unless written notice of the action is given to the 
District by either the plaintiff, the Director or Employee within fifteen (15) 
days after commencement of such action.  The District shall not indemnify or 
pay the defense costs of a Director or Employee who willfully and knowingly 
fails to notify the District of the act or omission which led to the claim within 
a reasonable time after such act or omission, if such act or omission could 
reasonably have been expected to lead to a claim.   

 
b. Consent to Compromise or Settlement.  The District shall pay no judgment or 

settlement of claims against its Director or Employee where the Director or 
Employee has compromised or settled the claim without the District’s written 
consent. 

 
c. Legal Representation of the Director or Employee.  The District’s legal 

counsel shall serve as counsel to the Director or Employee, unless it appears 
to such counsel that the interests of the District and the Director or Employee 
may be adverse.  In the latter event, the Director or Employee may select 
separate counsel to be approved in writing by the District.  The Director or 
Employee shall cooperate with the District and its legal counsel in his defense. 

 
d. No Indemnification.  In no event will the District indemnify or pay defense 

costs if it is adjudged by the Board of Directors that the Director or Employee 
has acted primarily for personal benefit or on the basis of other improper 
benefit, whether or not the Director or Employee is acting in his official 
capacity. 

 
e. Director’s or Employee’s Costs.  The District shall not be responsible for costs 

to its Directors or Employees associated with time spent in giving depositions, 
testifying or otherwise cooperating with their defense. 

 
 6. No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity.  By the adoption of this Resolution, the District 
does not waive its defense of sovereign immunity as to any action. 
 
 7. No Waiver of Insurance Coverage.  The approval and adoption of this Resolution shall 
not constitute a waiver by the District of insurance coverage with respect to any liability covered by 
this Resolution.  This Resolution shall render the District secondarily liable in the event the District’s 



2137.0007; 1100049 4 

insurance does cover such liability and the conditions of this Resolution are met. 
 
 8. Liberal Construction.  The purpose of this Resolution is to protect Directors and 
Employees of the District against personal liability for their actions taken on behalf of the District and 
reasonably believed to be in the best interest of the District.  Therefore, it is the intent of the District 
that this Resolution be liberally construed in favor of protection of such Directors and Employees. 
 
 9. Liability Limitations.  The District shall indemnify a Director or Employee up to, but 
not in excess of, the applicable limitations of the Act. The District specifically reserves any defenses 
which are available to Directors or Employees under the Act or by common law. 
 
 10. Effect of Other Insurance, Bond or Indemnification Plans.  If the District has insurance 
coverage for any act for which indemnification is provided by this Resolution, its coverage shall be 
primary. If the Director or Employee against whom a claim is subject to indemnification under this 
Resolution is asserted had any other valid insurance, bond or indemnification plan available covering 
the loss or damage alleged against him, and the District does not have adequate insurance coverage, 
and the act for which indemnification is sought is other than as action sounding in tort, such insurance, 
bond or other plan will be first applied to the payment of any defense costs, attorneys’ fees, or 
claim/judgment before the District shall be required to obtain funds for indemnification from sources 
other than insurance. The obligation of the District to indemnify and save harmless the Director or 
Employee shall, in all events, exist only to the extent permitted by this Resolution. 
 
 11. Subrogation Rights of the District.  In the event of any payments pursuant to this 
Resolution, the District or its assigns shall be subrogated to all of the Director’s or Employee’s rights 
of recovery therefor against any person or entity.  The Director or Employee shall execute and deliver 
instruments and papers and do whatever else is necessary to secure such rights. The Director or 
Employee shall do nothing to prejudice such rights. 
 
 12. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be effective as of the date of the organization of 
the District by Order of the El Paso County District Court on December 28, 2020. 
 
 13. Severability and Invalidation.  If any provision, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or 
word herein, or the application thereof in any given circumstance of this Resolution is found to be 
invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such finding shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of this Resolution, unless such invalidation would act to destroy the intent or essence of 
this Resolution. 
 
 14. Renewal of Indemnifications.  Unless repealed by resolution of the Board of Directors 
of the District on or before January 30 of the then current fiscal year, the indemnification established 
herein shall be effective from and after the date of adoption, and shall be deemed automatically 
extended from year to year to the extent permitted by law; provided, however, that nothing shall 
prevent the Board from separately appropriating funds from time to time for the purposes 
authorized in this Resolution. 
 
 15. Attorneys.  In the event there is litigation over the enforceability of this Resolution, 
the prevailing party in such litigation shall be awarded its reasonable attorneys fees.



2137.0007; 1100049  

ADOPTED this 20th day of January, 2021. 
 
 

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS 
METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-8 

 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Officer of the Districts 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
      
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON  
Attorneys At Law 
 
 
       
General Counsel to the Districts 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signature Page to Joint Resolution Providing for the Defense and Indemnification of Directors and 

Employees



2137.0007; 1100049  

EXHIBIT A 
 

Form of Indemnification Affidavit 
 



2137.0007; 1100049 2 

AFFIDAVIT OF ELIGIBILITY FOR INDEMNIFICATION 
 
 “I, _________________________, who reside at _________________________________, 

Colorado, affirm under oath that I have been subjected to legal action in connection with actions that 

I have taken or omissions that I have suffered in my capacity as a Director or Employee of Mayberry, 

Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. __ (the “District”), and that I am eligible for 

indemnification by the District because: (1) these actions or omissions reasonably relate to the 

business or affairs of the District; (2) the actions or omissions were undertaken in good faith, and in 

a manner a reasonable person would have believed to be in the best interests of the District; (3) these 

actions or omissions were not willful or wanton; and (4) I did not have reasonable cause to believe 

that these actions or omissions were unlawful.  Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine 

any of the following: (1) these actions or omissions were not reasonably related to the business or 

affairs of the District; (2) I did not take these actions or suffer these omissions in good faith, and in a 

manner a reasonable person would have believed to be in the best interests of the District; (3) these 

actions or omissions were willful or wanton; or (4) one or more of these actions or omissions was 

unlawful and I had reasonable cause to believe that said action or omission was unlawful; then I agree 

that the District shall have no further obligations to indemnify or defend me, and I shall reimburse the 

District for its prior costs in indemnifying and defending me, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.” 

 

 
 
        
Date       Signature of Director or Employee 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ___________  ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this   day of  
  , 20__, by ____________________. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
 
My commission expires: _________________. 



 

2137.0007: 1100054 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-01-05 
 

JOINT RESOLUTION OF THE 
BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-8 
 

ADOPTING THE COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICT RECORDS RETENTION 
SCHEDULE 

      
 

WHEREAS, the Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 (each 
reference to a “District” herein shall mean a reference to each of the Districts individually and 
each reference to a “Board” herein shall mean a reference to each of the Boards individually) 
was organized pursuant to §§ 32-1-101, et seq., C.R.S., as amended (the “Special District Act”), 
and is a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(h), C.R.S., the Board of Directors of the District 

(the “Board”) shall have the management, control and supervision of all the business and affairs 
of the District; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District recognizes a need for a comprehensive records retention 

schedule for the District’s non-permanent records and the retention of those records that have 
long-term administrative, fiscal and historical value; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Colorado State Archives has developed a state-wide record retention 
schedule in cooperation with the Colorado Special Districts Association, the Colorado Attorney 
General’s Office and the State Auditor’s Office for special districts to use and follow; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District believes it is important to follow the same schedule for the 

retention of the District’s non-permanent records. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. ADOPTION OF RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE.  The District hereby 
adopts the 2008 Colorado Special District Records Retention Schedule, and all subsequent 
revisions thereto, and authorizes the District’s legal counsel to submit the request to the Colorado 
State Archives for the Schedule to be used as legal authority for the destruction and preservation 
of the District’s records. 
  
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank.  Signature Page Follows]. 



 
 
2137.0007: 1100054 
 

ADOPTED this 20th day of January, 2021. 
 
 

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS 
METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-8, 
 quasi-municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado 
 
 
_____________________________   
Officer of the Districts 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

_____________________________   
 

 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON  
Attorneys At Law 
 
 
       
General Counsel to the Districts 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signature page to Joint Resolution Adopting the Colorado Special District Records 
Retention Schedule 



2137.0026: 1100057 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-01-06 

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-8 
JOINT PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST POLICY 

 
Adopted January 20, 2021 

              

I. Purposes of the District’s Public Records Request Policy 

This Public Records Request Policy of the Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan 
District Nos. 3-8 (each reference to a “District” herein shall mean a reference to each of the 
Districts individually and each reference to a “Board” herein shall mean a reference to each of 
the Boards individually) shall be applied and interpreted with the following purposes in mind: 

a. To adopt a Public Records Request Policy pursuant to § 24-72-203(1), C.R.S.; 

b. To provide access to and the protection and integrity of Public Records in the 
custody of the District;  

c. To prevent unnecessary interference with the regular discharge of the duties of the 
District and its manager in compliance with the Colorado Open Records Act, §§ 24-72-200.1 to 
24-72-206, C.R.S. (“CORA”);  

d. To establish reasonable and standardized fees for producing copies of and 
information from records maintained by the District as authorized by CORA; and 

e. To set forth a general procedure for providing consistent, prompt and equitable 
service to those requesting access to Public Records.   

II. Public Records Requests 

A. Applicability 

This Public Records Request Policy applies to requests submitted to the District for the 
inspection of Public Records pursuant to CORA, and shall supersede any previously adopted 
CORA policies of the District. 

B. Definitions 

“Custodian”:  Except as otherwise provided in this policy, the term “Custodian” 
shall mean White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron, or any successor that has been designated by 
the Board of the District to oversee the collection, retention, and retrieval of Public Records of 
the District.  

1. “Public Records”:  As defined in § 24-72-202(6), C.R.S. 

C. Submission of Requests 

1. Requests for inspection of Public Records are to be submitted in writing 
on an official request form to the Custodian and must be sufficiently specific as to enable the 
Custodian to locate the information requested with reasonable effort. The official request form is 



2137.0026; 1100057 

attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference, as may be modified from 
time to time by the District. The District has determined that the use of an official request form is 
necessary for the efficient handling of Public Records requests. 

2. Requests may be submitted by mail, fax, e-mail or hand-delivery.  

3. A request shall be considered made when the request is actually received 
by the Custodian: 

a. A letter is received when it is opened in the usual course of 
business by the recipient or a person authorized to open the recipient’s mail; 

b. A fax is received when it is printed during regular business hours, 
or, if received after hours, at 8:30 a.m. on the following business day; and 

c. An e-mail is received when it is received and opened during 
regular business hours, or, if received after hours, at 8:30 a.m. on the following business 
day. 

4. If a deposit is required, the request is not considered received until the 
deposit is paid.   

D. Inspection 

1. The Custodian or the Custodian’s designee shall make the requested 
Public Records available for inspection during regular business hours, deemed to be from 8:30 
a.m. to 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, except for times the Custodian’s office is closed.  
During the inspection of Public Records, the Custodian may ask that the requestor follow certain 
procedures to protect the integrity of the Public Records. 

2. If a Public Record is not immediately or readily available for inspection, 
the Custodian or the Custodian’s designee shall make an appointment or other arrangements with 
the applicant concerning the time at which the requested record will be available.  The Public 
Records shall be made available for inspection within a reasonable time, which is presumed to be 
three (3) working days or less from the date of receipt of the request.  Such three (3) day period 
may be extended by an additional seven (7) working days if extenuating circumstances, as 
described in § 24-72-203(3)(b), C.R.S., exist.  Responding to applications for inspection of 
Public Records need not take priority over the previously scheduled work activities of the 
Custodian or the Custodian’s designee. 

3. All Public Records to which the request applies shall be preserved from 
the date of the request until such time as set forth in the District’s records maintenance, retention, 
or deletion policy or practices utilized by the Custodian.   

4. No one shall remove a Public Record from the Custodian’s offices without 
the permission of the Custodian.  Public Records may be removed from file folders or places of 
storage for photocopying by the Custodian or the Custodian’s designee.  The Custodian may 
allow a person to use his or her own portable electronic equipment to make copies of Public 
Records. 



2137.0026; 1100057 

5. As a general practice, in response to a Public Records request: 

a. Public Records will be made available for inspection in the format 
in which they are stored. If the Custodian is unable to produce the Public Record in its 
stored format for any reason set forth in § 24-72-203(3.5)(b) C.R.S., an alternate format 
may be produced or a denial issued under § 24-72-204, C.R.S. 

b. The person making the request shall not be allowed to access the 
Custodian’s computer or any other computer for purposes of inspecting any Public 
Records; 

c. Any portion of a Public Record containing non-public information 
that is not subject to inspection may be redacted by the Custodian prior to making the 
record available for inspection.  The Custodian is not required to redact information from 
a writing that is not a Public Record in order to make the writing available for inspection.  
Denver Publishing Co. v. Bd. of County Comm’rs of the County of Arapahoe, 121 P.3d 
190 (Colo. 2005); Colorado Republican Party v. Benefield, et al., Court of Appeals 
No. 07CA1216, Oct. 23, 2008 (Unpublished). 

d. The Custodian, in consultation with the District’s general counsel, 
will determine which information is no longer considered “work-in-progress” subject to 
the deliberative process or work product privilege and therefore eligible for release.   

e. Altering an existing Public Record, or excising fields of 
information that the Custodian is either required or permitted to withhold does not 
constitute the creation of a new Public Record. § 24-72-203(3.5)(d), C.R.S.  

f. A document will not ordinarily be created in order to respond to a 
request. 

6. Where a request seeks in excess of 25 electronically-stored Public 
Records, the following procedure shall apply in responding to such a request: 

a. The Custodian shall solicit the comments of the requestor 
regarding any search terms to be used to locate and extract such records, and, in doing so, 
will seek to have the request refined so that it does not result in an inordinate number of 
irrelevant or duplicative documents, it being understood that the Custodian will make the 
final determination regarding search terms; 

b. The Custodian shall designate an employee or another person with 
experience in performing electronic searches to locate and extract responsive records;  

c. The person who is designated to perform the searches shall 
consult, as appropriate, with legal counsel to identify privileged records that should not 
be produced; and 

d. Where appropriate, legal counsel shall conduct a final review to 
identify and withhold privileged records.   



2137.0026; 1100057 

7. The Custodian or the Custodian’s designee shall deny the inspection of the 
records if such inspection would be contrary to federal or state law or regulation or would violate 
a court order.  In special circumstances, a Custodian shall deny inspection of the Public Records 
if such inspection would cause substantial injury to the public interest.  Such a denial shall be 
made in writing by the Custodian to the person making the request and shall set forth with 
specificity the grounds of the denial.  It is not necessary to state a ground for denial of access for 
each document if a specific ground is applicable to a group of documents.    

8. If the Public Records requested are not in the custody or control of the 
Custodian, the Custodian shall notify the requestor of this fact in writing.  In such notification, 
the Custodian shall state in detail to the best of his/her knowledge and belief the reason for the 
absence of the Public Records, the location of the Public Records, and what person then has 
custody or control of the Public Records.    

9. All Public Records, regardless of storage format, will be administered in 
accordance with approved retention schedules.  The District reserves the right to adopt the 
records retention policy that has been promulgated by the Custodian. 

E. Fees for All Record Requests 

1. Fees for standard reproductions.  The Custodian or the Custodian’s 
designee shall charge a fee not to exceed twenty-five cents per page for any photocopies or 
printed copies of electronic records that are required to make a Public Record available.  Other 
reproductions of Public Records shall be provided at a cost not to exceed the actual cost of the 
reproduction.  Such fees shall be paid by the applicant prior to the receipt of copies of any Public 
Records.  Requests expected to exceed a total charge of $10.00 or more must be accompanied by 
a deposit equal to the reasonably-estimated reproduction costs.  This deposit will be credited 
toward the total fee, and the total fee shall be paid prior to release of the requested records.  In 
the event the deposit amount exceeds the actual costs, the balance will be refunded. 

2. Transmission fees.  No fees related to transmission shall be charged for 
transmitting public records via electronic mail.  Within the period specified in § 24-72-203, 
C.R.S., the Custodian shall notify the record requester that a copy of the record is available but 
will only be sent to the requester once the custodian receives payment for postage if the copy is 
transmitted by United States mail, or payment for the cost of delivery if the copy is transmitted 
other than by United States mail, and payment for any other supplies used in the mailing, 
delivery, or transmission of the record and for all other costs associated with producing the 
record.  Upon receiving such payment, the custodian shall send the record to the requester as 
soon as practicable but no more than three business days after receipt of such payment. 

3. Fees for search, retrieval and legal review: 

a. In the case of any request requiring more than one hour of  time for 
search, retrieval, supervision of inspection, copying, manipulation, redaction or legal 
counsel review to identify and withhold privileged records, the Custodian or the 
Custodian’s designee may charge an hourly fee not to exceed $33.58 per hour for such 
time pursuant to § 24-72-205(6)(a), C.R.S.  Prior to performing any services necessary to 
respond to a request, the Custodian or the Custodian’s designee shall require the applicant 
to pay a deposit equal to the reasonably estimated fees that will be charged by the 



2137.0026; 1100057 

Custodian for such staff time.  Before receiving any records, the applicant shall also pay 
the amount by which the cost of any open records services exceeds the deposit.  The 
District shall promptly refund the amount by which the deposit exceeds the cost of any 
open records services. 

b. To the extent possible, the Custodian shall utilize administrative or 
clerical staff for search and retrieval of Public Records who are ordinarily responsible for 
such duties to ensure that the fees charged for staff time in connection with the request 
represent costs incurred in the ordinary course of business and not extraordinary charges, 
but in any case, such charges shall be consistent with § 24-72-205(6), C.R.S.   

 

Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank. Signature page follows. 



2137.0026; 1100057 

 ADOPTED this 20th day of January, 2021. 
 
 

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS 
METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-8 

 
              
  Officer of Districts 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
    

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 
 
                                                                     
General Counsel to the Districts 
 

Signature Page to Joint Public Records Request Policy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2137.0026; 1100057 

EXHIBIT A 

OFFICIAL REQUEST FORM 

 



2137.0026: 1100057 

MAYBERRY, COLROARO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-8 
 

Request for Inspection/Copy of Public Records 
 
 

Applicant Name:    
 
Applicant Address:     
City/State:                               Zip:     

 
Daytime Phone #:(       )   Alt./Cell: (       )  
 
Email:      

 
Detailed description of the records requested:  (Please use additional sheets if necessary) 
               
               
                
Select a preferred format for the materials:  Hard Copies ____  Electronic ____  View Hard Copy Only ____ 

 

I request the records described and agree to pay all charges incurred in processing this request at or 
before the time the records are made available.  If over $10, I understand I must provide a deposit to 
pay for the cost incurred to obtain the records.  I understand that the Estimated Charges are 
estimates only, and that the actual cost may vary.  This request will be considered received when 
this form is complete and received by the Custodian and any required deposit is paid.     

 
Signature:   Date:  

 
Submit Request Form To: 
White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron 
2154 East Commons Avenue, Suite 2000 
Centennial, Colorado 80122 

 
If the records are available pursuant to §§ 24-72-201, et seq., C.R.S., the records shall be made available for viewing within three (3) working days. 
The date of receipt is not included in calculating the response date. If extenuating circumstances exist so that the Custodian cannot reasonably gather 
the records within the three (3)-day period, the Custodian may extend the period by up to seven (7) working days. The requestor shall be notified of 
the extension within the three (3)-day period.  Public records shall be viewed at the District’s offices during regular business days at prearranged 
times. 

 

 

For Internal Use Only 
Estimated Charges 

Number of Pages _______ at $0.25/page _______ Research & Retrieval ______Hours at $_____/Hr  
See § 24-72-205(6), C.R.S. for hourly fee 
Research & Retrieval Total: $ ______ Postage/Delivery Costs:  $_________________ 

Deposit Required: $______________________ Total Estimate Cost: $____________________ 
Note: Non-standard and special requests will be billed at cost and charged in addition to any other fees 

Administrative Matters 
Date Request Completed: Amount Prepaid:  $___________________ 
Approved:___________ Denied: _____________ Balance Due Before Release:  $__________ 
If Denied, Provide Reason(s): Total Amount Paid:  $_________________ 

     For Internal Use Only 
    Date of Request:  ___________ 
     Time of Request:  ____ AM/PM 
 
       

       
    

mailto:_________@$0.25/page


Resolution No. 2021-01-07 
 

JOINT RESOLUTION OF THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF 
MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1-8 

 
CONCERNING THE LOCATION OF SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETINGS 

OF THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos.  1-8 (each, a “District”) 
was formed pursuant to §§ 32-1-101 et seq., C.R.S., by order of the District Court in and for El Paso 
County, Colorado, and after approval of the District’s eligible electors at a regular election held for that 
purpose; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to §32-1-903(1), C.R.S., all special and/or regular meetings of the 
District’s Board of Directors must be held within the District’s boundaries, within the boundaries of El 
Paso County, or in any location not farther than Twenty (20) miles from the District’s boundaries; and  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the District’s Board of Directors hereby RESOLVES as follows: 
 
 1. As of the date hereof, all regular and/or special meetings of the District’s Board of 
Directors shall be held as follows: 
 
 Regular Meetings: November 11, 2021 at 1:00 P.M. 
 
 Special Meetings: as deemed necessary by the District’s Board of Directors, at dates and 
times to be determined. 
 
 Meeting Location:  2154 East Commons Avenue, Suite 2000, Centennial, Colorado 80122 
  
 2. The above dates, time and location shall remain in effect until contrary action is taken by 
the District’s Board of Directors, which action must comply with §32-1-903(1), C.R.S., or §§32-1-
903(1)(a) - 32-1-903(1)(b), C.R.S. 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 



2137.0007; 1100109 

ADOPTED this 20th day of January, 2021. 
 

 
MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS 
METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1-8 
 
 
        

 Officer of the Districts 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 
 
       
General Counsel to the Districts 
 

 
 
[Signature Page to Joint Resolution Concerning Location of Special and Regular Meetings] 



Resolution No. 2021-01-09 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-8 

 
CONCERNING THE LOCATION OF SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETINGS 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos.  3-8 (each, a “District”)  
was formed pursuant to §§ 32-1-101 et seq., C.R.S., by order of the District Court in and for El Paso 
County, Colorado, and after approval of the District’s eligible electors at a regular election held for that 
purpose; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to §32-1-903(1), C.R.S., all special and/or regular meetings of the 
District’s Board of Directors must be held within the District’s boundaries, within the boundaries of 
Douglas County, or in any location not farther than Twenty (20) miles from the District’s boundaries; 
and  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the District’s Board of Directors hereby RESOLVES as follows: 
 
 1. As of the date hereof, all regular and/or special meetings of the District’s Board of 
Directors shall be held as follows: 
 
 Regular Meetings: November 11, 2021 at 1:00 P.M. 
 
 Special Meetings: as deemed necessary by the District’s Board of Directors, at dates and 
times to be determined. 
 
 Meeting Location:  2154 East Commons Avenue, Suite 2000, Centennial, Colorado 80122 
  
 
 2. The above dates, time and location shall remain in effect until contrary action is taken by 
the District’s Board of Directors, which action must comply with §32-1-903(1), C.R.S., or §§32-1-
903(1)(a) - 32-1-903(1)(b), C.R.S. 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 



2137.0007; 1100665 

 
ADOPTED this 20th day of January, 2021. 
 

 
MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS 
METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-8 
 
 
        

 Officer of the Districts 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 
 
       
General Counsel to the District 
 

 
 
[Signature Page to Resolution Concerning Location of Special and Regular Meetings] 



Gross Discount Net Cash
GL Account Description Open Amount Available Open Amount Required

BBA Bishop Brogden Accociates, Inc

Reference: 47189 Date: 11/15/20 Discount exp date:
GL AP account: 102500 Due date: 11/15/20 Payment term:

107584 Engineering - Bishop Brogden Accociates, Inc 4,118.25
Totals 4,118.25 0.00 4,118.25 4,118.25

Totals for Bishop Brogden Accociates, Inc 4,118.25 0.00 4,118.25 4,118.25

CLA CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP

Reference: 2693273 Date: 11/30/20 Discount exp date:
GL AP account: 102500 Due date: 11/30/20 Payment term:

107000 Accounting - CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP 2,776.15
Totals 2,776.15 0.00 2,776.15 2,776.15

Totals for CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP 2,776.15 0.00 2,776.15 2,776.15

CSDPL Colorado Special District P&L Pool

Reference: POL-0004753 Date: 09/22/20 Discount exp date:
GL AP account: 102500 Due date: 09/22/20 Payment term:

101255 Prepaid insurance - Colorado Special District 
P&L Pool

2,016.00

Totals 2,016.00 0.00 2,016.00 2,016.00

Reference: POL-0005386 Date: 09/22/20 Discount exp date:
GL AP account: 102500 Due date: 09/22/20 Payment term:

101255 Prepaid insurance - Colorado Special District 
P&L Pool

2,036.00

Totals 2,036.00 0.00 2,036.00 2,036.00

Totals for Colorado Special District P&L Pool 4,052.00 0.00 4,052.00 4,052.00

MMI Water MMI Water Engineers

Reference: 1368 Date: 11/16/20 Discount exp date:
GL AP account: 102500 Due date: 11/16/20 Payment term:

107584 Engineering - MMI Water Engineers 208.00
Totals 208.00 0.00 208.00 208.00

Totals for MMI Water Engineers 208.00 0.00 208.00 208.00

RLI RLI Surety

Reference: 2020 #3 Date: 10/13/20 Discount exp date:
GL AP account: 102500 Due date: 10/13/20 Payment term:

107350 Dues and licenses - RLI Surety 250.00
Totals 250.00 0.00 250.00 250.00

Reference: 2020 #6 Date: 10/13/20 Discount exp date:
GL AP account: 102500 Due date: 10/13/20 Payment term:

107350 Dues and licenses - RLI Surety 250.00
Totals 250.00 0.00 250.00 250.00

Reference: 2020 #5 Date: 10/13/20 Discount exp date:
GL AP account: 102500 Due date: 10/13/20 Payment term:

107350 Dues and licenses - RLI Surety 250.00
Totals 250.00 0.00 250.00 250.00

Mayberry, Colorado Springs MD No. 1
Cash Requirement Report - Detailed

All Dates



Gross Discount Net Cash
GL Account Description Open Amount Available Open Amount Required

Reference: 2020 #7 Date: 10/13/20 Discount exp date:
GL AP account: 102500 Due date: 10/13/20 Payment term:

107350 Dues and licenses - RLI Surety 250.00
Totals 250.00 0.00 250.00 250.00

Reference: 2020 #8 Date: 10/13/20 Discount exp date:
GL AP account: 102500 Due date: 10/13/20 Payment term:

107350 Dues and licenses - RLI Surety 250.00
Totals 250.00 0.00 250.00 250.00

Reference: 2020 #4 Date: 10/13/20 Discount exp date:
GL AP account: 102500 Due date: 10/13/20 Payment term:

107350 Dues and licenses - RLI Surety 250.00
Totals 250.00 0.00 250.00 250.00

Totals for RLI Surety 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00

T Charles T. Charles Wilson

Reference: 8958 Date: 10/09/20 Discount exp date:
GL AP account: 102500 Due date: 10/09/20 Payment term:

101255 Prepaid insurance - T. Charles Wilson 495.00
Totals 495.00 0.00 495.00 495.00

Reference: 8959 Date: 10/09/20 Discount exp date:
GL AP account: 102500 Due date: 10/09/20 Payment term:

101255 Prepaid insurance - T. Charles Wilson 495.00
Totals 495.00 0.00 495.00 495.00

Totals for T. Charles Wilson 990.00 0.00 990.00 990.00

WBA White, Bear & Ankele PC

Reference: 13224 Date: 11/30/20 Discount exp date:
GL AP account: 102500 Due date: 11/30/20 Payment term:

107460 Legal services - White, Bear & Ankele PC 10,268.69
107581 Election expense - White, Bear & Ankele PC 8,819.10

Totals 19,087.79 0.00 19,087.79 19,087.79

Totals for White, Bear & Ankele PC 19,087.79 0.00 19,087.79 19,087.79

Company Totals 32,732.19 0.00 32,732.19 32,732.19

Mayberry, Colorado Springs MD No. 1
Cash Requirement Report - Detailed

All Dates



MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS MD NO. 1

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2020

PRELIMINARY DRAFT - SUBJECT TO REVISION



General Debt Service Capital Projects Total

ASSETS
Cash - Checking -$ 17,317$ -$ 17,317$
Due from other districts 519 - - 519
Due from other funds - 720 - 720
Receivable from County Treasurer 8 40 - 48
Prepaid insurance 5,042 - - 5,042

TOTAL ASSETS 5,569$ 18,077$ -$ 23,646$

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 32,732$ -$ -$ 32,732$
Due to other funds 720 - - 720

Total Liabilities 33,452 - - 33,452

FUND BALANCES
Total Fund Balances (27,883) 18,077 - (9,806)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 5,569$ 18,077$ -$ 23,646$

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS MD NO. 1
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2020

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.

1
PRELIMINARY DRAFT - SUBJECT TO REVISION



Annual
Budget

Year to Date
Actual Variance

REVENUES

Property taxes 742$ 742$ -$
Specific ownership tax 45 82 37

TOTAL REVENUES 787 824 37

EXPENDITURES

Accounting 15,000 17,051 (2,051)
Auditing 1,000 - 1,000
County Treasurer's fee 22 22 -
Directors' fees 400 - 400
Dues and licenses - 1,500 (1,500)
Insurance and bonds 3,500 6,528 (3,028)
District management 30,000 4,357 25,643
Legal services 38,000 75,315 (37,315)
Miscellaneous 600 392 208
Organization costs - 25,361 (25,361)
Payroll taxes 31 - 31
Election expense 5,000 21,673 (16,673)
Engineering 30,000 37,453 (7,453)
Contingency 3,000 - 3,000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 126,553 189,652 (63,099)

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (125,766) (188,828) (63,062)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Developer advance 129,564 157,111 27,547

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 129,564 157,111 27,547

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 3,798 (31,717) (35,515)

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING - 3,835 3,835

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 3,798$ (27,882)$ (31,680)$

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS MD NO. 1
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

GENERAL FUND

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements, 
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – governmental funds have been omitted.

2

PRELIMINARY DRAFT - SUBJECT TO REVISION



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

PRELIMINARY DRAFT - SUBJECT TO REVISION



Annual
Budget

Year to Date
Actual Variance

REVENUES

Property taxes 3,711$ 3,711$ -$
Specific ownership tax 250 411 161

TOTAL REVENUES 3,961 4,122 161

EXPENDITURES

County Treasurer's fee 111 111 -
Repay developer advance 17,837 - 17,837

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 17,948 111 17,837

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (13,987) 4,011 17,998

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING - 14,067 14,067

FUND BALANCES - ENDING (13,987)$ 18,078$ 32,065$

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS MD NO. 1
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

DEBT SERVICE FUND

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements, 
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – governmental funds have been omitted.

4
PRELIMINARY DRAFT - SUBJECT TO REVISION



MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 
2021 BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

SERVICES PROVIDED 

The District, a quasi-municipal corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, was 
organized by order and decree of the District Court for the City of Colorado Springs in 2007 and is governed 
pursuant to provisions of the Colorado Special District Act (Title 32, Article 1, Colorado Revised Statutes). 

The District was established to provide financing for the design, acquisition, installation, construction and 
completion of public improvements and services, including water, sanitation, street, safety protection, park 
and recreation, transportation, television relay and translation and mosquito control improvements and 
services.

The District has no employees and all administrative functions are contracted. 

The District prepares its budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the 
requirements of Colorado Revised Statutes C.R>S. 29-1-105 using its best estimates as of the date of the 
budget hearing. These estimates are based on expected conditions and its expected course of actions. The 
assumptions disclosed herein are those that the District believes are significant to the budget. There will 
usually be differences between the budget and actual results, because events and circumstances frequently 
do not occur as expected, and those differences may be material. 

REVENUES 

Property Taxes 

Property taxes are levied by the District’s Board of Directors.  The levy is based on assessed valuations 
determined by the County Assessor generally as of January 1 of each year. The levy is normally set by 
December 15 by certification to the County Commissioners to put the tax lien on the individual properties 
as of January 1 of the following year. The County Treasurer collects the determined taxes during the ensuing 
calendar year. The taxes are payable by April or, if in equal installments, at the taxpayer’s election, in 
February and June. Delinquent taxpayers are notified in August and generally sales of the tax liens on 
delinquent properties are held in November or December. The County Treasurer remits the taxes collected 
monthly to the District. 

The calculation of the taxes levied is displayed on the Property Tax Summary page of the budget using the 
adopted mill levy imposed by the District. 

Specific Ownership Taxes 

Specific ownership taxes are set by the State and collected by the County Treasurer, primarily on vehicle 
licensing within the County as a whole. The specific ownership taxes are allocated by the County Treasurer 
to all taxing entities within the County. The budget assumes that the District’s share will be equal to 
approximately 10% of the property taxes collected by the General Fund and the Debt Service Fund. The 
budget assumes that all of the specific ownership taxes will be pledged to debt service on the bonds during 
the term the bonds are outstanding. 

PRELIMINARY DRAFT - SUBJECT TO REVISION



Developer Advance 

Developer advances are expected to fund a portion of general fund expenditures. Developer advances are 
to be recorded as revenue for budget purposes with an obligation for future repayment when the District is 
financially able to issue bonds to reimburse the Developer. 

EXPENDITURES

Administrative and Operating Expenditures

Operating and administrative expenditures include the estimated services necessary to maintain the 
District’s administrative viability such as legal, management, accounting, insurance and meeting expense. 
Estimated expenditures related to street repairs and maintenance, street lights, street sweeping, landscaping,
mowing, parks and open space maintenance, utilities and snow removal were also included the General 
Fund budget. 

Maintenance and Repairs 

Maintenance and repairs have been estimated by the District's engineer. The estimated expenditures include 
periodic cleaning of certain mains and repairs to the system that was constructed in previous years.

General Government 

Estimated expenditures for City Council include stipends for the Council, travel, seminars and training, and 
other related expenditures. City Clerk expenditures include cost of public elections and publication costs 
for legal publications including ordinances and hearings. Services contracted out include legal, accounting, 
and economic development. Estimates for these have been based on prior year’s costs and adjusted for
expected activity. 

County Treasurer’s Fees 

County Treasurer’s fees have been computed at 1.5% of property tax collections.

RESERVES

Emergency Reserve

The District has provided for an emergency reserve fund equal to at least 3% of fiscal year spending as 
defined under TABOR. 

This information is an integral part of the accompanying forecasted budget. 

PRELIMINARY DRAFT - SUBJECT TO REVISION



General Debt Service
Fund Fund* Total

1st Bank Checking
Balance as of 12/31/2020 -$  17,317.23$          17,317.23$          

1/10/2021 Ptax Deposit 7.93 39.66 47.59 
Subsequent activities:

Anticipated Vouchers (32,732.19)          - (32,732.19)

Anticipated Developer Advance 32,732.19           - 32,732.19
Anticipated Balance 7.93 17,356.89            (15,367.37)           

.

Total Anticipated Balance 7.93 17,356.89            (15,367.37)           

MAYBERRY COLORADO SPRINGS METRO DISTRICT 
Schedule of Cash Position

December 31, 2020
Updated as of January 10, 2020

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements, and 
the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.

7

PRELIMINARY DRAFT - SUBJECT TO REVISION



Delinquent Specific Net Total
Property Taxes, Rebates Ownership Treasurer's Amount Cash 

Taxes and Abatements Taxes Interest Fees Received Monthly Y-T-D Received Monthly Y-T-D

January -$  -$  45.02$              -$  -$  45.02$             0.00% 0.00% 31.78$             0.00% 0.00%
February 203.73             - 39.74 - (6.12) 237.35             4.58% 4.58% 23.00 0.00% 0.00%
March - - 32.66 - - 32.66               0.00% 4.58% 180.70 5.46% 5.46%
April - - 31.18 - - 31.18               0.00% 4.58% 2,524.87           89.07% 94.54%
May - - 35.94 - - 35.94               0.00% 4.58% 24.52 0.00% 94.54%
June - - 40.16 - - 40.16               0.00% 4.58% 186.01 5.46% 100.00%
July 203.73             - 44.29 - (6.12) 241.90             4.58% 9.15% 30.79 0.00% 100.00%
August - - 47.30 - - 47.30               0.00% 9.15% 29.41 0.00% 100.00%
September 4,045.89           - 41.00 - (121.38) 3,965.51           90.86% 100.01% 26.97 0.00% 100.00%
October - 47.59 - 47.59               0.00% 100.01% 35.81 0.00% 100.00%
November - - 40.16 - - 40.16               0.00% 100.01% 29.92 0.00% 100.00%
December - - 47.59 - - 47.59               0.00% 100.01% 31.58 0.00% 100.00%

4,453.35$         -$  492.63$             -$  (133.62)$            4,812.36$         100.01% 100.01% 3,155.36$         100.00% 100.00%

 Taxes Levied  % of Levied 
 Property Taxes 

Collected 
 % Collected to 
Amount Levied 

Property Tax
General Fund 742.00$  16.66% 742.06$              100.01%
Debt Service 3,711.00 83.34% 3,711.29$           100.01%
Total 4,453.00$  100.00% 4,453.35$           100.01%

Specific Ownership Tax
General Fund 45.00$  16.66% 82.09$                182.42%
Debt Service 250.00 83.34% 410.54$              164.22%
Total 295.00$  100.00% 492.63$              166.99%

Treasurer's Fees
General Fund 22.00$  16.66% 22.26$                101.18%
Debt Service 111.00 83.34% 111.36$              100.32%
Total 133.00$  100.00% 133.62$              100.47%

MAYBERRY COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
Property Taxes Reconciliation

2020

Current Year Prior Year
% of Total Property % of Total Property

Taxes Received Taxes Received

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements, and the statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.

8PRELIMINARY DRAFT - SUBJECT TO REVISION



WILLIAM P. ANKELE, JR. 
JENNIFER GRUBER TANAKA 
CLINT C. WALDRON 
KRISTIN BOWERS TOMPKINS 
ROBERT G. ROGERS 
BLAIR M. DICKHONER 
 
OF COUNSEL: 
KRISTEN D. BEAR 
K. SEAN ALLEN 
GEORGE M. ROWLEY  

ZACHARY P. WHITE 
TRISHA K. HARRIS 

HEATHER L. HARTUNG 
MEGAN J. MURPHY 

EVE M. G. VELASCO 
ALLISON C. FOGG 

LAURA S. HEINRICH 
AUDREY G. JOHNSON 

LISA CANCANON 

 

2154 E. Commons Ave., Ste. 2000   |  Centennial, CO  80122|   P 303.858.1800     F 303.858.1801  |  WhiteBearAnkele.com 

  0895.0002; 1100196 

January 20, 2021 

 
Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan 
District No. 1 
c/o 2154 E. Commons Avenue, Suite 2000 
Centennial, Colorado 80122 

   Boards of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs 
Metropolitan District Nos. 2-8 
c/o 2154 E. Commons Avenue, Suite 
2000 Centennial, Colorado 80122 

 

RE: Transaction-Based Informed Consent to Representation  

Dear Directors: 

White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron (“WBA”) currently serves as general counsel to 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 1 (“District No. 1”) and as general counsel to 
the Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 2-8 (collectively, “District Nos. 2-8,” and, 
together with District No. 1, the “Districts”).  The Districts desire to enter into a First Amendment to 
the District Coordinating Services Agreement whereby District No. 1 will conduct Administrative 
Services, as defined in the Agreement, on behalf of District Nos. 2-8, and in exchange District Nos. 
2-8 will impose an Operations Mill Levy and remit the revenues to District No. 1 (the “Transaction”).  
Because they are on opposite sides of the Transaction, the Districts may be in adverse positions to 
each other.  Even though the Districts are currently cooperative and both may desire WBA to serve as 
counsel to both parties to the Transaction, WBA is limited by the Rules of Professional Conflict from 
serving in this capacity.  

Generally, it is a conflict of interest for a lawyer to represent both sides to a transaction.  It is 
also a conflict of interest for a lawyer to represent one client in a transaction in which the other party 
to the transaction is also a client of the same lawyer or that lawyer’s firm in other matters.  In this 
instance, it is permissible for the firm to represent one but not both clients in the transaction if both 
clients provide informed consent, confirmed in writing by the lawyer.   

As we have discussed previously, WBA believes that this is an instance in which it can provide 
competent and diligent representation to District No. 1 even though District No. 2 is the other party to 
the Transaction.  If each District consents to this arrangement, WBA would represent District No. 1 
but not District Nos. 2-8 in the Transaction.  We recommend that both Districts consult with separate 
legal counsel regarding this request for consent.  Spencer Fane has been retained as special counsel to 
represent District Nos. 2-8 in the Transaction. 

  



Boards of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 1  
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 2-8 
RE: Transaction-Based Informed Consent to Representation  
January 20, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 

 
 

WBA will continue to serve as general counsel to both Districts in matters unrelated to the 
Transaction.  Should you have any questions or wish to discuss this matter further, please do not 
hesitate to contact me. 

      Sincerely, 
 

      WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
      Attorneys at Law 
 
 
 

Jennifer Gruber Tanaka, Esq. 
 
 
District No. 1 understands the conflict of interest described in this letter and provides its informed 
consent to WBA’s continued representation of District No. 1 in the Transaction.  
 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 1  
 
By:         
Signature 
 
Printed Name:       
Position:       
Date:         
 
 
District Nos. 2-8 understand the conflict of interest described in this letter and provides its informed 
consent to WBA’s continued representation of District No. 1 in the Transaction.  
 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 2-8 
 
By:         
Signature 
 
Printed Name:       
Position:       
Date:         

 



 
2154 E. Commons Ave., Ste. 2000   |  Centennial, CO  80122 |   P 303.858.1800 F 303.858.1801  | WhiteBearAnkele.com 

 
WILLIAM P. ANKELE, JR. 
JENNIFER GRUBER TANAKA 
CLINT C. WALDRON 
KRISTIN BOWERS TOMPKINS 
ROBERT G. ROGERS 
BLAIR M. DICKHONER 
 
OF COUNSEL: 
KRISTEN D. BEAR 
SEAN ALLEN 
GEORGE ROWLEY 
 

 
ZACHARY P. WHITE 

TRISHA K. HARRIS 
HEATHER L. HARTUNG 

MEGAN J. MURPHY 
EVE M. G. VELASCO 

ALLISON C. FOGG 
LAURA S. HEINRICH 

AUDREY G. JOHNSON 
LISA CANCANON 

 

 
January 12, 2021 

 
Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 3 
c/o White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron, P.C. 
2154 E. Commons Ave., Ste. 2000 
Centennial, CO 80122 
 
 RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
 
Dear Directors: 
 
 We are pleased to confirm our engagement as general counsel to Mayberry, Colorado Springs 
Metropolitan District No. 3 (the “District”), which we have successfully organized at the request of 
the Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 1-2 and Nos. 4-8. (“District Nos. 1-2 and 
Nos. 4-8,” together with the District, the “Districts”). 
 

This engagement letter provides the terms upon which White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron 
(“WBA”) WBA will provide legal services to the District and is intended to formalize our retention 
as general counsel, as required by the applicable Rules of Professional Conduct. This letter sets forth 
details of the engagement, including how we propose to staff the matter, billing arrangements and 
certain conflict of interest understandings. Additional information about WBA can be found at 
www.whitebearankele.com. 
 
 1.       Personnel.  Legal services provided under this engagement may be performed by any 
lawyer at WBA.  We will also use paralegals and/or other support staff as we believe to be necessary 
and effective in providing you with legal services. 
  

2. Fees, Expenses and Retainer.  Our fees for services rendered on the District’s behalf 
will be based upon time charged using the hourly rates charged by each attorney or paralegal working 
on the matter.  WBA’s legal services are billed on an hourly basis, in increments of one-tenth of an 
hour, and are not contingent.  Hourly rates for professionals in WBA currently range from $225.00 
to $495.00 (attorneys), from $135.00 to $210.00 (paralegals), and are $200.000 to $210.00 for other 
professionals.  Hourly rates are revised periodically to reflect the current cost for delivery of legal 
services and the fees charged for services under this engagement may change without notice.  From 
time to time WBA prepares memoranda, agreements or other documents based upon current 
legislative, State and Federal law concerns that are the subject of common interest and benefit to our 
clients.  WBA allocates the fees for this work on an equitable basis to clients who benefit from this 
legal work by WBA’s personnel.  If you do not wish to receive this information, please advise us 

http://www.whitebearankele.com/


Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 3 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 2 of 5 
 

 

accordingly.  WBA contracts with other law firms for the performance of specialized services.  In the 
event that these services are rendered on behalf of the Client, the fees and costs associated with those 
services will be reflected on WBA’s bill. 

 
In addition to legal fees, WBA also charges for certain out-of-pocket costs incurred by us in 

representing you. Charges for long distance telephone calls (domestic only), conference calling 
services (domestic only), facsimiles (domestic only), in-office copying, ordinary postage (under 
$10.00), and deliveries made by in-house staff are covered by an administrative fee, currently equal 
to 2.5% of the legal fees charged. This administrative fee is in lieu of itemizing those expenses and 
may be adjusted over time. If there are other expenses, such as filing and recording fees, computer-
assisted research fees, mileage, delivery service fees, travel, meals or hotel accommodation charges, 
those will be billed separately.  These costs are subject to the same payment terms as legal fees and 
are your responsibility.  WBA’s policy is to advance or incur expenses on a discretionary basis up to 
$1,000.00, subject to your reimbursement of them in the next bill.  If an expense will exceed that 
amount, we will ask you to pay it directly to us in advance or have you contract directly with the 
vendor. 

 
WBA will not require the payment of a retainer at this time, but we reserve the right to require 

a retainer if deemed necessary by WBA or if you fail to timely pay invoices. 
 
 3. Billing.  Generally, invoices for fees and expenses will be submitted to you monthly 
and are due upon receipt.  If an invoice remains unpaid after thirty (30) days, we will consider it in 
default and you agree that we may charge a late fee on all amounts due and owing at the rate of one 
percent (1%) compounded monthly.  By signature below, you agree to pay all fees, costs and expenses 
billed by WBA for the legal services.  If payments as described above are not paid on a timely basis, 
WBA may withdraw from the representation in accordance with the Rules of Professional Conduct.  
In the event that WBA is compelled to resort to collection of your account, which may or may not 
include litigation, you agree that your obligations to WBA shall include payment of all costs and 
expenses of such collection efforts, including court fees and costs, attorneys’ fees and out-of-pocket 
expenses. 
  

4. Attorney-Client Relationship.  In performing our services as general counsel to the 
District, the District will be our client.  We will represent the interests of the District, acting through 
its duly authorized management and at the Board of Directors’ (the “Board” or “Directors”) direction.  
We do not represent the interests of any of the Board, the Directors individually, or the District’s 
employees.  Nothing in this engagement agreement and nothing in our statements to you will be 
construed as a guarantee or promise about the outcome of any matter which WBA may handle on 
your behalf.  Our comments about the outcome of your matters or any phase thereof are expressions 
of opinion only.  Further, neither WBA nor any of its attorneys or employees shall be employed, 
retained, or otherwise categorized as a “municipal advisor” to the District as such term is defined in 
the 15 U.S.C. 78o-4(e)(4)(c), as amended by the Dodd/Frank Act (the “Act”), or any rules 
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Act.  Any comments or advice 
provided by WBA or its attorneys regarding the issuance of securities by the District shall be solely 
of a “traditional legal nature”, as permitted under the Act.  Throughout the attorney-client 



Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 3 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 

relationship, the District consents to the use of the District’s name and public information relating to 
the District’s transactions on WBA’s website or in other marketing materials. 

 
5. Conflicts of Interest.  We have performed an internal review for potential conflicts 

of interest based upon information you have provided to us.  The Districts were organized to work 
together to provide the public improvements and services needed for the community.  There may be 
issues on which the Districts have conflicting interests relative to administration, financing, 
construction or general operations.  Also, due to the fact that special districts are governed by an 
elected board of directors, which instructs us regarding the policies it wishes to implement or pursue, 
policies of a district may change from board to board and conflicts of interest among the Districts can 
arise accordingly.  If a conflict arises, WBA may be required to withdraw from representation of the 
Districts involved in the disputed issue, and those Districts may need to retain independent counsel 
regarding the disputed issue.  

 
 WBA represents many other local governments and municipal clients that may be viewed as 
competing with the District.  Simultaneous representation in unrelated matters of clients whose 
interests are only economically adverse, such as representation of competing economic enterprises in 
unrelated transactions, does not ordinarily constitute a conflict of interest that requires consent of the 
respective clients. 

 
 6. Document Retention.  WBA maintains its client files electronically and ordinarily 
does not keep separate paper files.  We will scan documents you or others send to us related to your 
work to our electronic file and will ordinarily maintain the electronic version throughout the term of 
our engagement or, in some instances, while a particular matter or project is pending.  Unless you 
instruct us otherwise, with limited exceptions for certain documents such as original real property 
deeds and promissory notes, once such documents have been scanned to our electronic file, we will 
destroy all paper documents provided to us.  Following the conclusion of our services, we will return 
the District’s files to the District upon request, unless WBA has not received payment of all 
outstanding fees and costs, in which case WBA reserves the right to withhold them until payment is 
made.  Otherwise, no sooner than thirty (30) days after the conclusion of our services, we may destroy 
the files.  Please note that if WBA is designated as the public records custodian for the District 
pursuant to §§24-72-202, et seq., C.R.S., WBA will maintain all public records in accordance with 
any duly approved and adopted retention and destruction policy of the District and the Colorado State 
Archives or similar regulatory body. 
 
 7. Termination.  You will have the right to terminate our representation at any time.  
Whether you terminate the representation or we terminate the representation for reasons set forth in 
the Rules of Professional Conduct, including nonpayment of legal fees and expenses, all fees incurred 
for services rendered through the date of termination, as well as all costs and expenses incurred by 
us on your behalf, must be paid within ten days of receipt of our final statement.  We reserve the right 
to charge for any extraordinary work required in connection with the orderly transition of pending 
matters to new counsel.  Upon conclusion of our services, whether due to termination or completion 
of the work, we will not thereafter be responsible for legal matters for which our services have not 
been specifically requested and we have agreed to perform in writing. 
 



Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 3 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 4 of 5 
 

 

 8. Arbitration of Disputes.  If a dispute arises regarding our services or fees set forth in 
this engagement letter or any prior engagement letter between you and WBA, any fee dispute will be 
decided by the Colorado Bar Association Legal Fee Arbitration Committee (the “Committee”) in 
Denver, Colorado in accordance with the rules and procedures used by the Committee.  There is no 
charge for the dispute resolution services provided by the Committee and each party will pay its own 
costs and expenses.  If, either in addition to a pending fee dispute or in the absence of one, any other 
dispute or claim of any type or nature arises with respect to services rendered pursuant to this 
engagement agreement set forth in this engagement letter or any prior engagement letter between you 
and WBA, including, without limitation, a claim for legal malpractice, it will be decided by the 
Judicial Arbiter Group (“JAG”) in Denver, Colorado by a single arbitrator to be mutually agreed to 
by the parties.  Each party will be responsible for paying one half of all fees and expenses charged 
by the arbitrator.  Colorado law, including all applicable statutes of limitation and other defenses, 
will apply to the dispute before JAG just as if it had been brought in a judicial proceeding.  In the 
absence of an agreement to the contrary, the Colorado Rules of Civil Procedure shall apply to the 
dispute before JAG just as if the dispute had been filed in district court.  The parties recognize that 
by agreeing to arbitration as the method for dispute resolution, they: relinquish the right to bring an 
action in court and seek remedies available in court proceedings, including the extensive discovery 
rights typically permitted in judicial proceedings;  waive the right to a jury trial  acknowledge the 
arbitrator’s award is not required to include factual findings or legal reasoning; and acknowledge that 
any party’s right to appeal or seek modification of the award is strictly limited and the award is final 
and binding on the parties. 
 
 9. Employment Eligibility.  WBA hereby states that it does not knowingly employ or 
contract with an illegal alien, and that WBA has participated in or has attempted to participate in the 
E-Verify program pursuant to §§8-17.5-101, et seq., C.R.S., in order to verify that it does not employ 
any illegal aliens. 
 
 10. Representative Client Lists.  WBA currently maintains a website, firm résumé, and 
other materials for use with current and potential clients and for marketing purposes.  Execution of 
this engagement letter provides your consent to WBA’s use of the District’s name as a representative 
client of WBA on our website, firm résumé, and other materials.  
 
 If you are in agreement with the foregoing terms of this engagement and it meets your 
understanding of the professional relationship we have established, please have an authorized 
representative of the District sign and return a copy of this letter to our office at your earliest 
convenience.  By signing below, you acknowledge that you have been given the opportunity to 
discuss this engagement letter with another attorney or any other person of your choosing. 
 
 We look forward to working with you and will commit the necessary resources of WBA to 
meet your needs.  Our efforts will always be to ensure that our relationship is based on open and 
honest communication regarding these matters.  If at any time you have questions concerning our 
representation, please feel free to contact us immediately.       

 
 
 



Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 3 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 5 of 5 
 

 

Sincerely, 
 
      WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
      Attorneys at Law 
 
 
 
 
 
JGT:kas 
 
APPROVED, ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO BY:  
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 3 
 
 
        
Signature 
 
Printed Name:       
Position:       
Date:         
 
 

 



 
2154 E. Commons Ave., Ste. 2000   |  Centennial, CO  80122 |   P 303.858.1800 F 303.858.1801  | WhiteBearAnkele.com 

 
WILLIAM P. ANKELE, JR. 
JENNIFER GRUBER TANAKA 
CLINT C. WALDRON 
KRISTIN BOWERS TOMPKINS 
ROBERT G. ROGERS 
BLAIR M. DICKHONER 
 
OF COUNSEL: 
KRISTEN D. BEAR 
SEAN ALLEN 
GEORGE ROWLEY 
 

 
ZACHARY P. WHITE 

TRISHA K. HARRIS 
HEATHER L. HARTUNG 

MEGAN J. MURPHY 
EVE M. G. VELASCO 

ALLISON C. FOGG 
LAURA S. HEINRICH 

AUDREY G. JOHNSON 
LISA CANCANON 

 

 
January 12, 2021 

 
Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 4 
c/o White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron, P.C. 
2154 E. Commons Ave., Ste. 2000 
Centennial, CO 80122 
 
 RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
 
Dear Directors: 
 
 We are pleased to confirm our engagement as general counsel to Mayberry, Colorado Springs 
Metropolitan District No. 4 (the “District”), which we have successfully organized at the request of 
the Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 1-3 and Nos. 5-8. (“District Nos. 1-3 and 
Nos. 5-8,” together with the District, the “Districts”). 
 

This engagement letter provides the terms upon which White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron 
(“WBA”) WBA will provide legal services to the District and is intended to formalize our retention 
as general counsel, as required by the applicable Rules of Professional Conduct. This letter sets forth 
details of the engagement, including how we propose to staff the matter, billing arrangements and 
certain conflict of interest understandings. Additional information about WBA can be found at 
www.whitebearankele.com. 
 
 1.       Personnel.  Legal services provided under this engagement may be performed by any 
lawyer at WBA.  We will also use paralegals and/or other support staff as we believe to be necessary 
and effective in providing you with legal services. 
  

2. Fees, Expenses and Retainer.  Our fees for services rendered on the District’s behalf 
will be based upon time charged using the hourly rates charged by each attorney or paralegal working 
on the matter.  WBA’s legal services are billed on an hourly basis, in increments of one-tenth of an 
hour, and are not contingent.  Hourly rates for professionals in WBA currently range from $225.00 
to $495.00 (attorneys), from $135.00 to $210.00 (paralegals), and are $200.000 to $210.00 for other 
professionals.  Hourly rates are revised periodically to reflect the current cost for delivery of legal 
services and the fees charged for services under this engagement may change without notice.  From 
time to time WBA prepares memoranda, agreements or other documents based upon current 
legislative, State and Federal law concerns that are the subject of common interest and benefit to our 
clients.  WBA allocates the fees for this work on an equitable basis to clients who benefit from this 
legal work by WBA’s personnel.  If you do not wish to receive this information, please advise us 

http://www.whitebearankele.com/


Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 4 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 2 of 5 
 

 

accordingly.  WBA contracts with other law firms for the performance of specialized services.  In the 
event that these services are rendered on behalf of the Client, the fees and costs associated with those 
services will be reflected on WBA’s bill. 

 
In addition to legal fees, WBA also charges for certain out-of-pocket costs incurred by us in 

representing you. Charges for long distance telephone calls (domestic only), conference calling 
services (domestic only), facsimiles (domestic only), in-office copying, ordinary postage (under 
$10.00), and deliveries made by in-house staff are covered by an administrative fee, currently equal 
to 2.5% of the legal fees charged. This administrative fee is in lieu of itemizing those expenses and 
may be adjusted over time. If there are other expenses, such as filing and recording fees, computer-
assisted research fees, mileage, delivery service fees, travel, meals or hotel accommodation charges, 
those will be billed separately.  These costs are subject to the same payment terms as legal fees and 
are your responsibility.  WBA’s policy is to advance or incur expenses on a discretionary basis up to 
$1,000.00, subject to your reimbursement of them in the next bill.  If an expense will exceed that 
amount, we will ask you to pay it directly to us in advance or have you contract directly with the 
vendor. 

 
WBA will not require the payment of a retainer at this time, but we reserve the right to require 

a retainer if deemed necessary by WBA or if you fail to timely pay invoices. 
 
 3. Billing.  Generally, invoices for fees and expenses will be submitted to you monthly 
and are due upon receipt.  If an invoice remains unpaid after thirty (30) days, we will consider it in 
default and you agree that we may charge a late fee on all amounts due and owing at the rate of one 
percent (1%) compounded monthly.  By signature below, you agree to pay all fees, costs and expenses 
billed by WBA for the legal services.  If payments as described above are not paid on a timely basis, 
WBA may withdraw from the representation in accordance with the Rules of Professional Conduct.  
In the event that WBA is compelled to resort to collection of your account, which may or may not 
include litigation, you agree that your obligations to WBA shall include payment of all costs and 
expenses of such collection efforts, including court fees and costs, attorneys’ fees and out-of-pocket 
expenses. 
  

4. Attorney-Client Relationship.  In performing our services as general counsel to the 
District, the District will be our client.  We will represent the interests of the District, acting through 
its duly authorized management and at the Board of Directors’ (the “Board” or “Directors”) direction.  
We do not represent the interests of any of the Board, the Directors individually, or the District’s 
employees.  Nothing in this engagement agreement and nothing in our statements to you will be 
construed as a guarantee or promise about the outcome of any matter which WBA may handle on 
your behalf.  Our comments about the outcome of your matters or any phase thereof are expressions 
of opinion only.  Further, neither WBA nor any of its attorneys or employees shall be employed, 
retained, or otherwise categorized as a “municipal advisor” to the District as such term is defined in 
the 15 U.S.C. 78o-4(e)(4)(c), as amended by the Dodd/Frank Act (the “Act”), or any rules 
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Act.  Any comments or advice 
provided by WBA or its attorneys regarding the issuance of securities by the District shall be solely 
of a “traditional legal nature”, as permitted under the Act.  Throughout the attorney-client 



Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 4 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 

relationship, the District consents to the use of the District’s name and public information relating to 
the District’s transactions on WBA’s website or in other marketing materials. 

 
5. Conflicts of Interest.  We have performed an internal review for potential conflicts 

of interest based upon information you have provided to us.  The Districts were organized to work 
together to provide the public improvements and services needed for the community.  There may be 
issues on which the Districts have conflicting interests relative to administration, financing, 
construction or general operations.  Also, due to the fact that special districts are governed by an 
elected board of directors, which instructs us regarding the policies it wishes to implement or pursue, 
policies of a district may change from board to board and conflicts of interest among the Districts can 
arise accordingly.  If a conflict arises, WBA may be required to withdraw from representation of the 
Districts involved in the disputed issue, and those Districts may need to retain independent counsel 
regarding the disputed issue.  

 
 WBA represents many other local governments and municipal clients that may be viewed as 
competing with the District.  Simultaneous representation in unrelated matters of clients whose 
interests are only economically adverse, such as representation of competing economic enterprises in 
unrelated transactions, does not ordinarily constitute a conflict of interest that requires consent of the 
respective clients. 

 
 6. Document Retention.  WBA maintains its client files electronically and ordinarily 
does not keep separate paper files.  We will scan documents you or others send to us related to your 
work to our electronic file and will ordinarily maintain the electronic version throughout the term of 
our engagement or, in some instances, while a particular matter or project is pending.  Unless you 
instruct us otherwise, with limited exceptions for certain documents such as original real property 
deeds and promissory notes, once such documents have been scanned to our electronic file, we will 
destroy all paper documents provided to us.  Following the conclusion of our services, we will return 
the District’s files to the District upon request, unless WBA has not received payment of all 
outstanding fees and costs, in which case WBA reserves the right to withhold them until payment is 
made.  Otherwise, no sooner than thirty (30) days after the conclusion of our services, we may destroy 
the files.  Please note that if WBA is designated as the public records custodian for the District 
pursuant to §§24-72-202, et seq., C.R.S., WBA will maintain all public records in accordance with 
any duly approved and adopted retention and destruction policy of the District and the Colorado State 
Archives or similar regulatory body. 
 
 7. Termination.  You will have the right to terminate our representation at any time.  
Whether you terminate the representation or we terminate the representation for reasons set forth in 
the Rules of Professional Conduct, including nonpayment of legal fees and expenses, all fees incurred 
for services rendered through the date of termination, as well as all costs and expenses incurred by 
us on your behalf, must be paid within ten days of receipt of our final statement.  We reserve the right 
to charge for any extraordinary work required in connection with the orderly transition of pending 
matters to new counsel.  Upon conclusion of our services, whether due to termination or completion 
of the work, we will not thereafter be responsible for legal matters for which our services have not 
been specifically requested and we have agreed to perform in writing. 
 



Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 4 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 4 of 5 
 

 

 8. Arbitration of Disputes.  If a dispute arises regarding our services or fees set forth in 
this engagement letter or any prior engagement letter between you and WBA, any fee dispute will be 
decided by the Colorado Bar Association Legal Fee Arbitration Committee (the “Committee”) in 
Denver, Colorado in accordance with the rules and procedures used by the Committee.  There is no 
charge for the dispute resolution services provided by the Committee and each party will pay its own 
costs and expenses.  If, either in addition to a pending fee dispute or in the absence of one, any other 
dispute or claim of any type or nature arises with respect to services rendered pursuant to this 
engagement agreement set forth in this engagement letter or any prior engagement letter between you 
and WBA, including, without limitation, a claim for legal malpractice, it will be decided by the 
Judicial Arbiter Group (“JAG”) in Denver, Colorado by a single arbitrator to be mutually agreed to 
by the parties.  Each party will be responsible for paying one half of all fees and expenses charged 
by the arbitrator.  Colorado law, including all applicable statutes of limitation and other defenses, 
will apply to the dispute before JAG just as if it had been brought in a judicial proceeding.  In the 
absence of an agreement to the contrary, the Colorado Rules of Civil Procedure shall apply to the 
dispute before JAG just as if the dispute had been filed in district court.  The parties recognize that 
by agreeing to arbitration as the method for dispute resolution, they: relinquish the right to bring an 
action in court and seek remedies available in court proceedings, including the extensive discovery 
rights typically permitted in judicial proceedings;  waive the right to a jury trial  acknowledge the 
arbitrator’s award is not required to include factual findings or legal reasoning; and acknowledge that 
any party’s right to appeal or seek modification of the award is strictly limited and the award is final 
and binding on the parties. 
 
 9. Employment Eligibility.  WBA hereby states that it does not knowingly employ or 
contract with an illegal alien, and that WBA has participated in or has attempted to participate in the 
E-Verify program pursuant to §§8-17.5-101, et seq., C.R.S., in order to verify that it does not employ 
any illegal aliens. 
 
 10. Representative Client Lists.  WBA currently maintains a website, firm résumé, and 
other materials for use with current and potential clients and for marketing purposes.  Execution of 
this engagement letter provides your consent to WBA’s use of the District’s name as a representative 
client of WBA on our website, firm résumé, and other materials.  
 
 If you are in agreement with the foregoing terms of this engagement and it meets your 
understanding of the professional relationship we have established, please have an authorized 
representative of the District sign and return a copy of this letter to our office at your earliest 
convenience.  By signing below, you acknowledge that you have been given the opportunity to 
discuss this engagement letter with another attorney or any other person of your choosing. 
 
 We look forward to working with you and will commit the necessary resources of WBA to 
meet your needs.  Our efforts will always be to ensure that our relationship is based on open and 
honest communication regarding these matters.  If at any time you have questions concerning our 
representation, please feel free to contact us immediately.       

 
 
 



Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 4 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 5 of 5 
 

 

Sincerely, 
 
      WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
      Attorneys at Law 
 
 
 
 
 
JGT:kas 
 
APPROVED, ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO BY:  
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 4 
 
 
        
Signature 
 
Printed Name:       
Position:       
Date:         
 
 

 



 
2154 E. Commons Ave., Ste. 2000   |  Centennial, CO  80122 |   P 303.858.1800 F 303.858.1801  | WhiteBearAnkele.com 

 
WILLIAM P. ANKELE, JR. 
JENNIFER GRUBER TANAKA 
CLINT C. WALDRON 
KRISTIN BOWERS TOMPKINS 
ROBERT G. ROGERS 
BLAIR M. DICKHONER 
 
OF COUNSEL: 
KRISTEN D. BEAR 
SEAN ALLEN 
GEORGE ROWLEY 
 

 
ZACHARY P. WHITE 

TRISHA K. HARRIS 
HEATHER L. HARTUNG 

MEGAN J. MURPHY 
EVE M. G. VELASCO 

ALLISON C. FOGG 
LAURA S. HEINRICH 

AUDREY G. JOHNSON 
LISA CANCANON 

 

 
January 12, 2021 

 
Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 5 
c/o White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron, P.C. 
2154 E. Commons Ave., Ste. 2000 
Centennial, CO 80122 
 
 RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
 
Dear Directors: 
 
 We are pleased to confirm our engagement as general counsel to Mayberry, Colorado Springs 
Metropolitan District No. 5 (the “District”), which we have successfully organized at the request of 
the Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 1-4 and Nos. 6-8. (“District Nos. 1-4 and 
Nos. 6-8,” together with the District, the “Districts”). 
 

This engagement letter provides the terms upon which White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron 
(“WBA”) WBA will provide legal services to the District and is intended to formalize our retention 
as general counsel, as required by the applicable Rules of Professional Conduct. This letter sets forth 
details of the engagement, including how we propose to staff the matter, billing arrangements and 
certain conflict of interest understandings. Additional information about WBA can be found at 
www.whitebearankele.com. 
 
 1.       Personnel.  Legal services provided under this engagement may be performed by any 
lawyer at WBA.  We will also use paralegals and/or other support staff as we believe to be necessary 
and effective in providing you with legal services. 
  

2. Fees, Expenses and Retainer.  Our fees for services rendered on the District’s behalf 
will be based upon time charged using the hourly rates charged by each attorney or paralegal working 
on the matter.  WBA’s legal services are billed on an hourly basis, in increments of one-tenth of an 
hour, and are not contingent.  Hourly rates for professionals in WBA currently range from $225.00 
to $495.00 (attorneys), from $135.00 to $210.00 (paralegals), and are $200.000 to $210.00 for other 
professionals.  Hourly rates are revised periodically to reflect the current cost for delivery of legal 
services and the fees charged for services under this engagement may change without notice.  From 
time to time WBA prepares memoranda, agreements or other documents based upon current 
legislative, State and Federal law concerns that are the subject of common interest and benefit to our 
clients.  WBA allocates the fees for this work on an equitable basis to clients who benefit from this 
legal work by WBA’s personnel.  If you do not wish to receive this information, please advise us 

http://www.whitebearankele.com/


Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 5 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 2 of 5 
 

 

accordingly.  WBA contracts with other law firms for the performance of specialized services.  In the 
event that these services are rendered on behalf of the Client, the fees and costs associated with those 
services will be reflected on WBA’s bill. 

 
In addition to legal fees, WBA also charges for certain out-of-pocket costs incurred by us in 

representing you. Charges for long distance telephone calls (domestic only), conference calling 
services (domestic only), facsimiles (domestic only), in-office copying, ordinary postage (under 
$10.00), and deliveries made by in-house staff are covered by an administrative fee, currently equal 
to 2.5% of the legal fees charged. This administrative fee is in lieu of itemizing those expenses and 
may be adjusted over time. If there are other expenses, such as filing and recording fees, computer-
assisted research fees, mileage, delivery service fees, travel, meals or hotel accommodation charges, 
those will be billed separately.  These costs are subject to the same payment terms as legal fees and 
are your responsibility.  WBA’s policy is to advance or incur expenses on a discretionary basis up to 
$1,000.00, subject to your reimbursement of them in the next bill.  If an expense will exceed that 
amount, we will ask you to pay it directly to us in advance or have you contract directly with the 
vendor. 

 
WBA will not require the payment of a retainer at this time, but we reserve the right to require 

a retainer if deemed necessary by WBA or if you fail to timely pay invoices. 
 
 3. Billing.  Generally, invoices for fees and expenses will be submitted to you monthly 
and are due upon receipt.  If an invoice remains unpaid after thirty (30) days, we will consider it in 
default and you agree that we may charge a late fee on all amounts due and owing at the rate of one 
percent (1%) compounded monthly.  By signature below, you agree to pay all fees, costs and expenses 
billed by WBA for the legal services.  If payments as described above are not paid on a timely basis, 
WBA may withdraw from the representation in accordance with the Rules of Professional Conduct.  
In the event that WBA is compelled to resort to collection of your account, which may or may not 
include litigation, you agree that your obligations to WBA shall include payment of all costs and 
expenses of such collection efforts, including court fees and costs, attorneys’ fees and out-of-pocket 
expenses. 
  

4. Attorney-Client Relationship.  In performing our services as general counsel to the 
District, the District will be our client.  We will represent the interests of the District, acting through 
its duly authorized management and at the Board of Directors’ (the “Board” or “Directors”) direction.  
We do not represent the interests of any of the Board, the Directors individually, or the District’s 
employees.  Nothing in this engagement agreement and nothing in our statements to you will be 
construed as a guarantee or promise about the outcome of any matter which WBA may handle on 
your behalf.  Our comments about the outcome of your matters or any phase thereof are expressions 
of opinion only.  Further, neither WBA nor any of its attorneys or employees shall be employed, 
retained, or otherwise categorized as a “municipal advisor” to the District as such term is defined in 
the 15 U.S.C. 78o-4(e)(4)(c), as amended by the Dodd/Frank Act (the “Act”), or any rules 
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Act.  Any comments or advice 
provided by WBA or its attorneys regarding the issuance of securities by the District shall be solely 
of a “traditional legal nature”, as permitted under the Act.  Throughout the attorney-client 



Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 5 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 

relationship, the District consents to the use of the District’s name and public information relating to 
the District’s transactions on WBA’s website or in other marketing materials. 

 
5. Conflicts of Interest.  We have performed an internal review for potential conflicts 

of interest based upon information you have provided to us.  The Districts were organized to work 
together to provide the public improvements and services needed for the community.  There may be 
issues on which the Districts have conflicting interests relative to administration, financing, 
construction or general operations.  Also, due to the fact that special districts are governed by an 
elected board of directors, which instructs us regarding the policies it wishes to implement or pursue, 
policies of a district may change from board to board and conflicts of interest among the Districts can 
arise accordingly.  If a conflict arises, WBA may be required to withdraw from representation of the 
Districts involved in the disputed issue, and those Districts may need to retain independent counsel 
regarding the disputed issue.  

 
 WBA represents many other local governments and municipal clients that may be viewed as 
competing with the District.  Simultaneous representation in unrelated matters of clients whose 
interests are only economically adverse, such as representation of competing economic enterprises in 
unrelated transactions, does not ordinarily constitute a conflict of interest that requires consent of the 
respective clients. 

 
 6. Document Retention.  WBA maintains its client files electronically and ordinarily 
does not keep separate paper files.  We will scan documents you or others send to us related to your 
work to our electronic file and will ordinarily maintain the electronic version throughout the term of 
our engagement or, in some instances, while a particular matter or project is pending.  Unless you 
instruct us otherwise, with limited exceptions for certain documents such as original real property 
deeds and promissory notes, once such documents have been scanned to our electronic file, we will 
destroy all paper documents provided to us.  Following the conclusion of our services, we will return 
the District’s files to the District upon request, unless WBA has not received payment of all 
outstanding fees and costs, in which case WBA reserves the right to withhold them until payment is 
made.  Otherwise, no sooner than thirty (30) days after the conclusion of our services, we may destroy 
the files.  Please note that if WBA is designated as the public records custodian for the District 
pursuant to §§24-72-202, et seq., C.R.S., WBA will maintain all public records in accordance with 
any duly approved and adopted retention and destruction policy of the District and the Colorado State 
Archives or similar regulatory body. 
 
 7. Termination.  You will have the right to terminate our representation at any time.  
Whether you terminate the representation or we terminate the representation for reasons set forth in 
the Rules of Professional Conduct, including nonpayment of legal fees and expenses, all fees incurred 
for services rendered through the date of termination, as well as all costs and expenses incurred by 
us on your behalf, must be paid within ten days of receipt of our final statement.  We reserve the right 
to charge for any extraordinary work required in connection with the orderly transition of pending 
matters to new counsel.  Upon conclusion of our services, whether due to termination or completion 
of the work, we will not thereafter be responsible for legal matters for which our services have not 
been specifically requested and we have agreed to perform in writing. 
 



Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 5 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 4 of 5 
 

 

 8. Arbitration of Disputes.  If a dispute arises regarding our services or fees set forth in 
this engagement letter or any prior engagement letter between you and WBA, any fee dispute will be 
decided by the Colorado Bar Association Legal Fee Arbitration Committee (the “Committee”) in 
Denver, Colorado in accordance with the rules and procedures used by the Committee.  There is no 
charge for the dispute resolution services provided by the Committee and each party will pay its own 
costs and expenses.  If, either in addition to a pending fee dispute or in the absence of one, any other 
dispute or claim of any type or nature arises with respect to services rendered pursuant to this 
engagement agreement set forth in this engagement letter or any prior engagement letter between you 
and WBA, including, without limitation, a claim for legal malpractice, it will be decided by the 
Judicial Arbiter Group (“JAG”) in Denver, Colorado by a single arbitrator to be mutually agreed to 
by the parties.  Each party will be responsible for paying one half of all fees and expenses charged 
by the arbitrator.  Colorado law, including all applicable statutes of limitation and other defenses, 
will apply to the dispute before JAG just as if it had been brought in a judicial proceeding.  In the 
absence of an agreement to the contrary, the Colorado Rules of Civil Procedure shall apply to the 
dispute before JAG just as if the dispute had been filed in district court.  The parties recognize that 
by agreeing to arbitration as the method for dispute resolution, they: relinquish the right to bring an 
action in court and seek remedies available in court proceedings, including the extensive discovery 
rights typically permitted in judicial proceedings;  waive the right to a jury trial  acknowledge the 
arbitrator’s award is not required to include factual findings or legal reasoning; and acknowledge that 
any party’s right to appeal or seek modification of the award is strictly limited and the award is final 
and binding on the parties. 
 
 9. Employment Eligibility.  WBA hereby states that it does not knowingly employ or 
contract with an illegal alien, and that WBA has participated in or has attempted to participate in the 
E-Verify program pursuant to §§8-17.5-101, et seq., C.R.S., in order to verify that it does not employ 
any illegal aliens. 
 
 10. Representative Client Lists.  WBA currently maintains a website, firm résumé, and 
other materials for use with current and potential clients and for marketing purposes.  Execution of 
this engagement letter provides your consent to WBA’s use of the District’s name as a representative 
client of WBA on our website, firm résumé, and other materials.  
 
 If you are in agreement with the foregoing terms of this engagement and it meets your 
understanding of the professional relationship we have established, please have an authorized 
representative of the District sign and return a copy of this letter to our office at your earliest 
convenience.  By signing below, you acknowledge that you have been given the opportunity to 
discuss this engagement letter with another attorney or any other person of your choosing. 
 
 We look forward to working with you and will commit the necessary resources of WBA to 
meet your needs.  Our efforts will always be to ensure that our relationship is based on open and 
honest communication regarding these matters.  If at any time you have questions concerning our 
representation, please feel free to contact us immediately.       

 
 
 



Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 5 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 5 of 5 
 

 

Sincerely, 
 
      WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
      Attorneys at Law 
 
 
 
 
 
JGT:kas 
 
APPROVED, ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO BY:  
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 5 
 
 
        
Signature 
 
Printed Name:       
Position:       
Date:         
 
 

 



 
2154 E. Commons Ave., Ste. 2000   |  Centennial, CO  80122 |   P 303.858.1800 F 303.858.1801  | WhiteBearAnkele.com 

 
WILLIAM P. ANKELE, JR. 
JENNIFER GRUBER TANAKA 
CLINT C. WALDRON 
KRISTIN BOWERS TOMPKINS 
ROBERT G. ROGERS 
BLAIR M. DICKHONER 
 
OF COUNSEL: 
KRISTEN D. BEAR 
SEAN ALLEN 
GEORGE ROWLEY 
 

 
ZACHARY P. WHITE 

TRISHA K. HARRIS 
HEATHER L. HARTUNG 

MEGAN J. MURPHY 
EVE M. G. VELASCO 

ALLISON C. FOGG 
LAURA S. HEINRICH 

AUDREY G. JOHNSON 
LISA CANCANON 

 

 
January 12, 2021 

 
Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 6 
c/o White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron, P.C. 
2154 E. Commons Ave., Ste. 2000 
Centennial, CO 80122 
 
 RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
 
Dear Directors: 
 
 We are pleased to confirm our engagement as general counsel to Mayberry, Colorado Springs 
Metropolitan District No. 6 (the “District”), which we have successfully organized at the request of 
the Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 1-5 and Nos. 7-8. (“District Nos. 1-5 and 
Nos. 7-8,” together with the District, the “Districts”). 
 

This engagement letter provides the terms upon which White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron 
(“WBA”) WBA will provide legal services to the District and is intended to formalize our retention 
as general counsel, as required by the applicable Rules of Professional Conduct. This letter sets forth 
details of the engagement, including how we propose to staff the matter, billing arrangements and 
certain conflict of interest understandings. Additional information about WBA can be found at 
www.whitebearankele.com. 
 
 1.       Personnel.  Legal services provided under this engagement may be performed by any 
lawyer at WBA.  We will also use paralegals and/or other support staff as we believe to be necessary 
and effective in providing you with legal services. 
  

2. Fees, Expenses and Retainer.  Our fees for services rendered on the District’s behalf 
will be based upon time charged using the hourly rates charged by each attorney or paralegal working 
on the matter.  WBA’s legal services are billed on an hourly basis, in increments of one-tenth of an 
hour, and are not contingent.  Hourly rates for professionals in WBA currently range from $225.00 
to $495.00 (attorneys), from $135.00 to $210.00 (paralegals), and are $200.000 to $210.00 for other 
professionals.  Hourly rates are revised periodically to reflect the current cost for delivery of legal 
services and the fees charged for services under this engagement may change without notice.  From 
time to time WBA prepares memoranda, agreements or other documents based upon current 
legislative, State and Federal law concerns that are the subject of common interest and benefit to our 
clients.  WBA allocates the fees for this work on an equitable basis to clients who benefit from this 
legal work by WBA’s personnel.  If you do not wish to receive this information, please advise us 

http://www.whitebearankele.com/


Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 6 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 2 of 5 
 

 

accordingly.  WBA contracts with other law firms for the performance of specialized services.  In the 
event that these services are rendered on behalf of the Client, the fees and costs associated with those 
services will be reflected on WBA’s bill. 

 
In addition to legal fees, WBA also charges for certain out-of-pocket costs incurred by us in 

representing you. Charges for long distance telephone calls (domestic only), conference calling 
services (domestic only), facsimiles (domestic only), in-office copying, ordinary postage (under 
$10.00), and deliveries made by in-house staff are covered by an administrative fee, currently equal 
to 2.5% of the legal fees charged. This administrative fee is in lieu of itemizing those expenses and 
may be adjusted over time. If there are other expenses, such as filing and recording fees, computer-
assisted research fees, mileage, delivery service fees, travel, meals or hotel accommodation charges, 
those will be billed separately.  These costs are subject to the same payment terms as legal fees and 
are your responsibility.  WBA’s policy is to advance or incur expenses on a discretionary basis up to 
$1,000.00, subject to your reimbursement of them in the next bill.  If an expense will exceed that 
amount, we will ask you to pay it directly to us in advance or have you contract directly with the 
vendor. 

 
WBA will not require the payment of a retainer at this time, but we reserve the right to require 

a retainer if deemed necessary by WBA or if you fail to timely pay invoices. 
 
 3. Billing.  Generally, invoices for fees and expenses will be submitted to you monthly 
and are due upon receipt.  If an invoice remains unpaid after thirty (30) days, we will consider it in 
default and you agree that we may charge a late fee on all amounts due and owing at the rate of one 
percent (1%) compounded monthly.  By signature below, you agree to pay all fees, costs and expenses 
billed by WBA for the legal services.  If payments as described above are not paid on a timely basis, 
WBA may withdraw from the representation in accordance with the Rules of Professional Conduct.  
In the event that WBA is compelled to resort to collection of your account, which may or may not 
include litigation, you agree that your obligations to WBA shall include payment of all costs and 
expenses of such collection efforts, including court fees and costs, attorneys’ fees and out-of-pocket 
expenses. 
  

4. Attorney-Client Relationship.  In performing our services as general counsel to the 
District, the District will be our client.  We will represent the interests of the District, acting through 
its duly authorized management and at the Board of Directors’ (the “Board” or “Directors”) direction.  
We do not represent the interests of any of the Board, the Directors individually, or the District’s 
employees.  Nothing in this engagement agreement and nothing in our statements to you will be 
construed as a guarantee or promise about the outcome of any matter which WBA may handle on 
your behalf.  Our comments about the outcome of your matters or any phase thereof are expressions 
of opinion only.  Further, neither WBA nor any of its attorneys or employees shall be employed, 
retained, or otherwise categorized as a “municipal advisor” to the District as such term is defined in 
the 15 U.S.C. 78o-4(e)(4)(c), as amended by the Dodd/Frank Act (the “Act”), or any rules 
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Act.  Any comments or advice 
provided by WBA or its attorneys regarding the issuance of securities by the District shall be solely 
of a “traditional legal nature”, as permitted under the Act.  Throughout the attorney-client 



Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 6 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 

relationship, the District consents to the use of the District’s name and public information relating to 
the District’s transactions on WBA’s website or in other marketing materials. 

 
5. Conflicts of Interest.  We have performed an internal review for potential conflicts 

of interest based upon information you have provided to us.  The Districts were organized to work 
together to provide the public improvements and services needed for the community.  There may be 
issues on which the Districts have conflicting interests relative to administration, financing, 
construction or general operations.  Also, due to the fact that special districts are governed by an 
elected board of directors, which instructs us regarding the policies it wishes to implement or pursue, 
policies of a district may change from board to board and conflicts of interest among the Districts can 
arise accordingly.  If a conflict arises, WBA may be required to withdraw from representation of the 
Districts involved in the disputed issue, and those Districts may need to retain independent counsel 
regarding the disputed issue.  

 
 WBA represents many other local governments and municipal clients that may be viewed as 
competing with the District.  Simultaneous representation in unrelated matters of clients whose 
interests are only economically adverse, such as representation of competing economic enterprises in 
unrelated transactions, does not ordinarily constitute a conflict of interest that requires consent of the 
respective clients. 

 
 6. Document Retention.  WBA maintains its client files electronically and ordinarily 
does not keep separate paper files.  We will scan documents you or others send to us related to your 
work to our electronic file and will ordinarily maintain the electronic version throughout the term of 
our engagement or, in some instances, while a particular matter or project is pending.  Unless you 
instruct us otherwise, with limited exceptions for certain documents such as original real property 
deeds and promissory notes, once such documents have been scanned to our electronic file, we will 
destroy all paper documents provided to us.  Following the conclusion of our services, we will return 
the District’s files to the District upon request, unless WBA has not received payment of all 
outstanding fees and costs, in which case WBA reserves the right to withhold them until payment is 
made.  Otherwise, no sooner than thirty (30) days after the conclusion of our services, we may destroy 
the files.  Please note that if WBA is designated as the public records custodian for the District 
pursuant to §§24-72-202, et seq., C.R.S., WBA will maintain all public records in accordance with 
any duly approved and adopted retention and destruction policy of the District and the Colorado State 
Archives or similar regulatory body. 
 
 7. Termination.  You will have the right to terminate our representation at any time.  
Whether you terminate the representation or we terminate the representation for reasons set forth in 
the Rules of Professional Conduct, including nonpayment of legal fees and expenses, all fees incurred 
for services rendered through the date of termination, as well as all costs and expenses incurred by 
us on your behalf, must be paid within ten days of receipt of our final statement.  We reserve the right 
to charge for any extraordinary work required in connection with the orderly transition of pending 
matters to new counsel.  Upon conclusion of our services, whether due to termination or completion 
of the work, we will not thereafter be responsible for legal matters for which our services have not 
been specifically requested and we have agreed to perform in writing. 
 



Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 6 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 4 of 5 
 

 

 8. Arbitration of Disputes.  If a dispute arises regarding our services or fees set forth in 
this engagement letter or any prior engagement letter between you and WBA, any fee dispute will be 
decided by the Colorado Bar Association Legal Fee Arbitration Committee (the “Committee”) in 
Denver, Colorado in accordance with the rules and procedures used by the Committee.  There is no 
charge for the dispute resolution services provided by the Committee and each party will pay its own 
costs and expenses.  If, either in addition to a pending fee dispute or in the absence of one, any other 
dispute or claim of any type or nature arises with respect to services rendered pursuant to this 
engagement agreement set forth in this engagement letter or any prior engagement letter between you 
and WBA, including, without limitation, a claim for legal malpractice, it will be decided by the 
Judicial Arbiter Group (“JAG”) in Denver, Colorado by a single arbitrator to be mutually agreed to 
by the parties.  Each party will be responsible for paying one half of all fees and expenses charged 
by the arbitrator.  Colorado law, including all applicable statutes of limitation and other defenses, 
will apply to the dispute before JAG just as if it had been brought in a judicial proceeding.  In the 
absence of an agreement to the contrary, the Colorado Rules of Civil Procedure shall apply to the 
dispute before JAG just as if the dispute had been filed in district court.  The parties recognize that 
by agreeing to arbitration as the method for dispute resolution, they: relinquish the right to bring an 
action in court and seek remedies available in court proceedings, including the extensive discovery 
rights typically permitted in judicial proceedings;  waive the right to a jury trial  acknowledge the 
arbitrator’s award is not required to include factual findings or legal reasoning; and acknowledge that 
any party’s right to appeal or seek modification of the award is strictly limited and the award is final 
and binding on the parties. 
 
 9. Employment Eligibility.  WBA hereby states that it does not knowingly employ or 
contract with an illegal alien, and that WBA has participated in or has attempted to participate in the 
E-Verify program pursuant to §§8-17.5-101, et seq., C.R.S., in order to verify that it does not employ 
any illegal aliens. 
 
 10. Representative Client Lists.  WBA currently maintains a website, firm résumé, and 
other materials for use with current and potential clients and for marketing purposes.  Execution of 
this engagement letter provides your consent to WBA’s use of the District’s name as a representative 
client of WBA on our website, firm résumé, and other materials.  
 
 If you are in agreement with the foregoing terms of this engagement and it meets your 
understanding of the professional relationship we have established, please have an authorized 
representative of the District sign and return a copy of this letter to our office at your earliest 
convenience.  By signing below, you acknowledge that you have been given the opportunity to 
discuss this engagement letter with another attorney or any other person of your choosing. 
 
 We look forward to working with you and will commit the necessary resources of WBA to 
meet your needs.  Our efforts will always be to ensure that our relationship is based on open and 
honest communication regarding these matters.  If at any time you have questions concerning our 
representation, please feel free to contact us immediately.       

 
 
 



Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 6 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 5 of 5 
 

 

Sincerely, 
 
      WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
      Attorneys at Law 
 
 
 
 
 
JGT:kas 
 
APPROVED, ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO BY:  
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 6 
 
 
        
Signature 
 
Printed Name:       
Position:       
Date:         
 
 

 



 
2154 E. Commons Ave., Ste. 2000   |  Centennial, CO  80122 |   P 303.858.1800 F 303.858.1801  | WhiteBearAnkele.com 

 
WILLIAM P. ANKELE, JR. 
JENNIFER GRUBER TANAKA 
CLINT C. WALDRON 
KRISTIN BOWERS TOMPKINS 
ROBERT G. ROGERS 
BLAIR M. DICKHONER 
 
OF COUNSEL: 
KRISTEN D. BEAR 
SEAN ALLEN 
GEORGE ROWLEY 
 

 
ZACHARY P. WHITE 

TRISHA K. HARRIS 
HEATHER L. HARTUNG 

MEGAN J. MURPHY 
EVE M. G. VELASCO 

ALLISON C. FOGG 
LAURA S. HEINRICH 

AUDREY G. JOHNSON 
LISA CANCANON 

 

 
January 12, 2021 

 
Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 7 
c/o White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron, P.C. 
2154 E. Commons Ave., Ste. 2000 
Centennial, CO 80122 
 
 RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
 
Dear Directors: 
 
 We are pleased to confirm our engagement as general counsel to Mayberry, Colorado Springs 
Metropolitan District No. 7 (the “District”), which we have successfully organized at the request of 
the Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 1-6 and No. 8. (“District Nos. 1-6 and 
No. 8,” together with the District, the “Districts”). 
 

This engagement letter provides the terms upon which White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron 
(“WBA”) WBA will provide legal services to the District and is intended to formalize our retention 
as general counsel, as required by the applicable Rules of Professional Conduct. This letter sets forth 
details of the engagement, including how we propose to staff the matter, billing arrangements and 
certain conflict of interest understandings. Additional information about WBA can be found at 
www.whitebearankele.com. 
 
 1.       Personnel.  Legal services provided under this engagement may be performed by any 
lawyer at WBA.  We will also use paralegals and/or other support staff as we believe to be necessary 
and effective in providing you with legal services. 
  

2. Fees, Expenses and Retainer.  Our fees for services rendered on the District’s behalf 
will be based upon time charged using the hourly rates charged by each attorney or paralegal working 
on the matter.  WBA’s legal services are billed on an hourly basis, in increments of one-tenth of an 
hour, and are not contingent.  Hourly rates for professionals in WBA currently range from $225.00 
to $495.00 (attorneys), from $135.00 to $210.00 (paralegals), and are $200.000 to $210.00 for other 
professionals.  Hourly rates are revised periodically to reflect the current cost for delivery of legal 
services and the fees charged for services under this engagement may change without notice.  From 
time to time WBA prepares memoranda, agreements or other documents based upon current 
legislative, State and Federal law concerns that are the subject of common interest and benefit to our 
clients.  WBA allocates the fees for this work on an equitable basis to clients who benefit from this 
legal work by WBA’s personnel.  If you do not wish to receive this information, please advise us 

http://www.whitebearankele.com/


Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 7 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 2 of 5 
 

 

accordingly.  WBA contracts with other law firms for the performance of specialized services.  In the 
event that these services are rendered on behalf of the Client, the fees and costs associated with those 
services will be reflected on WBA’s bill. 

 
In addition to legal fees, WBA also charges for certain out-of-pocket costs incurred by us in 

representing you. Charges for long distance telephone calls (domestic only), conference calling 
services (domestic only), facsimiles (domestic only), in-office copying, ordinary postage (under 
$10.00), and deliveries made by in-house staff are covered by an administrative fee, currently equal 
to 2.5% of the legal fees charged. This administrative fee is in lieu of itemizing those expenses and 
may be adjusted over time. If there are other expenses, such as filing and recording fees, computer-
assisted research fees, mileage, delivery service fees, travel, meals or hotel accommodation charges, 
those will be billed separately.  These costs are subject to the same payment terms as legal fees and 
are your responsibility.  WBA’s policy is to advance or incur expenses on a discretionary basis up to 
$1,000.00, subject to your reimbursement of them in the next bill.  If an expense will exceed that 
amount, we will ask you to pay it directly to us in advance or have you contract directly with the 
vendor. 

 
WBA will not require the payment of a retainer at this time, but we reserve the right to require 

a retainer if deemed necessary by WBA or if you fail to timely pay invoices. 
 
 3. Billing.  Generally, invoices for fees and expenses will be submitted to you monthly 
and are due upon receipt.  If an invoice remains unpaid after thirty (30) days, we will consider it in 
default and you agree that we may charge a late fee on all amounts due and owing at the rate of one 
percent (1%) compounded monthly.  By signature below, you agree to pay all fees, costs and expenses 
billed by WBA for the legal services.  If payments as described above are not paid on a timely basis, 
WBA may withdraw from the representation in accordance with the Rules of Professional Conduct.  
In the event that WBA is compelled to resort to collection of your account, which may or may not 
include litigation, you agree that your obligations to WBA shall include payment of all costs and 
expenses of such collection efforts, including court fees and costs, attorneys’ fees and out-of-pocket 
expenses. 
  

4. Attorney-Client Relationship.  In performing our services as general counsel to the 
District, the District will be our client.  We will represent the interests of the District, acting through 
its duly authorized management and at the Board of Directors’ (the “Board” or “Directors”) direction.  
We do not represent the interests of any of the Board, the Directors individually, or the District’s 
employees.  Nothing in this engagement agreement and nothing in our statements to you will be 
construed as a guarantee or promise about the outcome of any matter which WBA may handle on 
your behalf.  Our comments about the outcome of your matters or any phase thereof are expressions 
of opinion only.  Further, neither WBA nor any of its attorneys or employees shall be employed, 
retained, or otherwise categorized as a “municipal advisor” to the District as such term is defined in 
the 15 U.S.C. 78o-4(e)(4)(c), as amended by the Dodd/Frank Act (the “Act”), or any rules 
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Act.  Any comments or advice 
provided by WBA or its attorneys regarding the issuance of securities by the District shall be solely 
of a “traditional legal nature”, as permitted under the Act.  Throughout the attorney-client 



Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 7 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 

relationship, the District consents to the use of the District’s name and public information relating to 
the District’s transactions on WBA’s website or in other marketing materials. 

 
5. Conflicts of Interest.  We have performed an internal review for potential conflicts 

of interest based upon information you have provided to us.  The Districts were organized to work 
together to provide the public improvements and services needed for the community.  There may be 
issues on which the Districts have conflicting interests relative to administration, financing, 
construction or general operations.  Also, due to the fact that special districts are governed by an 
elected board of directors, which instructs us regarding the policies it wishes to implement or pursue, 
policies of a district may change from board to board and conflicts of interest among the Districts can 
arise accordingly.  If a conflict arises, WBA may be required to withdraw from representation of the 
Districts involved in the disputed issue, and those Districts may need to retain independent counsel 
regarding the disputed issue.  

 
 WBA represents many other local governments and municipal clients that may be viewed as 
competing with the District.  Simultaneous representation in unrelated matters of clients whose 
interests are only economically adverse, such as representation of competing economic enterprises in 
unrelated transactions, does not ordinarily constitute a conflict of interest that requires consent of the 
respective clients. 

 
 6. Document Retention.  WBA maintains its client files electronically and ordinarily 
does not keep separate paper files.  We will scan documents you or others send to us related to your 
work to our electronic file and will ordinarily maintain the electronic version throughout the term of 
our engagement or, in some instances, while a particular matter or project is pending.  Unless you 
instruct us otherwise, with limited exceptions for certain documents such as original real property 
deeds and promissory notes, once such documents have been scanned to our electronic file, we will 
destroy all paper documents provided to us.  Following the conclusion of our services, we will return 
the District’s files to the District upon request, unless WBA has not received payment of all 
outstanding fees and costs, in which case WBA reserves the right to withhold them until payment is 
made.  Otherwise, no sooner than thirty (30) days after the conclusion of our services, we may destroy 
the files.  Please note that if WBA is designated as the public records custodian for the District 
pursuant to §§24-72-202, et seq., C.R.S., WBA will maintain all public records in accordance with 
any duly approved and adopted retention and destruction policy of the District and the Colorado State 
Archives or similar regulatory body. 
 
 7. Termination.  You will have the right to terminate our representation at any time.  
Whether you terminate the representation or we terminate the representation for reasons set forth in 
the Rules of Professional Conduct, including nonpayment of legal fees and expenses, all fees incurred 
for services rendered through the date of termination, as well as all costs and expenses incurred by 
us on your behalf, must be paid within ten days of receipt of our final statement.  We reserve the right 
to charge for any extraordinary work required in connection with the orderly transition of pending 
matters to new counsel.  Upon conclusion of our services, whether due to termination or completion 
of the work, we will not thereafter be responsible for legal matters for which our services have not 
been specifically requested and we have agreed to perform in writing. 
 



Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 7 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 4 of 5 
 

 

 8. Arbitration of Disputes.  If a dispute arises regarding our services or fees set forth in 
this engagement letter or any prior engagement letter between you and WBA, any fee dispute will be 
decided by the Colorado Bar Association Legal Fee Arbitration Committee (the “Committee”) in 
Denver, Colorado in accordance with the rules and procedures used by the Committee.  There is no 
charge for the dispute resolution services provided by the Committee and each party will pay its own 
costs and expenses.  If, either in addition to a pending fee dispute or in the absence of one, any other 
dispute or claim of any type or nature arises with respect to services rendered pursuant to this 
engagement agreement set forth in this engagement letter or any prior engagement letter between you 
and WBA, including, without limitation, a claim for legal malpractice, it will be decided by the 
Judicial Arbiter Group (“JAG”) in Denver, Colorado by a single arbitrator to be mutually agreed to 
by the parties.  Each party will be responsible for paying one half of all fees and expenses charged 
by the arbitrator.  Colorado law, including all applicable statutes of limitation and other defenses, 
will apply to the dispute before JAG just as if it had been brought in a judicial proceeding.  In the 
absence of an agreement to the contrary, the Colorado Rules of Civil Procedure shall apply to the 
dispute before JAG just as if the dispute had been filed in district court.  The parties recognize that 
by agreeing to arbitration as the method for dispute resolution, they: relinquish the right to bring an 
action in court and seek remedies available in court proceedings, including the extensive discovery 
rights typically permitted in judicial proceedings;  waive the right to a jury trial  acknowledge the 
arbitrator’s award is not required to include factual findings or legal reasoning; and acknowledge that 
any party’s right to appeal or seek modification of the award is strictly limited and the award is final 
and binding on the parties. 
 
 9. Employment Eligibility.  WBA hereby states that it does not knowingly employ or 
contract with an illegal alien, and that WBA has participated in or has attempted to participate in the 
E-Verify program pursuant to §§8-17.5-101, et seq., C.R.S., in order to verify that it does not employ 
any illegal aliens. 
 
 10. Representative Client Lists.  WBA currently maintains a website, firm résumé, and 
other materials for use with current and potential clients and for marketing purposes.  Execution of 
this engagement letter provides your consent to WBA’s use of the District’s name as a representative 
client of WBA on our website, firm résumé, and other materials.  
 
 If you are in agreement with the foregoing terms of this engagement and it meets your 
understanding of the professional relationship we have established, please have an authorized 
representative of the District sign and return a copy of this letter to our office at your earliest 
convenience.  By signing below, you acknowledge that you have been given the opportunity to 
discuss this engagement letter with another attorney or any other person of your choosing. 
 
 We look forward to working with you and will commit the necessary resources of WBA to 
meet your needs.  Our efforts will always be to ensure that our relationship is based on open and 
honest communication regarding these matters.  If at any time you have questions concerning our 
representation, please feel free to contact us immediately.       

 
 
 



Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 7 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 5 of 5 
 

 

Sincerely, 
 
      WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
      Attorneys at Law 
 
 
 
 
 
JGT:kas 
 
APPROVED, ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO BY:  
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 7 
 
 
        
Signature 
 
Printed Name:       
Position:       
Date:         
 
 

 



 
2154 E. Commons Ave., Ste. 2000   |  Centennial, CO  80122 |   P 303.858.1800 F 303.858.1801  | WhiteBearAnkele.com 

 
WILLIAM P. ANKELE, JR. 
JENNIFER GRUBER TANAKA 
CLINT C. WALDRON 
KRISTIN BOWERS TOMPKINS 
ROBERT G. ROGERS 
BLAIR M. DICKHONER 
 
OF COUNSEL: 
KRISTEN D. BEAR 
SEAN ALLEN 
GEORGE ROWLEY 
 

 
ZACHARY P. WHITE 

TRISHA K. HARRIS 
HEATHER L. HARTUNG 

MEGAN J. MURPHY 
EVE M. G. VELASCO 

ALLISON C. FOGG 
LAURA S. HEINRICH 

AUDREY G. JOHNSON 
LISA CANCANON 

 

 
January 12, 2021 

 
Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 8 
c/o White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron, P.C. 
2154 E. Commons Ave., Ste. 2000 
Centennial, CO 80122 
 
 RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
 
Dear Directors: 
 
 We are pleased to confirm our engagement as general counsel to Mayberry, Colorado Springs 
Metropolitan District No. 8 (the “District”), which we have successfully organized at the request of 
the Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 1-7 (“District Nos. 1-7,” together with 
the District, the “Districts”). 
 

This engagement letter provides the terms upon which White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron 
(“WBA”) WBA will provide legal services to the District and is intended to formalize our retention 
as general counsel, as required by the applicable Rules of Professional Conduct. This letter sets forth 
details of the engagement, including how we propose to staff the matter, billing arrangements and 
certain conflict of interest understandings. Additional information about WBA can be found at 
www.whitebearankele.com. 
 
 1.       Personnel.  Legal services provided under this engagement may be performed by any 
lawyer at WBA.  We will also use paralegals and/or other support staff as we believe to be necessary 
and effective in providing you with legal services. 
  

2. Fees, Expenses and Retainer.  Our fees for services rendered on the District’s behalf 
will be based upon time charged using the hourly rates charged by each attorney or paralegal working 
on the matter.  WBA’s legal services are billed on an hourly basis, in increments of one-tenth of an 
hour, and are not contingent.  Hourly rates for professionals in WBA currently range from $225.00 
to $495.00 (attorneys), from $135.00 to $210.00 (paralegals), and are $200.000 to $210.00 for other 
professionals.  Hourly rates are revised periodically to reflect the current cost for delivery of legal 
services and the fees charged for services under this engagement may change without notice.  From 
time to time WBA prepares memoranda, agreements or other documents based upon current 
legislative, State and Federal law concerns that are the subject of common interest and benefit to our 
clients.  WBA allocates the fees for this work on an equitable basis to clients who benefit from this 
legal work by WBA’s personnel.  If you do not wish to receive this information, please advise us 

http://www.whitebearankele.com/


Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 8 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 2 of 5 
 

 

accordingly.  WBA contracts with other law firms for the performance of specialized services.  In the 
event that these services are rendered on behalf of the Client, the fees and costs associated with those 
services will be reflected on WBA’s bill. 

 
In addition to legal fees, WBA also charges for certain out-of-pocket costs incurred by us in 

representing you. Charges for long distance telephone calls (domestic only), conference calling 
services (domestic only), facsimiles (domestic only), in-office copying, ordinary postage (under 
$10.00), and deliveries made by in-house staff are covered by an administrative fee, currently equal 
to 2.5% of the legal fees charged. This administrative fee is in lieu of itemizing those expenses and 
may be adjusted over time. If there are other expenses, such as filing and recording fees, computer-
assisted research fees, mileage, delivery service fees, travel, meals or hotel accommodation charges, 
those will be billed separately.  These costs are subject to the same payment terms as legal fees and 
are your responsibility.  WBA’s policy is to advance or incur expenses on a discretionary basis up to 
$1,000.00, subject to your reimbursement of them in the next bill.  If an expense will exceed that 
amount, we will ask you to pay it directly to us in advance or have you contract directly with the 
vendor. 

 
WBA will not require the payment of a retainer at this time, but we reserve the right to require 

a retainer if deemed necessary by WBA or if you fail to timely pay invoices. 
 
 3. Billing.  Generally, invoices for fees and expenses will be submitted to you monthly 
and are due upon receipt.  If an invoice remains unpaid after thirty (30) days, we will consider it in 
default and you agree that we may charge a late fee on all amounts due and owing at the rate of one 
percent (1%) compounded monthly.  By signature below, you agree to pay all fees, costs and expenses 
billed by WBA for the legal services.  If payments as described above are not paid on a timely basis, 
WBA may withdraw from the representation in accordance with the Rules of Professional Conduct.  
In the event that WBA is compelled to resort to collection of your account, which may or may not 
include litigation, you agree that your obligations to WBA shall include payment of all costs and 
expenses of such collection efforts, including court fees and costs, attorneys’ fees and out-of-pocket 
expenses. 
  

4. Attorney-Client Relationship.  In performing our services as general counsel to the 
District, the District will be our client.  We will represent the interests of the District, acting through 
its duly authorized management and at the Board of Directors’ (the “Board” or “Directors”) direction.  
We do not represent the interests of any of the Board, the Directors individually, or the District’s 
employees.  Nothing in this engagement agreement and nothing in our statements to you will be 
construed as a guarantee or promise about the outcome of any matter which WBA may handle on 
your behalf.  Our comments about the outcome of your matters or any phase thereof are expressions 
of opinion only.  Further, neither WBA nor any of its attorneys or employees shall be employed, 
retained, or otherwise categorized as a “municipal advisor” to the District as such term is defined in 
the 15 U.S.C. 78o-4(e)(4)(c), as amended by the Dodd/Frank Act (the “Act”), or any rules 
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Act.  Any comments or advice 
provided by WBA or its attorneys regarding the issuance of securities by the District shall be solely 
of a “traditional legal nature”, as permitted under the Act.  Throughout the attorney-client 



Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 8 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 

relationship, the District consents to the use of the District’s name and public information relating to 
the District’s transactions on WBA’s website or in other marketing materials. 

 
5. Conflicts of Interest.  We have performed an internal review for potential conflicts 

of interest based upon information you have provided to us.  The Districts were organized to work 
together to provide the public improvements and services needed for the community.  There may be 
issues on which the Districts have conflicting interests relative to administration, financing, 
construction or general operations.  Also, due to the fact that special districts are governed by an 
elected board of directors, which instructs us regarding the policies it wishes to implement or pursue, 
policies of a district may change from board to board and conflicts of interest among the Districts can 
arise accordingly.  If a conflict arises, WBA may be required to withdraw from representation of the 
Districts involved in the disputed issue, and those Districts may need to retain independent counsel 
regarding the disputed issue.   

 
WBA represents many other local governments and municipal clients that may be viewed as 

competing with the District.  Simultaneous representation in unrelated matters of clients whose 
interests are only economically adverse, such as representation of competing economic enterprises in 
unrelated transactions, does not ordinarily constitute a conflict of interest that requires consent of the 
respective clients. 

 
 6. Document Retention.  WBA maintains its client files electronically and ordinarily 
does not keep separate paper files.  We will scan documents you or others send to us related to your 
work to our electronic file and will ordinarily maintain the electronic version throughout the term of 
our engagement or, in some instances, while a particular matter or project is pending.  Unless you 
instruct us otherwise, with limited exceptions for certain documents such as original real property 
deeds and promissory notes, once such documents have been scanned to our electronic file, we will 
destroy all paper documents provided to us.  Following the conclusion of our services, we will return 
the District’s files to the District upon request, unless WBA has not received payment of all 
outstanding fees and costs, in which case WBA reserves the right to withhold them until payment is 
made.  Otherwise, no sooner than thirty (30) days after the conclusion of our services, we may destroy 
the files.  Please note that if WBA is designated as the public records custodian for the District 
pursuant to §§24-72-202, et seq., C.R.S., WBA will maintain all public records in accordance with 
any duly approved and adopted retention and destruction policy of the District and the Colorado State 
Archives or similar regulatory body. 
 
 7. Termination.  You will have the right to terminate our representation at any time.  
Whether you terminate the representation or we terminate the representation for reasons set forth in 
the Rules of Professional Conduct, including nonpayment of legal fees and expenses, all fees incurred 
for services rendered through the date of termination, as well as all costs and expenses incurred by 
us on your behalf, must be paid within ten days of receipt of our final statement.  We reserve the right 
to charge for any extraordinary work required in connection with the orderly transition of pending 
matters to new counsel.  Upon conclusion of our services, whether due to termination or completion 
of the work, we will not thereafter be responsible for legal matters for which our services have not 
been specifically requested and we have agreed to perform in writing. 
 



Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 8 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 4 of 5 
 

 

 8. Arbitration of Disputes.  If a dispute arises regarding our services or fees set forth in 
this engagement letter or any prior engagement letter between you and WBA, any fee dispute will be 
decided by the Colorado Bar Association Legal Fee Arbitration Committee (the “Committee”) in 
Denver, Colorado in accordance with the rules and procedures used by the Committee.  There is no 
charge for the dispute resolution services provided by the Committee and each party will pay its own 
costs and expenses.  If, either in addition to a pending fee dispute or in the absence of one, any other 
dispute or claim of any type or nature arises with respect to services rendered pursuant to this 
engagement agreement set forth in this engagement letter or any prior engagement letter between you 
and WBA, including, without limitation, a claim for legal malpractice, it will be decided by the 
Judicial Arbiter Group (“JAG”) in Denver, Colorado by a single arbitrator to be mutually agreed to 
by the parties.  Each party will be responsible for paying one half of all fees and expenses charged 
by the arbitrator.  Colorado law, including all applicable statutes of limitation and other defenses, 
will apply to the dispute before JAG just as if it had been brought in a judicial proceeding.  In the 
absence of an agreement to the contrary, the Colorado Rules of Civil Procedure shall apply to the 
dispute before JAG just as if the dispute had been filed in district court.  The parties recognize that 
by agreeing to arbitration as the method for dispute resolution, they: relinquish the right to bring an 
action in court and seek remedies available in court proceedings, including the extensive discovery 
rights typically permitted in judicial proceedings;  waive the right to a jury trial  acknowledge the 
arbitrator’s award is not required to include factual findings or legal reasoning; and acknowledge that 
any party’s right to appeal or seek modification of the award is strictly limited and the award is final 
and binding on the parties. 
 
 9. Employment Eligibility.  WBA hereby states that it does not knowingly employ or 
contract with an illegal alien, and that WBA has participated in or has attempted to participate in the 
E-Verify program pursuant to §§8-17.5-101, et seq., C.R.S., in order to verify that it does not employ 
any illegal aliens. 
 
 10. Representative Client Lists.  WBA currently maintains a website, firm résumé, and 
other materials for use with current and potential clients and for marketing purposes.  Execution of 
this engagement letter provides your consent to WBA’s use of the District’s name as a representative 
client of WBA on our website, firm résumé, and other materials.  
 
 If you are in agreement with the foregoing terms of this engagement and it meets your 
understanding of the professional relationship we have established, please have an authorized 
representative of the District sign and return a copy of this letter to our office at your earliest 
convenience.  By signing below, you acknowledge that you have been given the opportunity to 
discuss this engagement letter with another attorney or any other person of your choosing. 
 
 We look forward to working with you and will commit the necessary resources of WBA to 
meet your needs.  Our efforts will always be to ensure that our relationship is based on open and 
honest communication regarding these matters.  If at any time you have questions concerning our 
representation, please feel free to contact us immediately.       

 
 
 



Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 8 
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
January 12, 2021 
Page 5 of 5 
 

 

Sincerely, 
 
      WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
      Attorneys at Law 
 
 
 
 
 
JGT:kas 
 
APPROVED, ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO BY:  
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 8 
 
 
        
Signature 
 
Printed Name:       
Position:       
Date:         
 
 

 



 

      

JAMIE COTTER 
DIRECT DIAL: 303-839-3826 
jcotter@spencerfane.com 

 File No. 5500834-0001 

January 14, 2021 

VIA E-MAIL 

Mayberry, Colorado Springs MD Nos. 2-8 
c/o Jennifer Gruber Tanaka, Esq. 
White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron 
2154 East Commons Avenue, Suite 2000 
Centennial, Colorado 80122 

Re: Engagement of Legal Services - Mayberry, Colorado Springs MD Nos. 2-8 

Dear Board: 

I am pleased you have retained Spencer Fane LLP to act as special counsel for Mayberry, Colorado 
Springs MD Nos. 2-8 (the “District”). This letter and the enclosures confirm the scope of the services we 
will provide and the terms by which we will bill fees and expenses. If this arrangement requires 
supplementation to accommodate any additional matters not covered below, we will of course supplement. 
 
As we have discussed, our client in this matter will be the District. The District agrees that our 
representation of it in this matter does not give rise to a lawyer-client relationship between our firm and any 
of the District’s affiliates. Accordingly, the firm’s representation of the District in this matter will not give rise 
to a conflict of interest in the event the firm represents other clients adverse to District affiliates in other 
matters. 
 
We have been engaged to serve solely as special counsel to the District with respect to drafting, 
negotiating, and reviewing various agreements.  We have agreed that our engagement is limited to 
performance of legal services related to this matter.  We will not provide business, investment, (tax,) or 
accounting advice regarding the matter. 
 
Jamie Cotter will be your primary contact at our firm regarding this matter.  We may seek assistance from 
other attorneys in our firm as their expertise or assistance is warranted. Our bills for professional services 
are based on hourly billing rates. Jamie ’s  hourly rate is $460.00 per hour.  The hourly rates for other 
attorneys who might work on your matters range from $240.00 to $450.00 for associates and $360.00 
to $750.00 for partners. Standard hourly fees for legal assistants range from $135.00 to $260 .00. These 
fee rates normally will not be changed without notice to you, unless there is a general rate increase with 
respect to all clients. 
 

  



Mayberry, Colorado Springs MD Nos. 2-8  
January 14, 2021 
Page 2 

 

Our professional fees reflect a number of factors, including the time spent on this matter, office and 
telephone conferences with you, and telephone and office conferences with others on your behalf. We 
also bill for expenses incurred on your behalf such as photocopying and fax charges. You will receive a 
monthly invoice showing a description of the services performed. 
 
The goal of each of us at Spencer Fane is to provide the highest quality legal services timely and 
promptly. I trust you will find that we are not only available and responsive, but will spare no effort to meet 
your needs and deadlines. Accordingly, let me encourage you to contact any other person working on your 
matters, at any time. 
 
We hope this explanation of the structure of our relationship will be helpful to you and invite you to 
discuss any matter with us at any time, including inquiring at any time about the fees or costs incurred. We 
will strive to keep you informed whenever we provide services to you. If this understanding of the terms of 
our engagement is acceptable, please sign, date the enclosed copy of this letter at the bottom, and scan it 
back to me. 
 
Additional information regarding fees and other important matters appears in the enclosed Standard Terms 
of Representation, which are incorporated as part of this letter. Please review this letter and the Standard 
Terms of Representation carefully. Please contact me promptly if you have any questions about the 
Standard Terms or about this letter. If they meet with the District’s approval, promptly sign the letter in the 
space below and return a copy to me so that we may begin work. Please call or email me if you have any 
questions. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
 

Jamie Cotter 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACEPTED BY 
 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs MD Nos. 2-8 
 
 
_______________________    _______________________ 
Name:_________________    Date 
Title:___________________ 



   

 
 

Spencer Fane LLP | spencerfane.com 

This statement sets forth the standard terms of our 

engagement as your lawyers.  

The Scope of Our Work  

You should have a clear understanding of the legal 

services we will provide. Any questions that you have 

should be dealt with promptly.  

We will at all times act on your behalf to the best of 

our ability. Any expressions on our part concerning 

the outcome of your legal matters are expressions of 

our best professional judgment, but are not 

guarantees. Such opinions are necessarily limited to 

our knowledge of the facts and are based on the state 

of the law at the time they are expressed and should 

not be construed as a promise or guarantee. 

It is our policy that, for conflict of interest purposes, 

the person or entity that we represent is the person or 

entity that is identified in our engagement letter and 

does not include any affiliates of such person or 

entity. For example, if you are a corporation or 

partnership, our representation does not extend to 

any parents, subsidiaries, employees, officers, 

directors, shareholders or partners of the corporation 

or partnership, or commonly owned corporations or 

partnerships. If you are a trade association, our 

representation does not extend to any members of 

the trade association, unless such members 

undertake individual arrangements  

with us. If you are an individual, our representation 

does not include your spouse, siblings, or other family 

members. In addition, the advice and communications 

which we render on your behalf are not intended to be 

disseminated to or relied upon by anyone else without 

our written consent. 

It is also our policy that, for conflict of interest 

purposes, the attorney-client relationship will be 

considered terminated upon [our completion of the 

services that you have retained us to perform] or [our 

sending you over final statement or services rendered 

in the matter]. If you later retain us to perform further 

or additional services, our attorney-client relationship 

will be revived subject to these terms of engagement, 

as they may be supplemented at that time. 

Who Will Provide the Legal Services 

Customarily, each client of the firm is served by a 

principal attorney contact. The principal attorney 

should be someone in whom you have confidence 

and with whom you enjoy working. You are free to 

request a change of principal attorney at any time. 

Subject to the supervisory role of the principal 

attorney, your work or parts of it may be performed by 

other lawyers and legal assistants in the firm. Such 

delegation may be for the purpose of involving 

lawyers or legal assistants with particular skills or 

experience in a given area or for the purpose of 

providing services in the most efficient and timely 

basis. 

Client Responsibilities 

You agree to pay our statements for services and 

expenses as provided below. In addition, you agree to 

be candid and cooperative with us and keep us 

informed with complete and accurate factual 

information, documents, communications, and other 

material relevant to the subject matter of our 

representation or otherwise reasonably requested by 

us. You also agree to make any necessary business 

and strategy decisions in a timely manner.  

lhaydon
Typewritten Text
STANDARD TERMS OF ENGAGEMENT

lhaydon
Typewritten Text

lhaydon
Typewritten Text

lhaydon
Typewritten Text

lhaydon
Typewritten Text

lhaydon
Typewritten Text

lhaydon
Typewritten Text

lhaydon
Typewritten Text
   	

lhaydon
Typewritten Text

lhaydon
Typewritten Text

lhaydon
Typewritten Text

lhaydon
Typewritten Text

lhaydon
Typewritten Text



   

 
 

Spencer Fane LLP | spencerfane.com 

Because we need to be able to contact you at all 

times regarding the representation, you agree to 

inform us, in writing, of any changes in your name, 

address, telephone number, contact person, email 

address, state of incorporation, and other relevant 

information regarding you or your business. whenever 

we need instructions or authorization to proceed with 

legal work on your behalf, we will contact you at the 

most recent business address we have received. If 

you affiliate with, acquire, are acquired by, or merge 

with another client, you will provide us with sufficient 

notice to permit us to withdraw as your lawyers if we 

determine that such affiliation, acquisition, or merger 

creates a conflict of interest, or that it is not in the best 

interests of the firm to represent the new entity.  

From time to time, either at the outset or during the 

course of our representation, we may express 

opinions or beliefs concerning the mater or various 

courses of action and the results that might be 

anticipated. Any such statement made by any lawyer 

of our firm is an expression of opinion only, based on 

information available to us at the time, and should not 

be construed by you as the promise or guarantee.  

How Fees Will Be Set 

Our fees for legal services are customarily 

determined on the basis of an hourly rate. Each of 

our lawyers and legal assistants has an hourly rate, 

as determined by the firm’s management, 

consistent with the experience, reputation, and 

abilities of the lawyers and legal assistants 

performing the services. The hourly rates of each of 

our lawyers and legal assistants are reviewed 

annually, and, if appropriate, are adjusted to reflect 

current levels of legal experience, reputation, ability, 

costs, and other factors. We will keep accurate 

records of the time we devote to your work. 

Occasionally we are requested to estimate the 

amount of fees and costs likely to be incurred in 

connection with a particular matter. When requested, 

we will attempt to furnish such an estimate, based 

upon our past experience and best professional 

judgment, but with an understanding that such an 

estimate is not a maximum or fixed-fee quotation and 

that fees and costs are not usually predictable. It is 

expressly understood that your obligation to pay our 

fees and costs is in no way contingent on the  

For certain well-defined services (for example, a 

simple business incorporation), we may quote a flat 

fee and the scope of the services to be provided. It is 

our general policy not to accept representation on a 

flat-fee basis except in defined-service areas or 

pursuant to a special arrangement tailored to the 

needs of a particular client. Likewise, on rare 

occasions we may perform work on a contingency fee 

or other specially deferred fee relationship. In all such 

situations, the flat-fee or contingency fee arrangement 

will be expressed in a letter from us setting forth the 

terms and scope of the services to be provided, and 

your payment obligations. 

Conflicts 

We represent many other companies and individuals. 

It is possible that during the time that we are 

representing you, some of our present or future 

clients will have disputes or transactions with you. 

You agree that we may continue to represent, or may 

undertake in the future to represent, existing or new 

clients in any matter that is not substantially related to 

our work for you even if the interests of such clients in 

those other matters are directly adverse to your 

interests, including in litigation. We agree, however, 

that the above consent shall not apply in any instance 

where, as a result of our representation of you, we 



   

 
 

Spencer Fane LLP | spencerfane.com 

 
 

have obtained proprietary or other confidential 

information of a nonpublic nature that if known to such 

other client, could be used in any such other matter 

by such client to your material disadvantage. In 

similar engagement letters with many of our other 

clients, we have asked for similar agreements to 

preserve our ability to represent you. 

In addition, you agree that we may disclose the fact of 

our representation of you, without disclosing the 

nature of such representation, to other current or 

future clients that may be adverse to you for the 

purpose of obtaining such other clients’ consent to 

any conflict of interest that may be presented by our 

representation of you and such other client. We will 

not disclose to the other client any confidential 

information pertaining to our representation of you.  

From time to time we may have discussions with 

other lawyers for the purpose of considering them 

joining our firm. During the course of those 

discussions it may be necessary to disclose your 

identity as a client or fee and billing information 

relating to our representation of you. Such disclosure 

shall be subject to the confidentiality rules in the 

applicable codes of professional conduct and our 

confidentiality agreement with such other lawyers. 

You agree that we may disclose such limited 

information for these purposes.  

Representation of Lawyers 

We sometimes represent lawyers and law firms, and 

we are sometimes represented by other lawyers and 

law firms in matters unrelated to our representation of 

you. Because we do not believe these 

representations will materially limit our responsibilities 

to you or will otherwise adversely affect our 

representation of you, we do not believe these 

representations present conflicts of interest, including 

where any such firm also represents a client whose 

interests are opposed to yours in either a litigation or 

transactional setting. If, however, you have any 

concerns about whether such a relationship exists 

between this firm and the law firm that represents a 

client whose interests are adverse to yours in 

connection with this representation, please ask us 

whether there is any such relationship and we will 

attempt to address your concerns. Otherwise, you 

agree that we may represent or be represented by 

lawyers or law affirms that also represent clients 

whose interests are adverse to yours.  

Out-of-Pocket Expenses 

Although substantial expenses incurred on a client’s 

behalf will be sent to the client for direct payment, we 

often incur and pay on behalf of our clients a variety 

of smaller out-of-pocket costs arising in connection 

with legal services. These include charges made by 

government agencies and service vendors. Some 

typical costs are certain telephone charges; express 

delivery charges; printing and reproduction costs; 

filing fees; and travel expenses. We also charge for 

computerized legal research either at a rate equal to 

that charged by our vendor or based upon negotiated 

volume discounts. We also charge for our actual costs 

paid to vendors for processing and storing data that 

must be collected, analyzed and sometimes produced 

as a part of our representation of a client in 

transactional, litigation or other matters. We incur 

outside costs as agents for our clients and incur 

internal expenses on behalf of our clients, who agree 

that these costs will be paid on a regular basis. 

 

 



   

 
 

Spencer Fane LLP | spencerfane.com 

 

Billing Arrangements and Terms of Payment 

We will bill you on a regular basis, normally monthly, 

for both fees and disbursements. You agree to make 

payment within thirty days of receiving our statement. 

We will give you prompt notice if your account 

becomes delinquent. If the delinquency continues and 

you do not arrange satisfactory payment terms, we 

may withdraw from the representation and may 

pursue collection of your account. 

Retainer and Trust Deposits 

New clients of the firm are commonly asked to deposit 

a retainer with the firm. Two types of retainers are 

used most frequently. A monthly retainer is an amount 

billed and paid apart from the usual invoices for 

services rendered. Part or all of the retainer then is 

credited to the next invoice. A second type of retainer 

is a long-term deposit. Unless otherwise agreed, this 

retainer deposit will be credited toward your unpaid 

invoices, if any, at the conclusion of services. 

At the conclusion of our legal representation or at 

such time as the deposit is unnecessary or is 

appropriately reduced, the remaining balance or an 

appropriate part of it will be returned to you. If the 

retainer deposit proves insufficient to cover current 

expenses and fees on at least a two-month basis, it 

may have to be increased. Deposits which are 

received to cover specific items will be disbursed as 

provided in our agreement with you, and you will be 

notified from time to time of the amounts applied or 

withdrawn. Any amount remaining after disbursement 

will be returned to you. All trust deposits we receive 

from you will be placed in a trust account for your 

benefit. Unless special arrangements are made, 

interest earned on the trust account is paid to a 

charitable foundation established in accordance with 

court rules. 

Federally Regulated Financial Institutions 

If you are a federally regulated financial institution, our 

engagement, unless expressly described otherwise in 

the accompanying engagement letter, will be limited 

to assisting you with the structuring, negotiation, 

documenting and closing of your financing 

transactions, and conducting a legal review (the 

scope of which will be defined at the commencement 

of each separate transaction) of certain due diligence 

matters pertaining to each prospective borrower’s 

business. In connection with the foregoing, we will 

also assist you with the federal regulatory aspects of 

your receipt of equity enhancements (e.g., warrants 

and success fees) in connection with your financing 

transaction and the effect on, and applicability to, your 

financing transaction of federal margin stock laws and 

regulations; however, if we are not your counsel with 

respect to general corporate compliance matters, we 

will not otherwise undertake any responsibility for 

assuring that, with respect to any of the financing 

transactions, you will be complying with applicable 

state or federal laws and regulations because of your 

legal or regulatory status or because of the general 

nature of your business, including, without limitation, 

capital adequacy requirements, lending limits, 

restrictions on affiliate and insider transactions, rules 

regarding interlocking boards of directors, 

governmental reporting and licensing requirements, 

and federal, state or local tax matters. Of course, you 

may limit or expand the scope of our representation 

from time to time, provided that any such expansion is 

agreed to by us.  

 



   

 
 

Spencer Fane LLP | spencerfane.com 

Termination 

You may terminate our representation at any time, 

with or without cause, by notifying us in writing. Your 

termination of our services will not affect your 

responsibility for payment of legal services rendered 

and out-of-pocket costs incurred before termination 

and in connection with an orderly transition of the 

matter. 

We are subject to the codes of professional conduct 

for the jurisdictions in which we practice, which list 

several types of conduct or circumstances that require 

or allow us to withdraw from representing a client, 

including for example: conflict of interest with another 

client, misrepresentation or failure to disclose material 

facts, action contrary to our advice, and nonpayment 

of fees or costs. We try to identify in advance and 

discuss with our client any situation which may lead to 

our withdrawal and, if withdrawal ever becomes 

necessary, we shall provide the client written notice of 

our withdrawal. 

If we terminate the engagement, we will take 

reasonable steps to protect your interests in the 

specified matter, and you agree to take all steps 

necessary to free us of any obligation to perform 

further, including executing any documents necessary 

to perfect our withdrawal. If permission for withdrawal 

is required by a court or other adjudicator, we will 

promptly request such permission, and you agree not 

to oppose our request.  

At your request, documents and property will be 

returned to you upon receipt of payment for 

outstanding fees and costs, although we reserve the 

right to copy any documents we deem appropriate. 

Our files and documents pertaining to this matter will 

be retained by the firm. For various reasons, including 

the minimization of unnecessary storage expenses, 

and consistent with applicable professional conduct 

rules, we reserve the right to destroy or otherwise 

dispose of any such documents or other materials 

retained by us without further notice to you. 

Postengagement Matters  

The client is engaging the firm to provide legal 

services in connection with a specific matter. After 

completion of the matter, changes may occur in the 

applicable laws or regulations that could impact the 

client’s future rights and liabilities. Unless the client 

engages us after the completion of the matter to 

provide additional legal advice on issues arising from 

the matter, the firm has no continuing obligation to 

advise the company on such issues or on future legal 

developments, including monitoring renewal or notice 

dates or similar deadlines that may arise with respect 

to the matter. 

Entire Agreement  

The engagement letter and these Standard Terms of 

Representation constitute the entire understanding 

and agreement between you and this firm regarding 

our representation of you in this matter. Unless 

otherwise agreed, they superseded any prior 

understanding and agreements, written or oral, and 

any billing requirements, outside counsel guidelines, 

or letters submitted to us. If any provision of the 

engagement letter or these Standard Terms of 

Representation is held by a court or other arbitrator to 

be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of 

the provisions shall remain in full force and affect. The 

engagement letter and these Standard Terms may be 

amended only by a written agreement between you 

and us. You should review this document carefully 



   

 
 

Spencer Fane LLP | spencerfane.com 

 

and contact us promptly with any questions. You 

should retain this document in your file.  

 

Client Satisfaction 

Our desire is to serve you and meet your legal needs. 

Client satisfaction is of utmost importance. You 

should feel free to discuss any aspect of our 

representation with the principal attorney or any other 

attorney with the firm. We welcome your input to 

ensure that our legal services meet your needs. We 

appreciate having the opportunity to be of service to 

you. 

 
 
 



2137.4202, 1100713 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
(ENGINEERING SERVICES) 

      
 

This INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT, including any and all exhibits 
attached hereto (the “Agreement”), is entered into as of the 20th day of January, 2021, by and 
between MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-8, a 
quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”), 
and MMI WATER ENGINEERS, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (the “Contractor”).  
The District and the Contractor are referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as 
the “Parties.” 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District was organized pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions 
of §§ 32-1-101, et seq., C.R.S. for the purpose of constructing, financing, operating and 
maintaining certain public facilities and improvements for itself, its taxpayers, residents and users; 
and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(d)(I), C.R.S., the District is empowered to enter 
into contracts and agreements affecting the affairs of the District; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(i), C.R.S., the District is empowered to appoint, 
hire and retain agents, employees, engineers and attorneys; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to engage the Contractor to perform certain services as are 
needed by the District to serve the property within and without its boundaries; and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has represented that it has the professional experience, skill 
and resources to perform the services, as set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and stipulations set forth 
herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as 
follows: 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES; PERFORMANCE STANDARDS.  The Contractor shall 
perform the services described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference (the “Services”): (a) in a professional manner, to the satisfaction of the District, using 
the degree of skill and knowledge customarily employed by other professionals performing similar 
services; (b) within the time period and pursuant to the Scope of Services specified in said Exhibit 
A; and (c) using reasonable commercial efforts to minimize any annoyance, interference or 
disruption to the residents, tenants, occupants and invitees within the District.  Exhibit A may take 
any form, including forms which may include price and payment terms.  In the event of any conflict 
between terms set forth in the body of this Agreement and terms set forth in Exhibit A, the terms 
in the body of this Agreement shall govern.  Contractor shall have no right or authority, express or 
implied, to take any action, expend any sum, incur any obligation, or otherwise obligate the District 



2137.4202, 1100713 2 

in any manner whatsoever, except to the extent specifically provided in this Agreement (including 
Exhibit A) or through other authorization expressly delegated to or authorized by the District 
through its Board of Directors. 

2. TERM/RENEWAL.  This Agreement shall be effective as of the dated date hereof 
and shall terminate on the earlier to occur of: (i) termination pursuant to Section 18 hereof; (ii) 
completion of the Services; or (iii) December 31, 2021.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, unless 
terminated pursuant to subsection (i) or (ii) above, or unless the District determines not to 
appropriate funds for this Agreement for the next succeeding year, this Agreement shall 
automatically renew on January 1 of each succeeding year for an additional one (1) year term. 

3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES.  The District may, in writing, request the Contractor 
provide additional services not set forth in Exhibit A.  The terms and conditions of the provision 
of such services shall be subject to the mutual agreement of the Contractor and the District pursuant 
to a written service/work order executed by an authorized representative of the District and the 
Contractor or an addendum to this Agreement.  Authorization to proceed with additional services 
shall not be given unless the District has appropriated funds sufficient to cover the additional 
compensable amount.  To the extent additional services are provided pursuant to this Section 3, 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement relating to Services shall also apply to any additional 
services rendered. 

4. REPAIRS/CLAIMS.  The Contractor shall notify the District immediately of any 
and all damage caused by the Contractor to District property and that of third parties.  The 
Contractor will promptly repair or, at the District’s option, reimburse the District for the repair of 
any damage to property caused by the Contractor or its employees, agents or equipment.  In 
addition, the Contractor shall promptly notify the District of all potential claims of which it 
becomes aware.  The Contractor further agrees to take all reasonable steps to preserve all physical 
evidence and information which may be relevant to the circumstances surrounding a potential 
claim, while maintaining public safety, and to grant to the District the opportunity to review and 
inspect such evidence, including the scene of any damage or accidents.  The Contractor shall be 
responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in 
connection with the Services and shall provide all reasonable protection to prevent damage or 
injury to persons and property, including any material and equipment related to the Services, 
whether in storage on or off site, under the care, custody, or control of the Contractor or any of its 
subcontractors. 

5. GENERAL PERFORMANCE STANDARDS. 

a. The Contractor has by careful examination ascertained: (i) the nature and 
location of the Services; (ii) the configuration of the ground on which the Services are to be 
performed; (iii) the character, quality, and quantity of the labor, materials, equipment and facilities 
necessary to complete the Services; (iv) the general and local conditions pertaining to the Services; 
and (v) all other matters which in any way may affect the performance of the Services by the 
Contractor.  Contractor enters into this Agreement solely because of the results of such 
examination and not because of any representations pertaining to the Services or the provision 
thereof made to it by the District or any agent of the District and not contained in this Agreement.  
The Contractor represents that it has or shall acquire the capacity and the professional experience 



2137.4202, 1100713 3 

and skill to perform the Services and that the Services shall be performed in accordance with the 
standards of care, skill and diligence provided by competent professionals who perform services 
of a similar nature to those specified in this Agreement.  If competent professionals find that the 
Contractor’s performance of the Services does not meet this standard, the Contractor shall, at the 
District’s request, re-perform the Services not meeting this standard without additional 
compensation.   

b. The Contractor shall use reasonable commercial efforts to perform and 
complete the Services in a timely manner.  If performance of the Services by the Contractor is 
delayed due to factors beyond the Contractor’s reasonable control, or if conditions of the scope or 
type of services are expected to change, Contractor shall give prompt notice to the District of such 
a delay or change and receive an equitable adjustment of time and/or compensation, as negotiated 
between the Parties. 

c. The Services provided under this Agreement shall be adequate and 
sufficient for the intended purposes and shall be completed in a good and workmanlike manner.  

d. The Contractor agrees that it has and will continue to comply with all Laws 
while providing Services under this Agreement.  “Laws” means: (i) federal, state, county and local 
or municipal body or agency laws, statutes, ordinances and regulations; (ii) any licensing bonding, 
and permit requirements; (iii) any laws relating to storage, use or disposal of hazardous wastes, 
substances or materials; (iv) rules, regulations, ordinances and/or similar directives regarding 
business permits, certificates and licenses; (v) regulations and orders affecting safety and health, 
including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970; (vi) Wage and Hour 
laws, Worker Compensation laws, and immigration laws.    

e. The responsibilities and obligations of the Contractor under this Agreement 
shall not be relieved or affected in any respect by the presence of any agent, consultant, sub-
consultant or employee of the District.  Review, acceptance or approval by the District of the 
Services performed or any documents prepared by the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor 
of any responsibility for deficiencies, omissions or errors in said Services or documents, nor shall 
it be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action 
arising out of the performance of this Agreement. 

6. MONTHLY STATUS REPORT.  The Contractor shall provide to the District, at 
the District’s request, on or before the 25th of each month, a narrative progress and status report 
describing work in progress and results achieved during the reporting period, including a 
description of the Services performed during the invoice period and the Services anticipated to be 
performed during the ensuing invoice period (“Monthly Report”).  

7. COMPENSATION AND INVOICES. 

a. Compensation.  Compensation for the Services provided under this 
Agreement shall be in accordance with the compensation schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A.  
The Contractor shall be responsible for all expenses it incurs in performance of this Agreement 
and shall not be entitled to any reimbursement or compensation except as provided in Exhibit A 
of this Agreement, unless said reimbursement or compensation is approved in writing by the 



2137.4202, 1100713 4 

District in advance of incurring such expenses.  Any direct reimbursable costs for materials will 
be reimbursable at the Contractor’s actual cost, provided that the Contractor shall make a 
reasonable attempt to notify the District of the estimated amount of such reimbursable costs (or 
any material adjustments thereto subsequently identified) prior to commencing the requested 
services.  Concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the 
District with a current completed Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 (Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification) (“W-9”).  No payments will be made to the Contractor 
until the completed W-9 is provided.  The W-9 shall be attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit B. 

b. Invoices.  Invoices for the Services shall be submitted monthly, by the 10th  
of each month, during the term of this Agreement and shall contain the following information: 

i. An itemized statement of the Services performed. 

ii. Any other reasonable information required by the District to process 
payment of the invoice, including project and/or cost codes as provided in any applicable written 
service/work order. 

The District shall be charged only for the actual time and direct costs 
incurred for the performance of the Services.  Invoices received by the District after the 10th of 
each month may be processed the following month. 

8. TIME FOR PAYMENT.  Payment for the Services shall be made by the District 
within thirty (30) days of receipt of: (i) a timely, satisfactory and detailed invoice in the form 
required by Section 7; and (ii) if applicable, a reasonably satisfactory and detailed Monthly Report, 
for that portion of the Services performed and not previously billed.  The District may determine 
to waive or extend the deadline for filing the Monthly Report, or may make payment for Services 
to the Contractor notwithstanding a delay in filing the Monthly Report, upon reasonable request 
of the Contractor, if it is in the interest of the District to do so.  In the event a Board meeting is not 
scheduled in time to review payment of an invoice, the Board hereby authorizes payment for 
Services, subject to the appropriation and budget requirements under Section 27 hereof, without 
the need for additional Board approval, so long as any payment required to be made does not 
exceed the amounts appropriated for such Services as set forth in the District’s approved budget.  
Such payment shall require review and approval of each Monthly Report and invoice by two 
officers of the District. 

9. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  The Contractor is an independent contractor 
and nothing in this Agreement shall constitute or designate the Contractor or any of its employees 
or agents as employees or agents of the District.  The Contractor shall have full power and authority 
to select the means, manner and method of performing its duties under this Agreement, without 
detailed control or direction from the District, and shall be responsible for supervising its own 
employees or subcontractors.  The District is concerned only with the results to be obtained.  The 
District shall not be obligated to secure, and shall not provide, any insurance coverage or 
employment benefits of any kind or type to or for the Contractor or its employees, sub-consultants, 
contractors, agents, or representatives, including coverage or benefits related but not limited to: 
local, state or federal income or other tax contributions, insurance contributions (e.g. FICA taxes), 



2137.4202, 1100713 5 

workers’ compensation, disability, injury, health or life insurance, professional liability insurance, 
errors and omissions insurance, vacation or sick-time benefits, retirement account contributions, 
or any other form of taxes, benefits or insurance.  The Contractor shall be responsible for its safety, 
and the safety of its employees, sub-contractors, agents, and representatives.  All personnel 
furnished by the Contractor will be deemed employees or sub-contractors of the Contractor and 
will not for any purpose be considered employees or agents of the District.  The Contractor is 
not entitled to worker’s compensation benefits or unemployment insurance benefits, unless 
unemployment compensation coverage is provided by the Contractor or some other entity 
other than the District, and the Contractor is obligated to pay federal and state income taxes 
on moneys by it earned pursuant to this Agreement.   

10. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY / EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY.  This Agreement is 
subject to all applicable laws and executive orders relating to equal opportunity and non-
discrimination in employment and the Contractor represents and warrants that it will not 
discriminate in its employment practices in violation of any such applicable law or executive order. 

The Contractor hereby states that it does not knowingly employ or contract with 
illegal aliens and that the Contractor has participated in or has attempted to participate in the E-
Verify Program or Department Program (formerly known as the Basic Pilot Program) (as defined 
in §8-17.5-101, C.R.S.) in order to verify that it does not employ any illegal aliens.  The Contractor 
affirmatively makes the follow declarations: 

a. The Contractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien 
who will perform work under the public contract for services contemplated in this Agreement and 
will participate in the E-Verify Program or Department Program (as defined in §8-17.5-101, 
C.R.S.) in order to confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for 
employment to perform work under the public contract for Services contemplated in this 
Agreement. 

b. The Contractor shall not knowingly enter into a contract with a 
subcontractor that fails to certify to the Contractor that the subcontractor shall not knowingly 
employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform the services contemplated in this Agreement. 

c. The Contractor has confirmed the employment eligibility of all employees 
who are newly hired for employment to perform work under the public contract for services 
through participation in either the E-Verify Program or the Department Program. 

d. The Contractor is prohibited from using either the E-Verify Program or the 
Department Program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while 
this Agreement is being performed.  

e. If the Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing 
the services under this Agreement knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, the 
Contractor shall be required to: 

i. Notify the subcontractor and the District within three (3) days that 
the Contractor has actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with an 
illegal alien. 



2137.4202, 1100713 6 

ii. Terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if within three (3) 
days of receiving the notice required above the subcontractor does not stop employing or 
contracting with the illegal alien; except that the Contractor shall not terminate the contract with 
the subcontractor if during such three (3) days the subcontractor provides information to establish 
that the subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal alien. 

f. The Contractor shall comply with any reasonable request by the Department 
of Labor and Employment made in the course of an investigation involving matters under this 
Section 10 that such Department is undertaking pursuant to the authority established in § 8-17.5-
102, C.R.S.  

g. If the Contractor violates a provision of this Agreement pursuant to which 
§ 8-17.5-102, C.R.S., applies the District may terminate this Agreement upon three (3) days written 
notice to the Contractor.  If this Agreement is so terminated, the Contractor shall be liable for 
actual and consequential damages to the District. 

11. CONTRACTOR’S INSURANCE.   

a. The Contractor shall acquire and maintain, at its sole cost and expense, 
during the entire term of this Agreement, insurance coverage in the minimum amounts set forth in 
Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  A waiver of subrogation and 
rights of recovery against the District, its directors, officers, employees and agents is required for 
Commercial General Liability and Workers Compensation coverage.  The Commercial General 
Liability and Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance policies will be endorsed to name 
the District as an additional insured.  All coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
written as primary policies, not contributing with and not supplemental to any coverage that the 
District may carry, and any insurance maintained by the District shall be considered excess.  The 
District shall have the right to verify or confirm, at any time, all coverage, information or 
representations contained in this Agreement. 

b. Prior to commencing any work under this Agreement, the Contractor shall 
provide the District with a certificate or certificates evidencing the policies required by this 
Agreement, as well as the amounts of coverage for the respective types of coverage, which 
certificate(s) shall be attached hereto as Exhibit C-1.  If the Contractor subcontracts any portion(s) 
of the Services, said subcontractor(s) shall be required to furnish certificates evidencing statutory 
workers’ compensation insurance, comprehensive general liability insurance and automobile 
liability insurance in amounts satisfactory to the District and the Contractor; provided, however, 
that sub-contractors of the Contractor shall not be required by the District to provide coverage in 
excess of that which is required hereunder of the Contractor.  If the coverage required expires 
during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor or subcontractor shall provide replacement 
certificate(s) evidencing the continuation of the required policies. 

c. The Contractor’s failure to purchase the required insurance shall not serve 
to release it from any obligations contained in this Agreement; nor shall the purchase of the 
required insurance serve to limit the Contractor’s liability under any provision in this Agreement.  
The Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of any deductibles on issued policies. 



2137.4202, 1100713 7 

12. CONFIDENTIALITY AND CONFLICTS.  

a. Confidentiality.  Any information deemed confidential by the District and 
given to the Contractor by the District, or developed by the Contractor as a result of the 
performance of a particular task, shall remain confidential.  In addition, the Contractor shall hold 
in strict confidence, and shall not use in competition, any information which the Contractor 
becomes aware of under or by virtue of this Agreement which the District deems confidential, or 
which the District has agreed to hold confidential, or which, if revealed to a third party, would 
reasonably be construed to be contrary to the interests of the District.  Confidential information 
shall not include, however, any information which is: (i) generally known to the public at the time 
provided to the Contractor; (ii) provided to the Contractor by a person or entity not bound by 
confidentiality to the District; or (iii) independently developed by the Contractor without use of 
the District’s confidential information.  During the performance of this Agreement, if the 
Contractor is notified that certain information is to be considered confidential, the Contractor 
agrees to enter into a confidentiality agreement in a form reasonably acceptable to the District and 
the Contractor.  The Contractor agrees that any of its employees, agents or subcontractors with 
access to any information designated thereunder as confidential information of the District shall 
agree to be bound by the terms of such confidentiality agreement. 

b. Personal Identifying Information.  During the performance of this 
Agreement, the District may disclosure Personal Identifying Information to the Contractor.  
“Personal Identifying Information” means a social security number; a personal identification 
number; a password; a pass code; an official state or government-issued driver’s license or 
identification card number; a government passport number; biometric data, as defined in § 24-73-
103(1)(a), C.R.S.; an employer, student, or military identification number; or a financial 
transaction device, as defined in § 18-5-701(3), C.R.S.  In compliance with § 24-73-102, C.R.S., 
the Contractor agrees to implement and maintain reasonable security procedures and practices that 
are: (i) appropriate to the nature of the Personal Identifying Information disclosed to the 
Contractor; and (ii) reasonably designed to help protect the Personal Identifying Information from 
unauthorized access, use, modification, disclosure, or destruction. 

c. Conflicts.  Prior to the execution of, and during the performance of this 
Agreement and prior to the execution of future agreements with the District, the Contractor agrees 
to notify the District of conflicts known to the Contractor that impact the Contractor’s provision 
of Services to the District.   

13. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  All documents produced by or on behalf of the 
Contractor prepared pursuant to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all maps, plans, 
drawings, specifications, reports, electronic files and other documents, in whatever form, shall 
remain the property of the District under all circumstances, upon payment to the Contractor of the 
invoices representing the work by which such materials were produced.  At the District’s request 
the Contractor will provide the District with all documents produced by or on behalf of the 
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement.  The Contractor shall maintain electronic and reproducible 
copies on file of any such instruments of service involved in the Services for a period of two (2) 
years after termination of this Agreement, shall make them available for the District’s use and shall 
provide such copies to the District upon request at no cost. 



2137.4202, 1100713 8 

14. LIENS AND ENCUMBRANCES.  The Contractor shall not have any right or 
interest in any District assets, or any claim or lien with respect thereto, arising out of this 
Agreement or the performance of the Services contemplated in this Agreement.  The Contractor, 
for itself, hereby waives and releases any and all statutory or common law mechanic’s, 
materialmen’s or other such lien claims, or rights to place a lien upon the District’s property or 
any improvements thereon in connection with any Services performed under or in connection with 
this Agreement, and the Contractor shall cause all permitted subcontractors, suppliers, 
materialmen, and others claiming by, through or under the Contractor to execute similar waivers 
prior to commencing any work or providing any materials in connection with the Services.  The 
Contractor further agrees to execute a sworn affidavit respecting the payment and lien releases of 
all subcontractors, suppliers and materialmen, and release of lien respecting the Services at such 
time or times and in such form as may be reasonably requested by the District.  The Contractor 
will provide indemnification against all such liens for labor performed, materials supplied or used 
by the Contractor and/or any other person in connection with the Services undertaken by the 
Contractor, in accordance with Section 15, below. 

15. INDEMNIFICATION.   

a. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the District and 
each of its directors, officers, contractors, employees, agents and consultants (collectively, the 
“District Indemnitees”), from and against any and all claims, demands, losses, liabilities, actions, 
lawsuits, damages, and expenses (the “Claims”), including reasonable legal expenses and 
attorneys’ fees actually incurred, by the District Indemnitees arising directly or indirectly, in whole 
or in part, out of the errors or omissions, negligence, willful misconduct, or any criminal or tortious 
act or omission of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors, officers, agents or employees, in 
connection with this Agreement and/or the Contractor’s performance of the Services or work 
pursuant to this Agreement.  Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement or otherwise to the 
contrary, the Contractor is not obligated to indemnify the District Indemnitees for the negligence 
of the District or the negligence of any other District Indemnitee, except the Contractor.  Except 
as otherwise provided by applicable law, this indemnification obligation will not be limited in any 
way by any limitation on the amount or types of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or 
for the Contractor under workers’ compensation acts, disability acts or other employee benefit 
acts, provided that in no event shall the Contractor be liable for special/consequential or punitive 
damages. 

b. In the event the Contractor fails to assume the defense of any Claims under 
this Section 15 within fifteen (15) days after notice from the District of the existence of such Claim, 
the District may assume the defense of the Claim with counsel of its own selection, and the 
Contractor will pay all reasonable expenses of such counsel.  Insurance coverage requirements 
specified in this Agreement shall in no way lessen or limit the liability of the Contractor under the 
terms of this indemnification obligation.  

c. Insurance coverage requirements specified in this Agreement shall in no 
way lessen or limit the liability of the Contractor under the terms of this indemnification obligation.  
The Contractor shall obtain, at its own expense, any additional insurance that it deems necessary 
with respect to its obligations under this Agreement, including the indemnity obligations set forth 



2137.4202, 1100713 9 

in Section 15.  This defense and indemnification obligation shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement.   

16. ASSIGNMENT.  The Contractor shall not assign this Agreement or parts thereof, 
or its respective duties, without the express written consent of the District.  Any attempted 
assignment of this Agreement in whole or in part with respect to which the District has not 
consented, in writing, shall be null and void and of no effect whatsoever. 

17. SUB-CONTRACTORS.  The Contractor is solely and fully responsible to the 
District for the performance of all Services in accordance with the terms set forth in this 
Agreement, whether performed by the Contractor or a subcontractor engaged by the Contractor, 
and neither the District’s approval of any subcontractor, suppliers, or materialman, nor the failure 
of performance thereof by such persons or entities, will relieve, release, or affect in any manner 
the Contractor’s duties, liabilities or obligations under this Agreement .  The Contractor shall not 
subcontract any Services without prior written approval by the District.  The Contractor agrees 
that each and every agreement of the Contractor with any subcontractor to perform Services under 
this Agreement shall contain an indemnification provision identical to the one contained in this 
Agreement holding the District harmless for the acts of the subcontractor.  Prior to commencing 
any Services, a subcontractor shall provide evidence of insurance coverage to the District in 
accordance with the requirements of this Agreement.  The Contractor further agrees that all such 
subcontracts shall provide that they may be terminated immediately without cost or penalty upon 
termination of this Agreement, other than payment for services rendered prior to the date of any 
such termination.  

18. TERMINATION.  In addition to the termination provisions contained in Section 2, 
above, this Agreement may be terminated for convenience by the Contractor upon delivery of 
thirty (30) days prior written notice to the District and by the District by giving the Contractor 
thirty (30) days prior written notice.  Each Party may terminate this Agreement for cause at any 
time upon written notice to the other Party setting forth the cause for termination and the notified 
Party’s failure to cure the cause to the reasonable satisfaction of the Party given such notice within 
the cure period set forth in Section 19.  Such notice shall not be required for automatic expiration 
under Section 2, above.  If this Agreement is terminated, the Contractor shall be paid for all the 
Services satisfactorily performed prior to the designated termination date, including reimbursable 
expenses due.  Said payment shall be made in the normal course of business.  Should either Party 
to this Agreement be declared bankrupt, make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or 
commit a substantial and material breach of this Agreement in the view of the other Party, said 
other Party shall be excused from rendering or accepting any further performance under this 
Agreement.  In the event of termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall cooperate with the 
District to ensure a timely and efficient transition of all work and work product to the District or 
its designees.  All time, fees and costs associated with such transition shall not be billed by the 
Contractor to the District.   

19. DEFAULT.  If either Party fails to perform in accordance with the terms, covenants 
and conditions of this Agreement, or is otherwise in default of any of the terms of this Agreement, 
the non-defaulting party shall deliver written notice to the defaulting party of the default, at the 
address specified in Section 20 below, and the defaulting party will have ten (10) days from and 
after receipt of the notice to cure the default.  If the default is not of a type which can be cured 



2137.4202, 1100713 10 

within such ten (10)-day period and the defaulting party gives written notice to the non-defaulting 
party within such ten (10)-day period that it is actively and diligently pursuing a cure, the 
defaulting party will have a reasonable period of time given the nature of the default following the 
end of the ten (10)-day period to cure the default, provided that the defaulting party is at all times 
within the additional time period actively and diligently pursuing the cure.  If any default under 
this Agreement is not cured as described above, the non-defaulting party will, in addition to any 
other legal or equitable remedy, have the right to terminate this Agreement and enforce the 
defaulting party’s obligations pursuant to this Agreement by an action for injunction or specific 
performance. 

20. NOTICES.  Any notice or communication required under this Agreement must be 
in writing, and may be given personally, sent via nationally recognized overnight carrier service, 
or by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested.  If given by registered or certified mail, 
the same will be deemed to have been given and received on the first to occur of: (i) actual receipt 
by any of the addressees designated below as the party to whom notices are to be sent; or (ii) three 
days after a registered or certified letter containing such notice, properly addressed, with postage 
prepaid, is deposited in the United States mail.  If personally delivered or sent via nationally 
recognized overnight carrier service, a notice will be deemed to have been given and received on 
the first to occur of: (i) one business day after being deposited with a nationally recognized 
overnight air courier service; or (ii) delivery to the party to whom it is addressed.  Any party hereto 
may at any time, by giving written notice to the other party hereto as provided in this Section 20 
of this Agreement, designate additional persons to whom notices or communications will be given, 
and designate any other address in substitution of the address to which such notice or 
communication will be given.  Such notices or communications will be given to the parties at their 
addresses set forth below: 

District: Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan 
District Nos. 3-8 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
2154 E. Commons Ave., Suite 2000 
Centennial, CO  80122 
Attention: Jennifer  
Phone: (303) 858-1800 
Email: jtanaka@wbapc.com 
 

  
With a Copy to: WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 

2154 E. Commons Ave., Suite 2000 
Centennial, CO  80122 
Attention: Jennifer Gruber Tanaka, Esq. 
Phone: (303) 858-1800 
E-mail: jtanaka@wbapc.com 
 

  
Contractor: MMI Water Engineers, LLC 

7262 South Garrison Court 
Littleton, CO 80128 



2137.4202, 1100713 11 

Attention: Bradley A. Simons, P.E. 
Phone: (720) 234-8398 
Email: Bradley.a.simons@gmail.com 
 

21. AUDITS.  The District shall have the right to audit, with reasonable notice,  any of 
the Contractor’s books and records solely as are necessary to substantiate any invoices and 
payments under this Agreement (including, but not limited to, receipts, time sheets, payroll and 
personnel records) and the Contractor agrees to maintain adequate books and records for such 
purposes during the term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years after termination of 
this Agreement and to make the same available to the District at all reasonable times and for so 
long thereafter as there may remain any unresolved question or dispute regarding any item 
pertaining thereto.  

22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 
between the Parties hereto relating to the Services, and sets forth the rights, duties, and obligations 
of each to the other as of this date.  Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or 
representations not expressly set forth in this Agreement are of no force and effect.  This 
Agreement may not be modified except by a writing executed by both the Contractor and the 
District.  

23. BINDING AGREEMENT.  This Agreement shall inure to and be binding on the 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties hereto. 

24. NO WAIVER.  No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 
deemed to constitute a waiver of any other of the provisions of this Agreement, nor shall such 
waiver constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, nor 
shall the waiver of any default be deemed a waiver of any subsequent default. 

25. GOVERNING LAW.   

a. Venue.  Venue for all actions arising from this Agreement shall be in the 
District Court in and for the county in which the District is located.  The Parties expressly and 
irrevocably waive any objections or rights which may affect venue of any such action, including, 
but not limited to, forum non-conveniens or otherwise.  At the District’s request, the Contractor 
shall carry on its duties and obligations under this Agreement during any legal proceedings and 
the District shall continue to pay for the Services performed under this Agreement until and unless 
this Agreement is otherwise terminated.  

b. Choice of Law. Colorado law shall apply to any dispute, without regard to 
conflict of law principles that would result in the application of any law other than the law of the State 
of Colorado. 

c. Litigation.  At the District’s request, the Contractor will consent to being 
joined in litigation between the District and third parties, but such consent shall not be construed 
as an admission of fault or liability.  The Contractor shall not be responsible for delays in the 
performance of the Services caused by factors beyond its reasonable control including delays 
caused by Act of God, accidents, failure of any governmental or other regulatory authority to act 



2137.4202, 1100713 12 

in a timely manner or failure of the District to furnish timely information or to approve or 
disapprove of Contractor’s Services in a timely manner.  

26. GOOD FAITH OF PARTIES.  In the performance of this Agreement, or in 
considering any requested approval, acceptance, consent, or extension of time, the Parties agree 
that each will act in good faith and will not act unreasonably, arbitrarily, capriciously, or 
unreasonably withhold, condition, or delay any approval, acceptance, consent, or extension of time 
required or requested pursuant to this Agreement. 

27. SUBJECT TO ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND BUDGET.  The District does 
not intend hereby to create a multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation 
whatsoever.  The Contractor expressly understands and agrees that the District’s obligations under 
this Agreement shall extend only to monies appropriated for the purposes of this Agreement by 
the Board and shall not constitute a mandatory charge, requirement or liability in any ensuing fiscal 
year beyond the then-current fiscal year.  No provision of this Agreement shall be construed or 
interpreted as a delegation of governmental powers by the District, or as creating a multiple-fiscal 
year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever of the District or statutory debt 
limitation, including, without limitation, Article X, Section 20 or Article XI, Section 6 of the 
Constitution of the State of Colorado.  No provision of this Agreement shall be construed to pledge 
or to create a lien on any class or source of District funds.  The District’s obligations under this 
Agreement exist subject to annual budgeting and appropriations, and shall remain subject to the 
same for the entire term of this Agreement. 

28. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed 
to waive, limit, or otherwise modify, in whole or in part, any governmental immunity that may be 
available by law to the District, its respective officials, employees, contractors, or agents, or any 
other person acting on behalf of the District and, in particular, governmental immunity afforded or 
available to the District pursuant to the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, §§ 24-10-101, et 
seq., C.R.S.  

29. NEGOTIATED PROVISIONS.  This Agreement shall not be construed more 
strictly against one Party than against the other merely by virtue of the fact that it may have been 
prepared by counsel for one of the Parties, it being acknowledged that each Party has contributed 
to the preparation of this Agreement. 

30. SEVERABILITY.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared by any court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the 
validity of any other portion of this Agreement which shall remain in full force and effect, the 
intention being that such portions are severable.  In addition, in lieu of such void or unenforceable 
provision, there shall automatically be added as part of this Agreement a provision similar in terms 
to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision so that the resulting reformed provision is legal, 
valid and enforceable. 

31. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  It is expressly understood and agreed that 
enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and all rights of action relating to such 
enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the Parties and nothing contained in this Agreement shall 
give or allow any such claim or right of action by any other third party on such Agreement.  It is 



2137.4202, 1100713 13 

the express intention of the Parties that any person other than Parties receiving services or benefits 
under this Agreement shall be deemed to be an incidental beneficiary only. 

32. OPEN RECORDS.  The Parties understand that all material provided or produced 
under this Agreement may be subject to the Colorado Open Records Act, §§ 24-72-202, et seq., 
C.R.S.  

33. STANDARD OF CARE.  In providing Services under this Agreement, the 
Contractor shall perform in a manner consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily 
exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances at 
the same time. 

34. TAX EXEMPT STATUS.  The District is exempt from Colorado state sales and 
use taxes.  Accordingly, taxes from which the District is exempt shall not be included in any 
invoices submitted to the District.  The District shall, upon request, furnish Contractor with a copy 
of its certificate of tax exemption.  Contractor and subcontractors shall apply to the Colorado 
Department of Revenue, Sales Tax Division, for an Exemption Certificate and purchase materials 
tax free.  The Contractor and subcontractors shall be liable for exempt taxes paid due to failure to 
apply for Exemption Certificates or for failure to use said certificate. 

35. COUNTERPART EXECUTION.  This Agreement may be executed in several 
counterparts, each of which may be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument.  Executed copies hereof may be delivered by facsimile or email of a 
PDF document, and, upon receipt, shall be deemed originals and binding upon the signatories 
hereto, and shall have the full force and effect of the original for all purposes, including the rules 
of evidence applicable to court proceedings. 

[Signature pages follow]. 



District’s Signature Page to Independent Contractor Agreement for Engineering Services with 
MMI Water Engineers, LLC, dated January 20, 2021 

 
0895.4202, 110713 14 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the date first 
above written.  By the signature of its representative below, each Party affirms that it has taken all 
necessary action to authorize said representative to execute this Agreement. 

DISTRICT: 
MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS 
METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-8, a 
quasi-municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado 
 

 
Officer of the District 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 

 
Secretary  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 

 
General Counsel for the District 
 
 
  
 



Contractor’s Signature Page to Independent Contractor Agreement for Engineering Services 
with Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8, dated January 20, 2021 

 
0478.4202, 1100713 15 

CONTRACTOR: 
MMI WATER ENGINEERS, LLC, a Colorado 
limited liability company 
 

 
 
 
Printed Name 
 
Title 

 
 
STATE OF COLORADO )  
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ______________________ )  

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of __________, 

2019, by Bradley A. Simmons, as the President of MMI Water Engineers, LLC, a Colorado limited 
liability company. 

Witness my hand and official seal. 

My commission expires:   
  
  
  
 Notary Public 
 



0895.4200, 1100713 A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES/COMPENSATION SCHEDULE 

 



0895.4200, 1100713 B-1-1 

EXHIBIT B 

CONTRACTOR’S COMPLETED W-9 

 
 



0895.4200, 1100713 C- 1 

EXHIBIT C 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
NOTE: All insurance required and provided hereunder shall also comply with the provisions of 
Section 11 of this Agreement. 
 
1. Standard Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance covering all 

employees of Contractor involved with the performance of the Services, with policy 
amounts and coverage in compliance with the laws of the jurisdiction in which the Services 
will be performed. 

2. Commercial General Liability Insurance with minimum limits of liability of not less than 
$2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage liability; $2,000,000 
designated location, general aggregate; and $1,000,000 umbrella.  Such insurance will 
include coverage for contractual liability, personal injury and broad form property damage, 
and shall include all major divisions of coverage and be on a comprehensive basis 
including, but not limited to:   

a. premises operations; 
b. personal injury liability without employment exclusion; 
c. limited contractual; 
d. broad form property damages, including completed operations; 
e. medical payments; 
f. products and completed operations; 
g. independent consultants coverage; 
h. coverage inclusive of construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and 

procedures, employed in the capacity of a construction consultant; and 
 

This policy must include coverage extensions to cover the indemnification obligations 
contained in this Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of bodily injury or 
property damage. 

3. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned and hired 
automobiles used in connection with the performance of the Services, with limits of 
liability of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and property 
damage.  This policy must include coverage extensions to cover the indemnification 
obligations contained in this Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of 
bodily injury or property damage. 

4. If applicable: Contractor shall secure and maintain a third party fidelity bond in favor of 
the District covering the Contractor and its employees and agents who may provide or be 
responsible for the provision of Services where such activities contemplate the 
responsibility for money or property of the District.  Such bond shall protect the District 
against any fraudulent or dishonest act which may result in the loss of money, securities, 



0895.4200, 1100713 C- 2 

or other property belonging to or in the possession of the District.  Said bond shall be in an 
amount as determined by the District, from a surety acceptable to the District. 

5. Any other insurance commonly used by contractors for services of the type to be performed 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

6. Professional liability insurance in the amount of $2,000,000.00 each occurrence. 



0895.4202, 1100713  

EXHIBIT C-1 

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE 
  



0895.4200, 1100713 C- 2 

EXHIBIT D 
 

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

OF THE STATE OF COLORADO 

CERTIFICATE OF FACT OF GOOD STANDING 

I, Jena Griswold  , as the Secretary of State of the State of Colorado, hereby certify that, according to the 

records of this office, 

is a 

formed or registered on   under the law of Colorado, has complied with all applicable 

requirements of this office, and is in good standing with this office.  This entity has been assigned entity 

identification number   . 

This certificate reflects facts established or disclosed by documents delivered to this office on paper through 

 that have been posted, and by documents delivered to this office electronically through 

 @   . 

I have affixed hereto the Great Seal of the State of Colorado and duly generated, executed, and issued this 

official certificate at Denver, Colorado on   @    in accordance with applicable law. 

This certificate is assigned Confirmation Number  . 

*********************************************End of Certificate******************************************* 
Notice: A certificate issued electronically from the Colorado Secretary of State’s Web site is fully and immediately valid and effective. 

However, as an option, the issuance and validity of a certificate obtained electronically may be established by visiting the Validate a 
Certificate page of the Secretary of State’s Web site, http://www.sos.state.co.us/biz/CertificateSearchCriteria.do entering the certificate’s 
confirmation number displayed on the certificate, and following the instructions displayed. Confirming the issuance of a certificate is merely 

optional and is not necessary to the valid and effective issuance of a certificate. For more information, visit our Web site, http://

www.sos.state.co.us/ click “Businesses, trademarks, trade names” and select “Frequently Asked Questions.” 

MMI Water Engineers, LLC

Limited Liability Company

20181404022

01/12/2021
01/14/2021 10:43:56

01/14/2021 10:43:56
12851664

05/22/2018



 
 

 

 

January 13, 2021 

 

VIA EMAIL 

Lee Merritt, President  

Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 

c/o Jennifer Gruber Tanaka 

General Counsel 

White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron 

2154 E. Commons Ave., Suite 2000  

Centennial, CO 80122 

jtanaka@wbapc.com 

 

Re: Representation of Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 as 

Water Rights Legal Counsel  

Dear Lee:  

White & Jankowski LLC (“WJ”) would be pleased to represent the Mayberry, Colorado 

Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 (the “District”) as water rights legal counsel.  The 

purpose of this Agreement is to provide the District with important information about WJ’s 

proposed scope of representation, WJ’s fees and billing policies, and other terms that will govern 

the attorney-client relationship between the District and WJ.   

SCOPE OF REPRESENTATION 

WJ will act as water rights legal counsel for the District and will provide water-related 

legal services including, without limitation: (1) assessing the District’s current and future water 

needs; (2) negotiating intergovernmental agreements and other transactional documents for the 

District; (3) working with the Upper Black Squirrel Ground Water Management District and the 

Colorado Ground Water Commission; (4) developing and evaluating innovative, collaborative 

solutions to problems as they arise; (5) litigating issues that cannot be resolved by other means; 

and (6) providing additional services as requested by the District  

DEALING WITH CONFLICTS 

WJ has no current conflicts of interest that might prevent WJ from undertaking the Scope 

of Representation  detailed above.  If WJ discovers any conflict, WJ will confer with the District  

promptly about the circumstances and how the matter should be resolved consistent with the 

Colorado Rules of Professional Conduct. 

ATTORNEY-CLIENT RELATIONSHIP 

The attorney-client relationship is one of mutual trust, confidence, and respect.  In order 

to competently and diligently represent the District, WJ is dependent upon the District for factual 

mailto:jtanaka@wbapc.com


 

Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8  

January 13, 2021 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

and other information.  Therefore, the District agrees to be available at reasonable times to 

confer with WJ by telephone and/or email on necessary issues and to cooperate and participate in 

the foregoing matters as WJ may request.  The District agrees to advise WJ of any changes to the 

contact information listed on the first page of this Agreement.  

The District may terminate WJ’s representation at any time, although the District remains 

obligated to pay accrued fees and costs.  WJ may also terminate representation pursuant to the 

Rules of Professional Conduct, Rule 1.16 and any additional provisions that may apply to a 

particular situation.   

COSTS AND FEES/HOURLY RATES 

WJ charges fees on an hourly basis.  WJ also charges for costs advanced, such as filing 

fees, large photocopying jobs, computerized legal research and other similar disbursements.  

WJ’s current hourly rates are as follows: (1) $290 for David Taussig; (2) $280 for myself; (3) 

$230 for Ginny Sciabbarrasi and Heather Warren; (4) $150 for WJ’s paralegal Melanie Cabral; 

and (5) $120 for WJ’s legal administrative assistant Andrea Browne.   

MONTHLY BILLING STATEMENT 

WJ will email the District a monthly statement for all services performed during the 

previous month by email at ljohnson@sdmsi.com or to an updated email address or addresses 

provided by the District in writing to WJ.  In addition to fees, the statement may also include 

charges for costs advanced.  

 

Payment of the entire amount shown in the statement is required within 30 days of receipt 

of the statement.  Failure to timely pay will be grounds for WJ to terminate its representation, 

subject to applicable rules.  WJ reserves the right to charge interest on all past-due balances at 

one and one-half percent per month, or 18 percent annually.  

 

FILE RETENTION 

By signing below, the District agrees to, and acknowledges notice of, WJ’s file retention 

policy which was developed in accordance with the Colorado Rules of Professional Conduct.  

Absent a written agreement to the contrary, WJ will consider the District’s client matters to be 

closed sixty (60) days after all pending tasks have been completed, provided that WJ has no 

knowledge of pending or threatened litigation against the District relating to the Scope of Work.   

Once the District’s client matters are closed as discussed above, WJ will return to the 

District any original documents the District has provided to WJ, and may elect to deliver the 

documents developed during the course of our representation of the District, or retain those 

documents.   

Any documents not provided to the District will be retained for a period of five (5) years 

following closure of this matter, and will then be destroyed subject to court rule and any 

applicable statutory exceptions.  The District may request to reclaim any documents prior to their 

mailto:ljohnson@sdmsi.com


 

Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8  

January 13, 2021 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

destruction.  The District is responsible for notifying WJ of any change in address or contact 

information. 

ACCEPTANCE OF TERMS OF REPRESENTATION  

 If the scope and terms of engagement are acceptable to the District, please indicate this 

by countersigning below.  Please return a signed letter for our files and retain a copy for the 

District’s files.   

Thank you for the opportunity to represent Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan 

District Nos. 3-8. 

Sincerely, 

       

 

Alan E. Curtis  

 

cc via email: Jennifer Gruber Tanaka  

 

I, Lee Merritt, President of Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8, agree to 

engage White & Jankowski LLC for the scope of representation described in this letter under the 

terms set forth above.  

 

 

 

         Dated:      

Lee Merritt, President 

Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 

 

 



January 13, 2021 

Mayberry, Colorado Springs 
Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 

Prepared by: 
Carrie Bartow, CPA 
Carrie.Bartow@CLAconnect.com 
direct 719-635-0330 

CLAconnect.com 

WEALTH ADVISORY 

OUTSOURCING 

AUDIT, TAX, AND 
CONSULTING 



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
111 South Tejon Street, Suite 705 
Colorado Springs, CO 80903 
719-635-0330 | fax 719-473-3630
CLAconnect.com

January 13, 2021 

Board of Directors 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8

Dear Board: 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the terms and objectives of our engagement and the nature 
and limitations of the services CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) will provide for Mayberry, 
Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 (“you,” “your,” or “the districts”) for the year ending 2021. The 
terms of our engagement will apply to the initial and all subsequent periods, unless the agreement is changed 
in a communication that you and CLA both sign or terminated as permitted herein. 

Carrie Bartow is responsible for the performance of the compilation and preparation engagements and other 
services identified in this agreement. She may be assisted by one or more of our authorized signers in the 
performance of the engagement. 

Scope of professional services 
CLA will generally perform the following services for your districts: 

Ongoing normal accounting services: 
• Outsourced accounting functions

− For each fund of the districts, CLA will generally prepare and maintain the following accounting
records:

o Cash receipts journal

o Cash disbursements journal

o General ledger

o Accounts receivable journals and ledgers

o Deposits with banks and financial institutions

o Schedule of disbursements

o Bank account reconciliations

o Investment records

o Detailed development fee records

− Process accounts payable including the preparation and issuance of checks.

− Prepare billings, record billings, enter cash receipts, and track revenues.

− Reconcile certain accounts regularly and prepare journal entries.



January 13, 2021 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 
Page 2 

− Prepare depreciation schedules.

− As requested, we will either (1) prepare monthly/quarterly/as requested financial statements and
supplementary information and perform a compilation engagement with respect to those financial
statements, or (2) prepare monthly/quarterly/as requested financial statements and supplementary
information, but not perform a compilation with respect to those financial statements.

o We expect that you will request CLA to (1) perform a compilation of the districts’ quarterly
financial statements for filing with third parties on behalf of lenders as required by the
districts’ financing agreements, and/or (2) prepare financial statements, that will not be
subject to a compilation, for use by the districts’ board of directors.

o We expect that if the financial statements are intended for use by someone who is not
knowledgeable about the districts’ financial affairs, you will request that they be subject to a
compilation engagement.

o We will request the board of directors to document acceptance of the requested services
performed or not performed in the minutes or in an administrative resolution at least
annually.

o Additional information is provided below.

− Prepare a schedule of cash position to manage the districts’ cash deposits, funding for
disbursements, and investment programs in accordance with policies established by the districts’
board of directors.

− Prepare the annual budget, perform a compilation engagement with respect to the annual budget,
and assist with the filing of the annual budget – additional information is provided below.

− Assist the districts’ board of directors in monitoring actual expenditures against
appropriation/budget.

− If an audit is required, prepare the year-end financial statements (additional information is provided
below) and related audit schedules for use by the districts’ auditors.

− If an audit is not required, prepare the Application for Exemption from Audit, perform a compilation
engagement with respect to the Application for Exemption from Audit, and assist with the filing of
the Application for Exemption from Audit – additional information is provided below.

− Monitor compliance with bond indentures and trust agreements, including preparation of
continuing disclosure reports to the secondary market as required.

− Review claims for reimbursement from related parties prior to the board of directors’ review and
approval.



January 13, 2021 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 
Page 3 

− Read supporting documentation related to the districts’ acquisition of infrastructure or other capital
assets completed by related parties for overall reasonableness and completeness. Procedures in
excess of providing overall reasonableness and completeness will be subject to a separate
engagement letter. These procedures may not satisfy District policies, procedures, and Agreement
requirements. Note: our procedures should not be relied upon as the final authorization for this
transaction.

− Attend board meetings as requested.

− Be available during the year to consult with you on any accounting matters related to the districts.

− Review and approve monthly reconciliations and journal entries prepared by staff.

− Reconcile complex accounts monthly and prepare journal entries.

− Analyze financial statements and present to management and the board of directors.

− Develop and track key business metrics as requested and review periodically with the board of
directors.

− Document accounting processes and procedures.

− Continue process and procedure improvement implementation.

− Report and manage cash flows.

− Assist with bank communications.

− Perform other nonattest services.

• Cash access services

− Prepare checks and wire transfers to be drawn upon your bank account(s).

− Obtain administrator access to your bank accounts for purposes of performing the duties
documented in our engagement letter.

− Take deposits to the bank, which may include cash.



January 13, 2021 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 
Page 4 

Compilation services 
As requested, we will prepare the monthly/quarterly/as requested financial statements of the Districts, which 
comprise the balance sheet – governmental funds and the related statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balance – general fund, and perform a compilation engagement with respect to those financial 
statements. The financial statements will not include the related notes to the financial statements; the 
government-wide financial statements; the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 
– governmental funds; and required supplementary information.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) provides for certain required supplementary information 
(RSI) to accompany the districts’ basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the GASB who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting and 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. The 
supplementary information other than RSI accompanying the compiled financial statements is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Supplementary 
information other than RSI will be subject to the compilation engagement. Other information will not be subject 
to the compilation engagement. Management has requested that the required supplementary information not 
be presented. 

We will prepare the annual budget (for the subsequent year) of revenues, expenditures, and fund balances, 
including the estimate of comparative information (for the current year) and the actual comparative information 
(for the prior year), in the format prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105, and perform a 
compilation engagement with respect to the annual budget. 

References to financial statements in the remainder of this engagement letter are taken as a reference to also 
include the budget/prospective financial information where available. 

The budget presents, to the best of the Board of Directors knowledge and belief, the Districts’ expected financial 
position and results of operations for the budget period. It is based upon the Board of Directors assumptions 
reflecting conditions it expects to exist and courses of actions it expects to take during the budget period. 

If an audit is not required, we will prepare the Application for Exemption from Audit in the form prescribed by 
the Colorado Office of the State Auditor, and perform a compilation engagement with respect to the Application 
for Exemption from Audit. 

Preparation services – monthly/quarterly 
As requested, we will prepare the monthly/quarterly financial statements of the Districts, which comprise the 
balance sheet – governmental funds and the related statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balance – general fund. The financial statements will not include the related notes to the financial statements; 
the government-wide financial statements; the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances – governmental funds; and required supplementary information.  



January 13, 2021
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 
Page 5 

Preparation services - annual 
If an audit is required, we will prepare the year-end financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information if applicable, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of 
the Districts, and the related notes to the financial statements. The year-end financial statements, including the 
related notes to the financial statements, will be prepared for use by the districts’ auditors. 

Engagement objectives and our responsibilities 
The objectives of our engagement are to: 

a. Prepare monthly/quarterly financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP), except for the departures from U.S. GAAP
identified above, based on information provided by you and information generated through our
outsourced accounting services.

b. As requested, apply accounting and financial reporting expertise to assist you in the presentation of
monthly/quarterly financial statements without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance that
there are no material modifications that should be made to the financial statements in order for them
to be in accordance with U.S. GAAP, except for the departures from U.S. GAAP identified above.

c. Prepare the annual budget in accordance with the requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised
Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105 based on information provided by you.

d. Apply accounting and financial reporting expertise to assist you in the presentation of the annual
budget without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance that there are no material
modifications that should be made to the annual budget in order for the annual budget to be in
accordance with the requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105.

e. If an audit is not required, prepare the Application for Exemption from Audit in accordance with the
requirements prescribed by Colorado Office of the State Auditor based on information provided by you.

f. Apply accounting and financial reporting expertise to assist you in the presentation of the Application
for Exemption from Audit without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance that there are no
material modifications that should be made to the Application for Exemption from Audit in order for
the Application for Exemption from Audit to be in accordance with the requirements of the Colorado
Office of the State Auditor.

g. If an audit is required, prepare the year-end financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) based on information
provided by you.

We will conduct our compilation and preparation engagements in accordance with Statements on Standards for 
Accounting and Review Services (SSARSs) promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and comply with the AICPA's Code of Professional 
Conduct, including the ethical principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence, and due care. 



January 13, 2021
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8
Page 6 

Engagement procedures and limitations 
We are not required to, and will not, verify the accuracy or completeness of the information provided to us for 
the engagement or otherwise gather evidence for the purpose of expressing an opinion or a conclusion. 
Accordingly, we will not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any assurance on the financial statements, 
the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit (if an audit is not required), the year-end financial 
statements (if an audit is required), and the supplementary information. 

Our engagement cannot be relied upon to identify or disclose any misstatements in the monthly/quarterly 
financial statements, the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit, and the year-end financial 
statements, including misstatements caused by fraud or error, or to identify or disclose any wrongdoing within 
the districts or noncompliance with laws and regulations. We have no responsibility to identify and 
communicate deficiencies in internal control as part of this engagement. You agree that we shall not be 
responsible for any misstatements in the districts’ financial statements, the annual budget, the Application for 
Exemption from Audit, and the year-end financial statements that we may not identify as a result of 
misrepresentations made to us. 

Our report 
As part of our monthly/quarterly compilation engagements, we will issue a compilation report that will state 
that we did not audit or review the financial statements and that, accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a 
conclusion, nor provide any assurance on them. We will disclose that we are not independent in our report. 

The compilation report on the monthly/quarterly financial statements will indicate that management has 
elected to omit substantially all the disclosures; the government-wide financial statements required by U.S. 
GAAP; and the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances – governmental funds; and 
that if the omitted disclosures, the government-wide financial statements, and the statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances – governmental funds were included in the financial statements, 
they might influence the user’s conclusions about the districts’ financial position, changes in financial position, 
and that the financial statements are not designed for those who are not informed about such matters. 

The compilation report on the monthly/quarterly financial statements will indicate that management has 
omitted the required supplementary information and that such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the GASB, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 

The compilation report on the monthly/quarterly financial statements will state that the accompanying annual 
budget information presented in comparison with the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balance (general service fund and debt service fund) has not been compiled or examined by us, and accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on it.  

The compilation report on the monthly/quarterly financial statements will also state that the accompanying 
historical supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part 
of the basic financial statements; the information is the responsibility of management; the historical 
supplementary information was subject to our compilation engagement; we have not audited or reviewed the 
historical supplementary information and do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of 
assurance on the historical supplementary information. 



January 13, 2021
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8
Page 7 

The compilation report on the year-end financial statements will also state that the supplementary budget 
information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements; the information is the responsibility of management; the supplementary budget information was 
subject to our compilation engagement; we have not audited or reviewed the supplementary budget 
information and do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on the 
supplementary budget information. 

The compilation report on the annual budget will state that management is responsible for the accompanying 
budget (for the subsequent year) of revenues, expenditures, and fund balances, including the estimate of 
comparative information (for the current year) and the actual comparative information (for the prior year) in the 
format prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105, that we performed a compilation of the annual 
budget, that we did not audit or review the annual budget, and that, accordingly, we do not express an opinion, 
a conclusion, not provide any form of assurance on it. The report will also state that the budget is presented in 
accordance with the requirements of Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105, and is not intended to be a 
presentation in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Additionally, our report will disclose that budgeted results may not be achieved as there will usually be 
differences between the budgeted and actual results, because events and circumstances frequently do not 
occur as expected and these differences may be material. We assume no responsibility to update our report for 
events and circumstances occurring after the date of our report. 

The compilation report on the Application for Exemption from Audit will state that management is responsible 
for the accompanying application included in the prescribed form, that we performed a compilation of the 
application, that we did not audit or review the application, and that, accordingly, we do not express an opinion, 
a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on it. The report will also state that the Application for 
Exemption from Audit is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Colorado Office of the State 
Auditor, and is not intended to be a presentation in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. The report will include a statement that the report is intended solely for the 
information and use of the Colorado Office of the State Auditor and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than this specified party. 

There may be circumstances in which the report may differ from its expected form and content. If, for any 
reason, we are unable to complete the compilations of your financial statements, the annual budget, the 
Application for Exemption from Audit (if an audit is not required), or the year-end financial statements (if an 
audit is required), we will not issue reports on such statements, the annual budget, the Application for 
Exemption from Audit (if an audit is not required), or the year-end financial statements (if an audit is required), 
as a result of this engagement. 

No assurance statement 
The monthly/quarterly financial statements prepared for the districts that are not subject to a compilation 
engagement will not be accompanied by a report. However, management agrees that each page of the financial 
statements will include a statement clearly indicating that no assurance is provided on them. 



January 13, 2021
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8
Page 8 

As part of our preparation of financial statements that are not subject to a compilation engagement, each page 
of the financial statements and supplementary information will include the following statement: “No assurance 
is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial 
statements, and the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds 
have been omitted”. 

If an audit is required, the year-end financial statements prepared for use by the districts’ auditors will not be 
accompanied by a report. However, management agrees that each page of the year-end financial statements 
will include a statement clearly indicating that no assurance is provided on them. 

Management responsibilities 
The financial statement engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that management 
acknowledges and understands that our role is to prepare financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP 
and assist management in the presentation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, except for 
the departures from U.S. GAAP identified above.  

The annual budget engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that management acknowledges and 
understands that our role is to prepare the annual budget in accordance with the requirements prescribed by 
Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105 and assist management in the presentation of the annual budget in 
accordance with the requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105. 

The Application for Exemption from Audit engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that 
management acknowledges and understands that our role is to prepare the Application for Exemption from 
Audit in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the Colorado Office of the State Auditor and assist 
management in the presentation of the Application for Exemption from Audit in accordance with the 
requirements prescribed by Colorado Office of the State Auditor. 

We are required by professional standards to identify management’s responsibilities in this agreement. 
Professional standards define management as the persons with executive responsibility for the conduct of the 
districts’ operations, and may include some or all of those charged with governance. Those standards require 
that you acknowledge and understand that management has the following overall responsibilities that are 
fundamental to our undertaking the engagement in accordance with SSARSs: 

a. The selection of the financial reporting framework to be applied in the preparation of the financial
statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit.

b. The preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, except
as identified above, the preparation and fair presentation of the annual budget in accordance with the
requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105, and the preparation and fair
presentation of the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) in accordance with the
requirements prescribed by the Colorado Office of the State Auditor.

c. The presentation of the supplementary information.

d. The presentation of the required supplementary information.



January 13, 2021
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 
Page 9 

e. The design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit
(if applicable) that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

f. The prevention and detection of fraud.

g. To ensure that the districts comply with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities.

h. The accuracy and completeness of the records, documents, explanations, and other information,
including significant judgments, you provide to us for the engagement.

i. To provide us with the following:

i. Access to all information relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) such as
records, documentation, and other matters.

ii. Additional information that may be requested for the purpose of the engagement.

iii. Unrestricted access to persons within the districts with whom we determine it necessary to
communicate.

We understand that you are engaging us to make recommendations and perform services to help you meet your 
responsibilities relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, the annual budget, 
and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable). 

For all accounting services we may provide to you, including the preparation of your financial statements, the 
annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) management agrees to assume all 
management responsibilities; oversee the services; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services; and 
accept responsibility for the results of the services. 

Management responsibilities relevant to CLA’s access to your cash 
Someone with management authority is responsible for the processes below. All approvals must be documented 
in writing, either electronically or manually, or formally approved and documented in the minutes of the 
districts board meeting: 

• Approve all invoices and check payments.

• Approve all new vendors and customers added to the accounting system.

• Approve all wire transfers to external parties.

• Approve all new employees and all employee status changes prior to those employees or changes being
added to the payroll system.



January 13, 2021
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 
Page 10 

• Approve all credit card statements prior to those expenses being processed in the accounting system
and subsequently paid.

• Approve (or delegate to the CLA controller if applicable) all customer and vendor credit memos and
accounts receivable amounts written off.

• Review and approve (or delegate to the CLA controller if applicable) all bank statements and affiliated
monthly reconciliations.

Fees, time estimates, and terms 
Our fees for these services will be based on the time involved and the degree of responsibility and skills 
required, plus expenses including internal and administrative charges. Our invoices for these fees will be 
rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, 
work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and will not be resumed until your 
account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to 
have been completed even if we have not issued our report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time 
expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date of termination. 

The hour rates currently in effect for our services are as follows: 

Principal $275 - $400 
Chief Financial Officer $185 - $275 
Controller $150 - $185 
Senior $135 - $155 
Staff $95 - $135 
Administrative Support $75 - $  95 

As our rates change over time, we will provide an updated rate schedule. 

A 5% technology fee is added to all invoices for services. 

Out-of-pocket expenses such as out-of-town travel, meals, and lodging will be billed at cost and are not included 
in the fees quoted above. The fee estimate is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and other 
consultants, and their assistance with preparing requested schedules. If the requested items are not available on 
the dates required or are not accurate, the estimated fee for services will likely be higher. If unexpected 
circumstances require significant additional time, we will advise you before undertaking work that would require 
a substantial increase in the fee estimate. 

Other fees 
You also agree to compensate us for any time and expenses, including time and expenses of legal counsel, we 
may incur in responding to discovery requests or participating as a witness or otherwise in any legal, regulatory, 
or other proceedings that we are asked to respond to on your behalf. 



January 13, 2021
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8
Page 11 

Finance charges and collection expenses 
You agree that if any statement is not paid within 30 days from its billing date, the unpaid balance shall accrue 
interest at the monthly rate of one and one-quarter percent (1.25%), which is an annual percentage rate of 15%. 
In the event that any collection action is required to collect unpaid balances due us, reasonable attorney fees 
and expenses shall be recoverable. 

Use of financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit 
The financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) and 
our compilation reports thereon are for management’s use. If you intend to reproduce and publish the financial 
statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) and our reports 
thereon, they must be reproduced in their entirety. Inclusion of the financial statements, the annual budget, or 
the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) in a document, such as an annual report or an offering 
document, should be done only with our prior approval of the document. You are responsible to provide us the 
opportunity to review such documents before issuance. 

With regard to the electronic dissemination of financial statements, the annual budgets, and the Application for 
Exemption from Audit (if applicable) that have been subjected to a compilation engagement, including financial 
statements, the annual budgets, and Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) published 
electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute information and, 
therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in those sites or to consider the consistency of 
other information in the electronic site with the original document. 

We may issue preliminary drafts to you for your review. Any preliminary drafts should not be relied on or 
distributed. 

Municipal advisors 
For the avoidance of doubt, the districts are not engaging CLA as a municipal advisor, and CLA is not a municipal 
advisor as defined in Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act or under 
Section 158 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Act”). CLA is not recommending an action to you, is not 
acting as an advisor to you, and does not owe a fiduciary duty pursuant to Section 15B of the Act to you with 
respect to the information and material contained in the deliverables issued under this engagement. You should 
discuss any information and material contained in the deliverables with any and all internal and external 
advisors that you deem appropriate before acting on this information or material. 

Limitation of remedies 
Our role is strictly limited to the engagement described in this letter, and we offer no assurance as to the results 
or ultimate outcomes of this engagement or of any decisions that you may make based on our communications 
with you or our reports. You agree that it is appropriate to limit the liability of CLA, its partners, principals, 
directors, officers, employees, and agents (each a “CLA party”) and that this limitation of remedies provision is 
governed by the laws of the state of Colorado, without giving effect to choice of law principles. 



January 13, 2021
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 
Page 12 

You further agree that you will not hold CLA or any other CLA party liable for any claim, cost, or damage, 
whether based on warranty, tort, contract, or other law, arising from or related to this agreement, the services 
provided under this agreement, the work product, or for any plans, actions, or results of this engagement, 
except to the extent authorized by this agreement. In no event shall any CLA party be liable to you for any 
indirect, special, incidental, consequential, punitive, or exemplary damages, or for loss of profits or loss of 
goodwill, costs, or attorney fees. 

The exclusive remedy available to you shall be the right to pursue claims for actual damages that are directly 
caused by acts or omissions that are breaches by a CLA party of our duties owed under this agreement, but any 
recovery on any such claims shall not exceed the fees actually paid under this agreement by you to CLA. 

Time limitation 
The nature of our services makes it difficult, with the passage of time, to gather and present evidence that fully 
and fairly establishes the facts underlying any dispute that may arise between you and any CLA party. The 
parties (you and CLA) agree that, notwithstanding any statute or law of limitations that might otherwise apply to 
a dispute, including one arising out of this agreement or the services performed under this agreement, for 
breach of contract or fiduciary duty, tort, fraud, misrepresentation or any other cause of action or remedy, any 
action or legal proceeding by you against any CLA party must be commenced as provided herein or you shall be 
forever barred from commencing a lawsuit or obtaining any legal or equitable relief or recovery. An action to 
recover on a dispute shall be commenced within the statute of limitations under Colorado state statutes. 

Service satisfaction 
If you are not completely satisfied with the services performed by CLA, we will take reasonable corrective action 
to satisfy you, and then if you are not completely satisfied, we will accept a portion of the fees that reflects your 
level of satisfaction. Upon full payment of our invoice, we will assume you are satisfied with our work and our 
service commitment will have been fulfilled. 

To ensure that our services remain responsive to your needs, as well as fair to both parties, we will meet with 
you throughout the term of the agreement and, if necessary, revise or adjust the scope of the services to be 
provided and the fees to be charged. 

Furthermore, it is understood that either party may terminate this agreement at any time, for any reason, by 
giving 30 days written notice to the other party. In that event, the provisions of this agreement shall continue to 
apply to all services rendered prior to termination. It is understood that any unpaid fees that are owed or 
invoices that are outstanding at the date of termination are to be paid in accordance with the terms of this 
agreement. 

Other provisions 
Except as permitted by the “Consent” section of this agreement, CLA will not disclose any confidential, 
proprietary, or privileged information of the districts to any persons without the authorization of districts 
management or unless required by law. This confidentiality provision does not prohibit us from disclosing your 
information to one or more of our affiliated companies in order to provide services that you have requested 
from us or from any such affiliated company. Any such affiliated company shall be subject to the same 
restrictions on the use and disclosure of your information as apply to us. 



January 13, 2021
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8
Page 13 

Pursuant to authority given by law or regulation, we may be requested to make certain workpapers available to 
a regulator for their regulatory oversight purposes. We will notify you of any such request. Access to the 
requested workpapers will be provided to the regulators under the supervision of CLA personnel and at a 
location designated by our firm. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected workpapers to 
such regulators. The regulators may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein 
to others, including other governmental agencies. 

We will be responsible for our own property and casualty, general liability, and workers compensation 
insurance, taxes, professional training, and other personnel costs related to the operation of our business. 

When performing the services above, we will utilize the resources available at your districts to the extent 
practical to continue development of your personnel. During a portion of our work, we may require the use of 
your computers. We will try to give you advance notice and coordinate our use so it does not interfere with your 
employees. 

The relationship of CLA with the districts shall be solely that of an independent contractor and nothing in this 
agreement shall be construed to create or imply any relationship of employment, agency, partnership, or any 
relationship other than an independent contractor. 

Accounting standards and procedures will be suggested and applied that are consistent with those normally 
utilized in districts of your size and nature. Internal controls may be recommended relating to the safeguarding 
of the districts’ assets. If fraud is initiated by your employees or other service providers, your insurance is 
responsible for covering any losses. 

We are available to perform additional procedures with regard to fraud detection and prevention, at your 
request, as a separate engagement, subject to completion of our normal engagement acceptance procedures. 
The terms and fees of such an engagement would be documented in a separate engagement letter. 

The districts agree that CLA will not be assuming any fiduciary responsibility on your behalf during the course of 
this engagement. 

Additional provisions required by CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(a)(I) and (II) 
Unlawful employees, contractors, and subcontractors 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (Contractor) shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work 
under this contract. Contractor shall not knowingly contract with a subcontractor that (a) knowingly employs or 
contracts with an illegal alien to perform work under this contract or (b) fails to certify to the Contractor that the 
subcontractor will not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under this contract. 
[CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(a)(I) and (II)] 

Verification regarding illegal aliens 
Contractor has verified or attempted to verify through participation in the E-Verify Program or the Department 
Program [as defined in CRS 8-17.5-101(3.3) and (3.7)] of the state of Colorado that Contractor does not employ 
any illegal aliens.  



January 13, 2021 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8
Page 14 

Limitation regarding E-Verify Program and the Department Program 
Contractor shall not use the E-Verify Program or the Department Program procedures to undertake pre-
employment screening of job applicants while performing this contract. [CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(b)(II)] 

Duty to terminate a subcontractor and exceptions 
If Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under this contract knowingly 
employs or contracts with an illegal alien, the Contractor shall, unless the subcontractor provides information to 
establish that the subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal alien: 

(1) Notify the subcontractor and the districts within three days that the Contractor has actual knowledge
that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien; and

(2) Terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if, within three days of receiving notice that the
Contractor has actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien,
the subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien. [CRS 8-17.5-
102(2)(b)(III)(A) and (B)]

Duty to comply with state investigation 
Contractor shall comply with any reasonable request of the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment 
made in the course of an investigation pursuant to CRS 8-17.5-102(5). [CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(b)(IV)] 

Employment provision 
In the event that a CLA employee is solicited to work in a position as an employee of your districts, and in the 
event that the CLA employee accepts the position of employment with your districts, the following conditions 
will apply: 

1. CLA will require a four-week notice period subsequent to the employee’s written notice to CLA, and

2. The districts will be required to pay an employment fee of $60,000 for Chief Financial Officer and
Controller and $25,000 for Senior and Staff to CLA immediately upon receipt of this notice.

If any former CLA employee shall be hired as an employee within 60 days of leaving CLA, there shall be a 
refutable presumption that the CLA employee was solicited to work as an employee of your districts and the 
above fee shall be payable to CLA. 

Consent 
Consent to use financial information 
Annually, we assemble a variety of benchmarking analyses using data obtained through our client engagements. 
Some of this benchmarking information is published and released publicly. However, the information that we 
obtain is confidential, as required by the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct. Your acceptance of this 
engagement letter will serve as your consent to use of the districts’ information in these cost comparison, 
performance indicator, and/or benchmarking reports. 



January 13, 2021 
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 
Page 15 

Subcontractors 
CLA may, at times, use subcontractors to perform services under this agreement, and they may have access to 
your information and records. Any such subcontractors will be subject to the same restrictions on the use of 
such information and records as apply to CLA under this agreement. 

Technology 
CLA may, at times, use third-party software applications to perform services under this agreement. You 
authorize CLA to sign on your behalf any vendor agreements applicable to such software applications. CLA can 
provide a copy of the application agreement at your request. You acknowledge the software vendor may have 
access to your data. 

Agreement 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe this letter accurately summarizes the 
significant terms of our engagement. This letter constitutes the entire agreement regarding these services and 
supersedes all prior agreements (whether oral or written), understandings, negotiations, and discussions 
between you and CLA. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our 
engagement as described in this letter, please sign, date, and return the signed copy to us to indicate your 
acknowledgment and understanding of, and agreement with, the arrangements for our engagement to prepare 
your monthly/quarterly financial statements and perform a compilation engagement with respect to those same 
financial statements, to prepare your monthly/quarterly financial statements that are not subject to a 
compilation engagement and include a no assurance statement on those same financial statements, to prepare 
your annual budget and perform a compilation engagement with respect to the same annual budget, to prepare 
the Application for Exemption from Audit and perform a compilation engagement with respect to the same 
Application for Exemption from Audit, and to prepare the year-end financial statements for use by the districts’ 
auditors, and the parties’ respective responsibilities. 

Sincerely, 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Carrie Bartow, CPA 
Principal 
719-635-0330
Carrie.Bartow@CLAconnect.com

Enclosures 



January 13, 2021
Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 
Page 16 

Response: 
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District Nos. 3-8 

Authorized signature: 

Title:   

Date:  



0895.0015:1099689 1 

Resolution No. 2021-01-09 
 

RESOLUTION 
ADOPTING BUDGET, IMPOSING MILL LEVY AND APPROPRIATING FUNDS 

 
(2021) 

       
 
 

The Board of Directors of Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 3 (the 

“Board”), County of El Paso, Colorado (the “District”) held a special meeting held via 

teleconference on January 20, 2021, at the hour of 1:00 P.M. 

 

Prior to the meeting, each of the directors was notified of the date, time and place of the 

budget meeting and the purpose for which it was called and a notice of the meeting was posted or 

published in accordance with § 29-1-106, C.R.S. 

 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank.] 

 



0895.0015:1099689 2 

NOTICE AS TO PROPOSED 2021 BUDGET 
 



0895.0015:1099689 3 

A RESOLUTION SUMMARIZING EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES FOR EACH FUND 
AND ADOPTING A BUDGET AND APPROPRIATING SUMS OF MONEY TO EACH FUND 
IN THE AMOUNTS AND FOR THE PURPOSES SET FORTH HEREIN FOR THE DISTRICT 
FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING ON THE FIRST DAY OF JANUARY 2021 AND 
ENDING ON THE LAST DAY OF DECEMBER 2021. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board has authorized its accountant to prepare and submit a proposed 

budget to the Board in accordance with Colorado law; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed budget has been submitted to the Board for its review and 
consideration; and 
 

 WHEREAS, upon due and proper notice, provided in accordance with Colorado law, said 

proposed budget was open for inspection by the public at a designated place, a public hearing was 

held on January 20, 2021, interested electors were given the opportunity to file or present any 

objections to said proposed budget at any time prior to final adoption of the budget by the Board. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1. Adoption of Budget.  The budget attached hereto and incorporated herein is 

approved and adopted as the budget of the District for fiscal year 2021.  In the event of 

recertification of values by the County Assessor’s Office after the date of adoption hereof, staff is 

hereby directed to modify and/or adjust the budget and certification to reflect the recertification 

without the need for additional Board authorization.  Any such modification to the budget or 

certification as contemplated by this Section 1 shall be deemed ratified by the Board. 

 

Section 2. Levy for General Operating Expenses.  For the purpose of meeting all 

general operating expenses of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax 

of 0.000 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within 

the District. 

 

Section 3. Levy for Debt Service Obligations.  For the purposes of meeting all debt 

service obligations of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 0.000 



0895.0015:1082978 4 

mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the 

District. 

 

Section 4. Levy for Contractual Obligation Expenses.  For the purposes of meeting all 

contractual obligations of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 

0.000 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the 

District. 

 

Section 5. Levy for Capital Project Expenses.  For the purposes of meeting all capital 

project obligations of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 0.000 

mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the 

District. 

 

 Section 6. Certification to County Commissioners.  The Board directs its legal counsel, 

manager, accountant or other designee to certify to the Board of County Commissioners of El Paso 

County, Colorado the mill levies for the District as set forth herein.  Such certification shall be in 

compliance with the requirements of Colorado law.   

 

Section 7. Appropriations.  The amounts set forth as expenditures in the budget 

attached hereto are hereby appropriated. 

 

 Section 8. Filing of Budget and Budget Message.  The Board hereby directs its legal 

counsel, manager or other designee to file a certified copy of the adopted budget resolution, the 

budget and budget message with the Division of Local Government by January 30 of the ensuing 

year. 

 

Section 9. Budget Certification.  The budget shall be certified by a member of the 

District, or a person appointed by the District, and made a part of the public records of the District. 

 

 [Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 



0895.0015: 1099689 5 

ADOPTED THIS 20TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2021 

 
MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT NO. 3 

 
 
 
              
 Officer of the District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
    
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
       
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 
       
       
General Counsel to the District 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO 
COUNTY OF EL PASO 
MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3 
 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution constitutes a true and correct copy of the 
record of proceedings of the Board adopted by a majority of the Board at a District meeting held 
on January 20, 2021, via teleconference  as recorded in the official record of the proceedings of 
the District. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name this 20th day of January, 
2021. 
 
       
 
       
              



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

BUDGET DOCUMENT 
 

BUDGET MESSAGE 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3 
 

ANNUAL BUDGET 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2021  



1/8/21

ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 
2019 2020 2021

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES -$                   -$                   -$                   

REVENUES

Total revenues -                     -                     -                     

Total funds available -                     -                     -                     

EXPENDITURES
Total expenditures -                     -                     -                     

Total expenditures and transfers out 
requiring appropriation -                     -                     -                     

ENDING FUND BALANCES -$                   -$                   -$                   

EMERGENCY RESERVE -$                   -$                   -$                   
AVAILABLE FOR OPERATIONS -                     -                     -                     
TOTAL RESERVE -$                   -$                   -$                   

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METRO DISTRICT NO. 3
GENERAL FUND 

2021 BUDGET
 WITH 2019 ACTUAL AND 2020 ESTIMATED

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
1



1/8/21

ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 
2019 2020 2021

ASSESSED VALUATION
Residential -$               -$               -$               
Commercial -$               -$               -$               

Certified Assessed Value -$               -$               -$               

MILL LEVY
General 0.000 0.000 0.000
Debt Service 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total mill levy 0.000 0.000 0.000

PROPERTY TAXES
General -$               -$               -$               
Debt Service -                 -                 -                 

Levied property taxes -                 -                 -                 

Budgeted property taxes -$               -$               -$               

BUDGETED PROPERTY TAXES
General -$               -$               -$               
Debt Service -                 -                 -                 

-$               -$               -$               

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METRO DISTRICT NO. 3
PROPERTY TAX SUMMARY INFORMATION

2021 BUDGET
 WITH 2019 ACTUAL AND 2020 ESTIMATED

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
2



MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3 
2021 BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

Service Provided 

The District, a quasi-municipal corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, 
was organized by order and decree of the District Court for the City of Colorado Springs in 2021 
and is governed pursuant to provisions of the Colorado Special District Act (Title 32, Article 1, 
Colorado Revised Statutes).  

The District was established to provide financing for the design, acquisition, installation, 
construction and completion of public improvements and services, including water, sanitation, 
street, safety protection, park and recreation, transportation, television relay and translation and 
mosquito control improvements and services.  

The District has no employees and all administrative functions are contracted. 

The District prepares its budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance 
with the requirements of Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105 using its best estimates 
as of the date of the budget hearing. These estimates are based on expected conditions 
and its expected course of actions. The assumptions disclosed herein are those that the District 
believes are significant to the budget. There will usually be differences between the budget 
and actual results, because events and circumstances frequently do not occur as 
expected, and those differences may be material. 

Revenues 

The District has budgeted no revenues for 2021. 

Expenditures 

The District has budgeted no expenditures. All administrative expenditures of the District will be 
paid by District No. 1. 

Debt and Leases 

The District has no debt, nor any operating or capital leases. 

Reserves 

Emergency Reserve 

TABOR requires local governments to establish Emergency Reserves. These reserves must be 
at least 3% of fiscal year spending. Since the District anticipates no revenues, an Emergency 
Reserve is not required and therefore not reflected in the District's Budget. 

This information is an integral part of the accompanying forecasted budget. 

3



0895.0015:1099691 1 

Resolution No. 2021-01-10 
 

RESOLUTION 
ADOPTING BUDGET, IMPOSING MILL LEVY AND APPROPRIATING FUNDS 

 
(2021) 

       
 
 

The Board of Directors of Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 4 (the 

“Board”), County of El Paso, Colorado (the “District”) held a special meeting held via 

teleconference on January 20, 2021, at the hour of 1:00 P.M. 

 

Prior to the meeting, each of the directors was notified of the date, time and place of the 

budget meeting and the purpose for which it was called and a notice of the meeting was posted or 

published in accordance with § 29-1-106, C.R.S. 

 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank.] 

 



0895.0015:1099691 2 

NOTICE AS TO PROPOSED 2021 BUDGET 
 



0895.0015:1099691 3 

A RESOLUTION SUMMARIZING EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES FOR EACH FUND 
AND ADOPTING A BUDGET AND APPROPRIATING SUMS OF MONEY TO EACH FUND 
IN THE AMOUNTS AND FOR THE PURPOSES SET FORTH HEREIN FOR THE DISTRICT 
FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING ON THE FIRST DAY OF JANUARY 2021 AND 
ENDING ON THE LAST DAY OF DECEMBER 2021. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board has authorized its accountant to prepare and submit a proposed 

budget to the Board in accordance with Colorado law; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed budget has been submitted to the Board for its review and 
consideration; and 
 

 WHEREAS, upon due and proper notice, provided in accordance with Colorado law, said 

proposed budget was open for inspection by the public at a designated place, a public hearing was 

held on January 20, 2021, interested electors were given the opportunity to file or present any 

objections to said proposed budget at any time prior to final adoption of the budget by the Board. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1. Adoption of Budget.  The budget attached hereto and incorporated herein is 

approved and adopted as the budget of the District for fiscal year 2021.  In the event of 

recertification of values by the County Assessor’s Office after the date of adoption hereof, staff is 

hereby directed to modify and/or adjust the budget and certification to reflect the recertification 

without the need for additional Board authorization.  Any such modification to the budget or 

certification as contemplated by this Section 1 shall be deemed ratified by the Board. 

 

Section 2. Levy for General Operating Expenses.  For the purpose of meeting all 

general operating expenses of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax 

of 0.000 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within 

the District. 

 

Section 3. Levy for Debt Service Obligations.  For the purposes of meeting all debt 

service obligations of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 0.000 



0895.0015:1099691 4 

mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the 

District. 

 

Section 4. Levy for Contractual Obligation Expenses.  For the purposes of meeting all 

contractual obligations of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 

0.000 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the 

District. 

 

Section 5. Levy for Capital Project Expenses.  For the purposes of meeting all capital 

project obligations of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 0.000 

mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the 

District. 

 

 Section 6. Certification to County Commissioners.  The Board directs its legal counsel, 

manager, accountant or other designee to certify to the Board of County Commissioners of El Paso 

County, Colorado the mill levies for the District as set forth herein.  Such certification shall be in 

compliance with the requirements of Colorado law.   

 

Section 7. Appropriations.  The amounts set forth as expenditures in the budget 

attached hereto are hereby appropriated. 

 

 Section 8. Filing of Budget and Budget Message.  The Board hereby directs its legal 

counsel, manager or other designee to file a certified copy of the adopted budget resolution, the 

budget and budget message with the Division of Local Government by January 30 of the ensuing 

year. 

 

Section 9. Budget Certification.  The budget shall be certified by a member of the 

District, or a person appointed by the District, and made a part of the public records of the District. 

 

 [Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 



0895.0015: 1099691 5 

ADOPTED THIS 20TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2021 

 
MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT NO. 4 

 
 
 
              
 Officer of the District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
    
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
       
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 
       
       
General Counsel to the District 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO 
COUNTY OF EL PASO 
MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 4 
 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution constitutes a true and correct copy of the 
record of proceedings of the Board adopted by a majority of the Board at a District meeting held 
on January 20, 2021, via teleconference  as recorded in the official record of the proceedings of 
the District. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name this 20th day of January, 
2021. 
 
       
 
       
              



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

BUDGET DOCUMENT 
 

BUDGET MESSAGE 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 4 
 

ANNUAL BUDGET 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2021  



1/8/21

ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 
2019 2020 2021

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES -$                   -$                   -$                   

REVENUES

Total revenues -                     -                     -                     

Total funds available -                     -                     -                     

EXPENDITURES
Total expenditures -                     -                     -                     

Total expenditures and transfers out 
requiring appropriation -                     -                     -                     

ENDING FUND BALANCES -$                   -$                   -$                   

EMERGENCY RESERVE -$                   -$                   -$                   
AVAILABLE FOR OPERATIONS -                     -                     -                     
TOTAL RESERVE -$                   -$                   -$                   

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METRO DISTRICT NO. 4
GENERAL FUND 

2021 BUDGET
 WITH 2019 ACTUAL AND 2020 ESTIMATED

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
1



1/8/21

ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 
2019 2020 2021

ASSESSED VALUATION
Residential -$               -$               -$               
Commercial -$               -$               -$               

Certified Assessed Value -$               -$               -$               

MILL LEVY
General 0.000 0.000 0.000
Debt Service 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total mill levy 0.000 0.000 0.000

PROPERTY TAXES
General -$               -$               -$               
Debt Service -                 -                 -                 

Levied property taxes -                 -                 -                 

Budgeted property taxes -$               -$               -$               

BUDGETED PROPERTY TAXES
General -$               -$               -$               
Debt Service -                 -                 -                 

-$               -$               -$               

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METRO DISTRICT NO. 4
PROPERTY TAX SUMMARY INFORMATION

2021 BUDGET
 WITH 2019 ACTUAL AND 2020 ESTIMATED

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
2



MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 4 
2021 BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

Service Provided 

The District, a quasi-municipal corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, 
was organized by order and decree of the District Court for the City of Colorado Springs in 2021 
and is governed pursuant to provisions of the Colorado Special District Act (Title 32, Article 1, 
Colorado Revised Statutes).  

The District was established to provide financing for the design, acquisition, installation, 
construction and completion of public improvements and services, including water, sanitation, 
street, safety protection, park and recreation, transportation, television relay and translation and 
mosquito control improvements and services.  

The District has no employees and all administrative functions are contracted. 

The District prepares its budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance 
with the requirements of Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105 using its best estimates 
as of the date of the budget hearing. These estimates are based on expected conditions 
and its expected course of actions. The assumptions disclosed herein are those that the District 
believes are significant to the budget. There will usually be differences between the budget 
and actual results, because events and circumstances frequently do not occur as 
expected, and those differences may be material. 

Revenues 

The District has budgeted no revenues for 2021. 

Expenditures 

The District has budgeted no expenditures. All administrative expenditures of the District will be 
paid by District No. 1. 

Debt and Leases 

The District has no debt, nor any operating or capital leases. 

Reserves 

Emergency Reserve 

TABOR requires local governments to establish Emergency Reserves. These reserves must be 
at least 3% of fiscal year spending. Since the District anticipates no revenues, an Emergency 
Reserve is not required and therefore not reflected in the District's Budget. 

This information is an integral part of the accompanying forecasted budget. 

3



0895.0015:1099696 1 

Resolution No. 2021-01-11 
 

RESOLUTION 
ADOPTING BUDGET, IMPOSING MILL LEVY AND APPROPRIATING FUNDS 

 
(2021) 

       
 
 

The Board of Directors of Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 5 (the 

“Board”), County of El Paso, Colorado (the “District”) held a special meeting held via 

teleconference on January 20, 2021, at the hour of 1:00 P.M. 

 

Prior to the meeting, each of the directors was notified of the date, time and place of the 

budget meeting and the purpose for which it was called and a notice of the meeting was posted or 

published in accordance with § 29-1-106, C.R.S. 

 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank.] 

 



0895.0015:1099696 2 

NOTICE AS TO PROPOSED 2021 BUDGET 
 



0895.0015:1099696 3 

A RESOLUTION SUMMARIZING EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES FOR EACH FUND 
AND ADOPTING A BUDGET AND APPROPRIATING SUMS OF MONEY TO EACH FUND 
IN THE AMOUNTS AND FOR THE PURPOSES SET FORTH HEREIN FOR THE DISTRICT 
FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING ON THE FIRST DAY OF JANUARY 2021 AND 
ENDING ON THE LAST DAY OF DECEMBER 2021. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board has authorized its accountant to prepare and submit a proposed 

budget to the Board in accordance with Colorado law; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed budget has been submitted to the Board for its review and 
consideration; and 
 

 WHEREAS, upon due and proper notice, provided in accordance with Colorado law, said 

proposed budget was open for inspection by the public at a designated place, a public hearing was 

held on January 20, 2021, interested electors were given the opportunity to file or present any 

objections to said proposed budget at any time prior to final adoption of the budget by the Board. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1. Adoption of Budget.  The budget attached hereto and incorporated herein is 

approved and adopted as the budget of the District for fiscal year 2021.  In the event of 

recertification of values by the County Assessor’s Office after the date of adoption hereof, staff is 

hereby directed to modify and/or adjust the budget and certification to reflect the recertification 

without the need for additional Board authorization.  Any such modification to the budget or 

certification as contemplated by this Section 1 shall be deemed ratified by the Board. 

 

Section 2. Levy for General Operating Expenses.  For the purpose of meeting all 

general operating expenses of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax 

of 0.000 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within 

the District. 

 

Section 3. Levy for Debt Service Obligations.  For the purposes of meeting all debt 

service obligations of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 0.000 



0895.0015:1099696 4 

mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the 

District. 

 

Section 4. Levy for Contractual Obligation Expenses.  For the purposes of meeting all 

contractual obligations of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 

0.000 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the 

District. 

 

Section 5. Levy for Capital Project Expenses.  For the purposes of meeting all capital 

project obligations of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 0.000 

mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the 

District. 

 

 Section 6. Certification to County Commissioners.  The Board directs its legal counsel, 

manager, accountant or other designee to certify to the Board of County Commissioners of El Paso 

County, Colorado the mill levies for the District as set forth herein.  Such certification shall be in 

compliance with the requirements of Colorado law.   

 

Section 7. Appropriations.  The amounts set forth as expenditures in the budget 

attached hereto are hereby appropriated. 

 

 Section 8. Filing of Budget and Budget Message.  The Board hereby directs its legal 

counsel, manager or other designee to file a certified copy of the adopted budget resolution, the 

budget and budget message with the Division of Local Government by January 30 of the ensuing 

year. 

 

Section 9. Budget Certification.  The budget shall be certified by a member of the 

District, or a person appointed by the District, and made a part of the public records of the District. 

 

 [Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 



0895.0015: 1099696 5 

ADOPTED THIS 20TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2021 

 
MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT NO. 5 

 
 
 
              
 Officer of the District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
    
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
       
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 
       
       
General Counsel to the District 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO 
COUNTY OF EL PASO 
MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 5 
 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution constitutes a true and correct copy of the 
record of proceedings of the Board adopted by a majority of the Board at a District meeting held 
on January 20, 2021, via teleconference as recorded in the official record of the proceedings of the 
District. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name this 20th day of January, 
2021. 
 
       
 
       
              



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

BUDGET DOCUMENT 
 

BUDGET MESSAGE 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 5 
 

ANNUAL BUDGET 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2021  



1/8/21

ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 
2019 2020 2021

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES -$                   -$                   -$                   

REVENUES

Total revenues -                     -                     -                     

Total funds available -                     -                     -                     

EXPENDITURES
Total expenditures -                     -                     -                     

Total expenditures and transfers out 
requiring appropriation -                     -                     -                     

ENDING FUND BALANCES -$                   -$                   -$                   

EMERGENCY RESERVE -$                   -$                   -$                   
AVAILABLE FOR OPERATIONS -                     -                     -                     
TOTAL RESERVE -$                   -$                   -$                   

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METRO DISTRICT NO. 5
GENERAL FUND 

2021 BUDGET
 WITH 2019 ACTUAL AND 2020 ESTIMATED

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
1



1/8/21

ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 
2019 2020 2021

ASSESSED VALUATION
Residential -$               -$               -$               
Commercial -$               -$               -$               

Certified Assessed Value -$               -$               -$               

MILL LEVY
General 0.000 0.000 0.000
Debt Service 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total mill levy 0.000 0.000 0.000

PROPERTY TAXES
General -$               -$               -$               
Debt Service -                 -                 -                 

Levied property taxes -                 -                 -                 

Budgeted property taxes -$               -$               -$               

BUDGETED PROPERTY TAXES
General -$               -$               -$               
Debt Service -                 -                 -                 

-$               -$               -$               

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METRO DISTRICT NO. 5
PROPERTY TAX SUMMARY INFORMATION

2021 BUDGET
 WITH 2019 ACTUAL AND 2020 ESTIMATED

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
2



MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 5 
2021 BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

Service Provided 

The District, a quasi-municipal corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, 
was organized by order and decree of the District Court for the City of Colorado Springs in 2021 
and is governed pursuant to provisions of the Colorado Special District Act (Title 32, Article 1, 
Colorado Revised Statutes).  

The District was established to provide financing for the design, acquisition, installation, 
construction and completion of public improvements and services, including water, sanitation, 
street, safety protection, park and recreation, transportation, television relay and translation and 
mosquito control improvements and services.  

The District has no employees and all administrative functions are contracted. 

The District prepares its budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance 
with the requirements of Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105 using its best estimates 
as of the date of the budget hearing. These estimates are based on expected conditions 
and its expected course of actions. The assumptions disclosed herein are those that the District 
believes are significant to the budget. There will usually be differences between the budget 
and actual results, because events and circumstances frequently do not occur as 
expected, and those differences may be material. 

Revenues 

The District has budgeted no revenues for 2021. 

Expenditures 

The District has budgeted no expenditures. All administrative expenditures of the District will be 
paid by District No. 1. 

Debt and Leases 

The District has no debt, nor any operating or capital leases. 

Reserves 

Emergency Reserve 

TABOR requires local governments to establish Emergency Reserves. These reserves must be 
at least 3% of fiscal year spending. Since the District anticipates no revenues, an Emergency 
Reserve is not required and therefore not reflected in the District's Budget. 

This information is an integral part of the accompanying forecasted budget. 

3



0895.0015:1099697 1 

Resolution No. 2021-01-12 
 

RESOLUTION 
ADOPTING BUDGET, IMPOSING MILL LEVY AND APPROPRIATING FUNDS 

 
(2021) 

       
 
 

The Board of Directors of Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 6 (the 

“Board”), County of El Paso, Colorado (the “District”) held a special meeting held via 

teleconference on January 20, 2021, at the hour of 1:00 P.M. 

 

Prior to the meeting, each of the directors was notified of the date, time and place of the 

budget meeting and the purpose for which it was called and a notice of the meeting was posted or 

published in accordance with § 29-1-106, C.R.S. 

 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank.] 

 



0895.0015:1099697 2 

NOTICE AS TO PROPOSED 2021 BUDGET 
 



0895.0015:1099697 3 

A RESOLUTION SUMMARIZING EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES FOR EACH FUND 
AND ADOPTING A BUDGET AND APPROPRIATING SUMS OF MONEY TO EACH FUND 
IN THE AMOUNTS AND FOR THE PURPOSES SET FORTH HEREIN FOR THE DISTRICT 
FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING ON THE FIRST DAY OF JANUARY 2021 AND 
ENDING ON THE LAST DAY OF DECEMBER 2021. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board has authorized its accountant to prepare and submit a proposed 

budget to the Board in accordance with Colorado law; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed budget has been submitted to the Board for its review and 
consideration; and 
 

 WHEREAS, upon due and proper notice, provided in accordance with Colorado law, said 

proposed budget was open for inspection by the public at a designated place, a public hearing was 

held on January 20, 2021, interested electors were given the opportunity to file or present any 

objections to said proposed budget at any time prior to final adoption of the budget by the Board. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1. Adoption of Budget.  The budget attached hereto and incorporated herein is 

approved and adopted as the budget of the District for fiscal year 2021.  In the event of 

recertification of values by the County Assessor’s Office after the date of adoption hereof, staff is 

hereby directed to modify and/or adjust the budget and certification to reflect the recertification 

without the need for additional Board authorization.  Any such modification to the budget or 

certification as contemplated by this Section 1 shall be deemed ratified by the Board. 

 

Section 2. Levy for General Operating Expenses.  For the purpose of meeting all 

general operating expenses of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax 

of 0.000 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within 

the District. 

 

Section 3. Levy for Debt Service Obligations.  For the purposes of meeting all debt 

service obligations of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 0.000 



0895.0015:1099697 4 

mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the 

District. 

 

Section 4. Levy for Contractual Obligation Expenses.  For the purposes of meeting all 

contractual obligations of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 

0.000 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the 

District. 

 

Section 5. Levy for Capital Project Expenses.  For the purposes of meeting all capital 

project obligations of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 0.000 

mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the 

District. 

 

 Section 6. Certification to County Commissioners.  The Board directs its legal counsel, 

manager, accountant or other designee to certify to the Board of County Commissioners of El Paso 

County, Colorado the mill levies for the District as set forth herein.  Such certification shall be in 

compliance with the requirements of Colorado law.   

 

Section 7. Appropriations.  The amounts set forth as expenditures in the budget 

attached hereto are hereby appropriated. 

 

 Section 8. Filing of Budget and Budget Message.  The Board hereby directs its legal 

counsel, manager or other designee to file a certified copy of the adopted budget resolution, the 

budget and budget message with the Division of Local Government by January 30 of the ensuing 

year. 

 

Section 9. Budget Certification.  The budget shall be certified by a member of the 

District, or a person appointed by the District, and made a part of the public records of the District. 

 

 [Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 



0895.0015: 1099697 5 

ADOPTED THIS 20TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2021 

 
MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT NO. 6 

 
 
 
              
 Officer of the District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
    
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
       
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 
       
       
General Counsel to the District 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO 
COUNTY OF EL PASO 
MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 6 
 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution constitutes a true and correct copy of the 
record of proceedings of the Board adopted by a majority of the Board at a District meeting held 
on January 20, 2021, via teleconference as recorded in the official record of the proceedings of the 
District. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name this 20th day of January, 
2021. 
 
       
 
       
              



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

BUDGET DOCUMENT 
 

BUDGET MESSAGE 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 6 
 

ANNUAL BUDGET 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2021  



1/8/21

ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 
2019 2020 2021

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES -$                   -$                   -$                   

REVENUES

Total revenues -                     -                     -                     

Total funds available -                     -                     -                     

EXPENDITURES
Total expenditures -                     -                     -                     

Total expenditures and transfers out 
requiring appropriation -                     -                     -                     

ENDING FUND BALANCES -$                   -$                   -$                   

EMERGENCY RESERVE -$                   -$                   -$                   
AVAILABLE FOR OPERATIONS -                     -                     -                     
TOTAL RESERVE -$                   -$                   -$                   

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METRO DISTRICT NO. 6
GENERAL FUND 

2021 BUDGET
 WITH 2019 ACTUAL AND 2020 ESTIMATED

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
1



1/8/21

ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 
2019 2020 2021

ASSESSED VALUATION
Residential -$               -$               -$               
Commercial -$               -$               -$               

Certified Assessed Value -$               -$               -$               

MILL LEVY
General 0.000 0.000 0.000
Debt Service 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total mill levy 0.000 0.000 0.000

PROPERTY TAXES
General -$               -$               -$               
Debt Service -                 -                 -                 

Levied property taxes -                 -                 -                 

Budgeted property taxes -$               -$               -$               

BUDGETED PROPERTY TAXES
General -$               -$               -$               
Debt Service -                 -                 -                 

-$               -$               -$               

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METRO DISTRICT NO. 6
PROPERTY TAX SUMMARY INFORMATION

2021 BUDGET
 WITH 2019 ACTUAL AND 2020 ESTIMATED

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
2



MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 6 
2021 BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

Service Provided 

The District, a quasi-municipal corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, 
was organized by order and decree of the District Court for the City of Colorado Springs in 2021 
and is governed pursuant to provisions of the Colorado Special District Act (Title 32, Article 1, 
Colorado Revised Statutes).  

The District was established to provide financing for the design, acquisition, installation, 
construction and completion of public improvements and services, including water, sanitation, 
street, safety protection, park and recreation, transportation, television relay and translation and 
mosquito control improvements and services.  

The District has no employees and all administrative functions are contracted. 

The District prepares its budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance 
with the requirements of Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105 using its best estimates 
as of the date of the budget hearing. These estimates are based on expected conditions 
and its expected course of actions. The assumptions disclosed herein are those that the District 
believes are significant to the budget. There will usually be differences between the budget 
and actual results, because events and circumstances frequently do not occur as 
expected, and those differences may be material. 

Revenues 

The District has budgeted no revenues for 2021. 

Expenditures 

The District has budgeted no expenditures. All administrative expenditures of the District will be 
paid by District No. 1. 

Debt and Leases 

The District has no debt, nor any operating or capital leases. 

Reserves 

Emergency Reserve 

TABOR requires local governments to establish Emergency Reserves. These reserves must be 
at least 3% of fiscal year spending. Since the District anticipates no revenues, an Emergency 
Reserve is not required and therefore not reflected in the District's Budget. 

This information is an integral part of the accompanying forecasted budget. 

3



0895.0015:1099700 1 

Resolution No. 2021-01-13 
 

RESOLUTION 
ADOPTING BUDGET, IMPOSING MILL LEVY AND APPROPRIATING FUNDS 

 
(2021) 

       
 
 

The Board of Directors of Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 7 (the 

“Board”), County of El Paso, Colorado (the “District”) held a special meeting held via 

teleconference on January 20, 2021, at the hour of 1:00 P.M. 

 

Prior to the meeting, each of the directors was notified of the date, time and place of the 

budget meeting and the purpose for which it was called and a notice of the meeting was posted or 

published in accordance with § 29-1-106, C.R.S. 

 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank.] 

 



0895.0015:1099700 2 

NOTICE AS TO PROPOSED 2021 BUDGET 
 



0895.0015:1099700 3 

A RESOLUTION SUMMARIZING EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES FOR EACH FUND 
AND ADOPTING A BUDGET AND APPROPRIATING SUMS OF MONEY TO EACH FUND 
IN THE AMOUNTS AND FOR THE PURPOSES SET FORTH HEREIN FOR THE DISTRICT 
FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING ON THE FIRST DAY OF JANUARY 2021 AND 
ENDING ON THE LAST DAY OF DECEMBER 2021. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board has authorized its accountant to prepare and submit a proposed 

budget to the Board in accordance with Colorado law; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed budget has been submitted to the Board for its review and 
consideration; and 
 

 WHEREAS, upon due and proper notice, provided in accordance with Colorado law, said 

proposed budget was open for inspection by the public at a designated place, a public hearing was 

held on January 20, 2021, interested electors were given the opportunity to file or present any 

objections to said proposed budget at any time prior to final adoption of the budget by the Board. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1. Adoption of Budget.  The budget attached hereto and incorporated herein is 

approved and adopted as the budget of the District for fiscal year 2021.  In the event of 

recertification of values by the County Assessor’s Office after the date of adoption hereof, staff is 

hereby directed to modify and/or adjust the budget and certification to reflect the recertification 

without the need for additional Board authorization.  Any such modification to the budget or 

certification as contemplated by this Section 1 shall be deemed ratified by the Board. 

 

Section 2. Levy for General Operating Expenses.  For the purpose of meeting all 

general operating expenses of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax 

of 0.000 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within 

the District. 

 

Section 3. Levy for Debt Service Obligations.  For the purposes of meeting all debt 

service obligations of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 0.000 



0895.0015:1099700 4 

mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the 

District. 

 

Section 4. Levy for Contractual Obligation Expenses.  For the purposes of meeting all 

contractual obligations of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 

0.000 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the 

District. 

 

Section 5. Levy for Capital Project Expenses.  For the purposes of meeting all capital 

project obligations of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 0.000 

mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the 

District. 

 

 Section 6. Certification to County Commissioners.  The Board directs its legal counsel, 

manager, accountant or other designee to certify to the Board of County Commissioners of El Paso 

County, Colorado the mill levies for the District as set forth herein.  Such certification shall be in 

compliance with the requirements of Colorado law.   

 

Section 7. Appropriations.  The amounts set forth as expenditures in the budget 

attached hereto are hereby appropriated. 

 

 Section 8. Filing of Budget and Budget Message.  The Board hereby directs its legal 

counsel, manager or other designee to file a certified copy of the adopted budget resolution, the 

budget and budget message with the Division of Local Government by January 30 of the ensuing 

year. 

 

Section 9. Budget Certification.  The budget shall be certified by a member of the 

District, or a person appointed by the District, and made a part of the public records of the District. 

 

 [Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 



0895.0015: 1099700 5 

ADOPTED THIS 20TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2021 

 
MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT NO. 7 

 
 
 
              
 Officer of the District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
    
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
       
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 
       
       
General Counsel to the District 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO 
COUNTY OF EL PASO 
MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 
 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution constitutes a true and correct copy of the 
record of proceedings of the Board adopted by a majority of the Board at a District meeting held 
on January 20, 2021, via teleconference as recorded in the official record of the proceedings of the 
District. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name this 20th day of January, 
2021. 
 
       
 
       
              



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

BUDGET DOCUMENT 
 

BUDGET MESSAGE 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 
 

ANNUAL BUDGET 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2021  



1/8/21

ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 
2019 2020 2021

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES -$                   -$                   -$                   

REVENUES

Total revenues -                     -                     -                     

Total funds available -                     -                     -                     

EXPENDITURES
General and administrative

Total expenditures -                     -                     -                     

Total expenditures and transfers out 
requiring appropriation -                     -                     -                     

ENDING FUND BALANCES -$                   -$                   -$                   

EMERGENCY RESERVE -$                   -$                   -$                   
AVAILABLE FOR OPERATIONS -                     -                     -                     
TOTAL RESERVE -$                   -$                   -$                   

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METRO DISTRICT NO. 7
GENERAL FUND 

2021 BUDGET
 WITH 2019 ACTUAL AND 2020 ESTIMATED

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
1



1/8/21

ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 
2019 2020 2021

ASSESSED VALUATION
Residential -$               -$               -$               
Commercial -$               -$               -$               

Certified Assessed Value -$               -$               -$               

MILL LEVY
General 0.000 0.000 0.000
Debt Service 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total mill levy 0.000 0.000 0.000

PROPERTY TAXES
General -$               -$               -$               
Debt Service -                 -                 -                 

Levied property taxes -                 -                 -                 

Budgeted property taxes -$               -$               -$               

BUDGETED PROPERTY TAXES
General -$               -$               -$               
Debt Service -                 -                 -                 

-$               -$               -$               

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METRO DISTRICT NO. 7
PROPERTY TAX SUMMARY INFORMATION

2021 BUDGET
 WITH 2019 ACTUAL AND 2020 ESTIMATED

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
2



MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 
2021 BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

Service Provided 

The District, a quasi-municipal corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, 
was organized by order and decree of the District Court for the City of Colorado Springs in 2021 
and is governed pursuant to provisions of the Colorado Special District Act (Title 32, Article 1, 
Colorado Revised Statutes).  

The District was established to provide financing for the design, acquisition, installation, 
construction and completion of public improvements and services, including water, sanitation, 
street, safety protection, park and recreation, transportation, television relay and translation and 
mosquito control improvements and services.  

The District has no employees and all administrative functions are contracted. 

The District prepares its budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance 
with the requirements of Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105 using its best estimates 
as of the date of the budget hearing. These estimates are based on expected conditions 
and its expected course of actions. The assumptions disclosed herein are those that the District 
believes are significant to the budget. There will usually be differences between the budget 
and actual results, because events and circumstances frequently do not occur as 
expected, and those differences may be material. 

Revenues 

The District has budgeted no revenues for 2021. 

Expenditures 

The District has budgeted no expenditures. All administrative expenditures of the District will be 
paid by District No. 1. 

Debt and Leases 

The District has no debt, nor any operating or capital leases. 

Reserves 

Emergency Reserve 

TABOR requires local governments to establish Emergency Reserves. These reserves must be 
at least 3% of fiscal year spending. Since the District anticipates no revenues, an Emergency 
Reserve is not required and therefore not reflected in the District's Budget. 

This information is an integral part of the accompanying forecasted budget. 

3



0895.0015:1099701 1 

Resolution No. 2021-01-14 
 

RESOLUTION 
ADOPTING BUDGET, IMPOSING MILL LEVY AND APPROPRIATING FUNDS 

 
(2021) 

       
 
 

The Board of Directors of Mayberry, Colorado Springs Metropolitan District No. 8 (the 

“Board”), County of El Paso, Colorado (the “District”) held a special meeting held via 

teleconference on January 20, 2021, at the hour of 1:00 P.M. 

 

Prior to the meeting, each of the directors was notified of the date, time and place of the 

budget meeting and the purpose for which it was called and a notice of the meeting was posted or 

published in accordance with § 29-1-106, C.R.S. 

 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank.] 

 



0895.0015:1099701 2 

NOTICE AS TO PROPOSED 2021 BUDGET 
 



0895.0015:1099701 3 

A RESOLUTION SUMMARIZING EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES FOR EACH FUND 
AND ADOPTING A BUDGET AND APPROPRIATING SUMS OF MONEY TO EACH FUND 
IN THE AMOUNTS AND FOR THE PURPOSES SET FORTH HEREIN FOR THE DISTRICT 
FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING ON THE FIRST DAY OF JANUARY 2021 AND 
ENDING ON THE LAST DAY OF DECEMBER 2021. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board has authorized its accountant to prepare and submit a proposed 

budget to the Board in accordance with Colorado law; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed budget has been submitted to the Board for its review and 
consideration; and 
 

 WHEREAS, upon due and proper notice, provided in accordance with Colorado law, said 

proposed budget was open for inspection by the public at a designated place, a public hearing was 

held on January 20, 2021, interested electors were given the opportunity to file or present any 

objections to said proposed budget at any time prior to final adoption of the budget by the Board. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1. Adoption of Budget.  The budget attached hereto and incorporated herein is 

approved and adopted as the budget of the District for fiscal year 2021.  In the event of 

recertification of values by the County Assessor’s Office after the date of adoption hereof, staff is 

hereby directed to modify and/or adjust the budget and certification to reflect the recertification 

without the need for additional Board authorization.  Any such modification to the budget or 

certification as contemplated by this Section 1 shall be deemed ratified by the Board. 

 

Section 2. Levy for General Operating Expenses.  For the purpose of meeting all 

general operating expenses of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax 

of 0.000 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within 

the District. 

 

Section 3. Levy for Debt Service Obligations.  For the purposes of meeting all debt 

service obligations of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 0.000 



0895.0015:1099701 4 

mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the 

District. 

 

Section 4. Levy for Contractual Obligation Expenses.  For the purposes of meeting all 

contractual obligations of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 

0.000 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the 

District. 

 

Section 5. Levy for Capital Project Expenses.  For the purposes of meeting all capital 

project obligations of the District during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 0.000 

mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the 

District. 

 

 Section 6. Certification to County Commissioners.  The Board directs its legal counsel, 

manager, accountant or other designee to certify to the Board of County Commissioners of El Paso 

County, Colorado the mill levies for the District as set forth herein.  Such certification shall be in 

compliance with the requirements of Colorado law.   

 

Section 7. Appropriations.  The amounts set forth as expenditures in the budget 

attached hereto are hereby appropriated. 

 

 Section 8. Filing of Budget and Budget Message.  The Board hereby directs its legal 

counsel, manager or other designee to file a certified copy of the adopted budget resolution, the 

budget and budget message with the Division of Local Government by January 30 of the ensuing 

year. 

 

Section 9. Budget Certification.  The budget shall be certified by a member of the 

District, or a person appointed by the District, and made a part of the public records of the District. 

 

 [Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 



0895.0015: 1099701 5 

ADOPTED THIS 20TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2021 

 
MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT NO. 8  

 
 
 
              
 Officer of the District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
    
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
       
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 
       
       
General Counsel to the District 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO 
COUNTY OF EL PASO 
MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 8 
 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution constitutes a true and correct copy of the 
record of proceedings of the Board adopted by a majority of the Board at a District meeting held 
on January 20, 2021, via teleconference as recorded in the official record of the proceedings of the 
District. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name this 20th day of January, 
2021. 
 
       
 
       
              



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

BUDGET DOCUMENT 
 

BUDGET MESSAGE 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 8 
 

ANNUAL BUDGET 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2021  



1/8/21

ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 
2019 2020 2021

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES -$                   -$                   -$                   

REVENUES

Total revenues -                     -                     -                     

Total funds available -                     -                     -                     

EXPENDITURES
General and administrative

Total expenditures -                     -                     -                     

Total expenditures and transfers out 
requiring appropriation -                     -                     -                     

ENDING FUND BALANCES -$                   -$                   -$                   

EMERGENCY RESERVE -$                   -$                   -$                   
AVAILABLE FOR OPERATIONS -                     -                     -                     
TOTAL RESERVE -$                   -$                   -$                   

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METRO DISTRICT NO. 8
GENERAL FUND 

2021 BUDGET
 WITH 2019 ACTUAL AND 2020 ESTIMATED

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
1



1/8/21

ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 
2019 2020 2021

ASSESSED VALUATION
Residential -$               -$               -$               
Commercial -$               -$               -$               

Certified Assessed Value -$               -$               -$               

MILL LEVY
General 0.000 0.000 0.000
Debt Service 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total mill levy 0.000 0.000 0.000

PROPERTY TAXES
General -$               -$               -$               
Debt Service -                 -                 -                 

Levied property taxes -                 -                 -                 

Budgeted property taxes -$               -$               -$               

BUDGETED PROPERTY TAXES
General -$               -$               -$               
Debt Service -                 -                 -                 

-$               -$               -$               

MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METRO DISTRICT NO. 8
PROPERTY TAX SUMMARY INFORMATION

2021 BUDGET
 WITH 2019 ACTUAL AND 2020 ESTIMATED

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
2



MAYBERRY, COLORADO SPRINGS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 8 
2021 BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

Service Provided 

The District, a quasi-municipal corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, 
was organized by order and decree of the District Court for the City of Colorado Springs in 2021 
and is governed pursuant to provisions of the Colorado Special District Act (Title 32, Article 1, 
Colorado Revised Statutes).  

The District was established to provide financing for the design, acquisition, installation, 
construction and completion of public improvements and services, including water, sanitation, 
street, safety protection, park and recreation, transportation, television relay and translation and 
mosquito control improvements and services.  

The District has no employees and all administrative functions are contracted. 

The District prepares its budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance 
with the requirements of Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105 using its best estimates 
as of the date of the budget hearing. These estimates are based on expected conditions 
and its expected course of actions. The assumptions disclosed herein are those that the District 
believes are significant to the budget. There will usually be differences between the budget 
and actual results, because events and circumstances frequently do not occur as 
expected, and those differences may be material. 

Revenues 

The District has budgeted no revenues for 2021. 

Expenditures 

The District has budgeted no expenditures. All administrative expenditures of the District will be 
paid by District No. 1. 

Debt and Leases 

The District has no debt, nor any operating or capital leases. 

Reserves 

Emergency Reserve 

TABOR requires local governments to establish Emergency Reserves. These reserves must be 
at least 3% of fiscal year spending. Since the District anticipates no revenues, an Emergency 
Reserve is not required and therefore not reflected in the District's Budget. 

This information is an integral part of the accompanying forecasted budget. 

3


	Agenda
	Minutes from the November 12, 2020 Joint Special Meeting
	Joint Resolution 2021-01-01: 2021 Joint Annual Administrative Resolution (District Nos. 3-8) 
	Joint Resolution 2021-01-02: Joint Resolution Extending Emergency Procedures and Authorizing Teleconferencing for Regular Meetings (District Nos. 3-8)
	Resolution 2021-01-03: Joint Resolution Establishing an Electronic Signature (District Nos. 3-8)
	Joint Resolution No. 2021-01-04: Providing for the Defense and Indemnification of Directors and Employees of the Districts
	 Joint Resolution No. 2021-01-05: Adopting Colorado Special District Records Retention Schedule (District Nos. 3-8)
	Joint Resolution No. 2021-01-06: Adopting Public Records Request Policy (District Nos. 3-8)
	Joint Resolution No. 2021-01-07: Concerning the Location of Special and Regular Meetings (District Nos. 1-8)
	Joint Resolution No. 2021-01-08: Designating the Location of Regular and Special Meetings Outside the District Boundaries 
	m.	Ratification of Claims ($32,732.19) 
	Unaudited Financial Statements as of December 31, 2020 (District No. 1) 
	Transaction Based Consent Letter as between District No. 1 and District Nos. 2-8 (District Nos. 1-8)
	Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON as General Counsel (District Nos. 3-8)
	Engagement of Spencer Fane, LLP as Special Counsel for Operating Agreement (District Nos. 3-8)
	Independent Contractor Agreement with MMI Water Engineers, LLC for District
Engineer Services (District Nos. 3-8)
	Engagement Letter with White & Jankowksi, LLP, for Water Rights Legal Counsel  (District Nos. 3-8)
	Engagement Letter with CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP, for Accounting Services (District Nos. 3-8) 
	2021 Budgets and Consider Adoption of Resolution, No. 3
	2021 Budgets and Consider Adoption of Resolution, No. 4
	2021 Budgets and Consider Adoption of Resolution, No. 5
	2021 Budgets and Consider Adoption of Resolution, No. 6
	2021 Budgets and Consider Adoption of Resolution, No. 7
	2021 Budgets and Consider Adoption of Resolution, No. 8



